BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Division of Business Services; Department of Facilities Management;
Office of Purchasing
6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor
Towson, Maryland 21204

SPECIFICATION AND PROPOSAL

FOR

SPRINKLER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, INSTALLATION, PARTS & INSPECTION

SOLICITATION NUMBER: MBU-506-18

BID ISSUED DATE: August 24, 2017

PRE-BID: A PRE-BID meeting is scheduled for <u>August 31.</u>

2017, **10:00 a.m.**, at the Department of Facilities Management, 9610 Pulaski Park Drive Suite 204,

Baltimore, Maryland 21220.

DUE DATE: September 20, 2017

DUE TIME: <u>2:00 p.m.</u> (Eastern Time Zone)

RETURN TO: BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OFFICE OF PURCHASING

MBU-506-18 Attn: Melvin E. Burley

6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor

Towson, Maryland 21204

PUBLIC OPENING: Same date, (10 minutes after due time)

Conference Room

6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor

Towson, Maryland 21204

Failure to plainly identify your submission as a "SEALED BID" on the outside of the return envelope may result in premature opening of the envelope and bid.

Baltimore County Public Schools reserves the right to waive informalities, to reject all bids, and to reissue this bid at its option, and does not make an obligation to purchase by issuing this bid.

For updated bid information please visit our website www.bcps.org/offices/purchasing/bidboard/

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Verletta White • Interim Superintendent • 6901 North Charles Street • Towson, MD • 21204

INVITATION FOR BIDS:

The Board of Education of Baltimore County invites firms to bid on <u>"SPRINKLER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, INSTALLATION, PARTS & INSPECTION"</u> for Baltimore County Public Schools, <u>Solicitation Number MBU-506-18</u>. Procurement questions can be emailed to Melvin E. Burley at <u>mburley2@bcps.org</u>. You must identify the solicitation number, within your email message. Verbal questions will not be taken.

Suppliers proposing to bid may secure a set of solicitation documents after 2:00 p.m. (*EST*), on or after <u>August 24, 2017</u>. Solicitation documents can be obtained electronically by emailing request to: mburley2@bcps.org. Email requests MUST include bidders' corporate address, phone number, fax number, and representatives contact name. Additionally, hard copy solicitation documents are available for pickup at the Office of Purchasing, 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204. There is no cost for the solicitation.

A pre-bid meeting is scheduled for <u>August 31, 2017, 10:00 a.m.</u>, at the Department of Facilities Management, 9610 Pulaski Park Drive, Suite 204, Baltimore, Maryland 21220.

Sealed bids will be received until <u>September 20, 2017, no later than 2:00 p.m.</u> in the Office of Purchasing at Baltimore County Public Schools Office of Purchasing, located at 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204.

This solicitation is being offered to select a supplier(s) to furnish the necessary labor, equipment, materials, supervision, tools and related incidentals required to test, maintain, repair, and/or upgrade sprinkler systems at various BCPS locations. Additionally, Award Bidder(s) shall perform emergency and routine trouble shooting/problem diagnosis in accordance with industry standards and/or manufacturer recommendations. (Commodity Code: 34-084 Sprinkler System, Fire).

The firms who provide materials, supplies, equipment, and/or services for the above bid shall attempt to achieve 14% participation of Minority Business and/or Small Business Enterprise organizations in response to the Board of Education's goal for economic development. Certified Minority Business Enterprises and Small Business Enterprises are encouraged to respond to these solicitations.

Bidders shall include minority and small business enterprise material as provided herein with their proposal. Bidders failing to submit the minority and small business enterprise material as provided herein, including the Small and Minority Business Enterprise Utilization Affidavit may result in the bid being determined non-responsive.

The Board of Education of Baltimore County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive informalities.

By Order of the Board of Education of Baltimore County
Office of Purchasing

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

PART I: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ГЕМ#	AREA
1.	DEFINITIONS
2.	AN INVITATION TO BID
3.	BID PREPARATION, PROPOSAL SHEET, AND BID OPENING
4.	MULTI-AGENCY PROCUREMENT
5.	BID SECURITY
6.	TIE BIDS
7.	BID PRICES
8.	TAXES AND PERMITS
9.	BILLING AND PAYMENTS
10.	GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE
11.	ADDENDA
12.	INSURANCE
13.	DIRECT DAMAGES
14.	TERMINATIONS/SUSPENSIONS FROM CONTRACT
15.	DRUG, TOBACCO, AND ALCOHOL
16.	APPEAL PROCESS
17.	LITIGATION PROCEDURES
18.	DISCRIMINATION
19.	GENERAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS
20.	BUY AMERICAN STEEL ACT
21.	AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT
22.	NON-HIRING OF EMPLOYEES BY AWARD BIDDER OR BCPS
23.	FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
24.	POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE
25.	RETENTION OF RECORDS
26.	ANNULMENTS AND RESERVATIONS
27.	DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS
28.	INSPECTIONS
29.	COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS
30.	GUARANTEE AND WARRANTY
31.	SUBCONTRACTORS
32.	AWARD BIDDER'S RESPONSIBILITY
33.	SAFETY AND CODE REQUIREMENTS
34.	CONCEALED OR UNKNOWN CONDITIONS
35.	INDEMNIFICATION
36.	EXCLUSIONS FROM WORK
37.	ACCESS TO FACILITIES FOR PERFORMANCE
38.	LIABILITY FOR LOSS OF DATA
39.	SUSPENSION OF WORK
40.	DELAYS, EXTENSIONS OF TIME
41.	HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
42.	BIDDER SUBMITTALS
43.	SUBSTITUTIONS
44.	EMERGENCIES AND NOTIFICATION
45.	OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK
46.	OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK
47. 40	ROYALTIES AND PATENTS CONFLICT OF INTEREST LORDYING AND ETHICS DEVIEW DANCE
48. 49.	CONFLICT OF INTEREST, LOBBYING AND ETHICS REVIEW PANEL INCLEMENT WEATHER
49. 50.	ILLEGAL IMMIGRANT LABOR
50. 51.	FOREIGN LANGUAGE TRANSLATOR REQUIREMENT
	EMPLOYMENT OF CHILD SEX OFFENDERS AND PERSONS WITH UNCONTROLLED ACCESS TO
52.	STUDENTS
53.	FORCE MAJEURE
55. 54.	ASSIGNMENT
54. 55.	ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS ACT NOTICE
56.	CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS PART I: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.0 **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1 For the purpose and clarity of this document only, "BCPS" will mean the Baltimore County Public Schools and the Baltimore County Board of Education and its officials and employees.
- 1.2 Bidding Documents include the Bidding Requirements and the proposed Contract Documents. The Bidding Requirements consist of the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, Supplementary Instructions to Bidders, the bid form, and other sample bidding and contract forms. The proposed Contract Documents consist of the form of Agreement between BCPS and Award Bidder, Conditions of the Contract (General Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, and all Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract.
- 1.3 Definitions set forth in The American Institute of Architects (AIA) Contract Documents (modified), or in other BCPS Contract Documents are applicable to the Solicitation/Bidding Documents.
- 1.4 Addenda are written or graphic instruments issued by BCPS or its representative prior to the execution of the Contract which modify or interpret the Solicitation by additions deletions clarifications or corrections.
- 1.5 A Bid is a complete and properly signed proposal to do the Work and/or provide the Goods for the sums stipulated therein submitted in accordance with the Solicitation.
- 1.6 The Base Bid is the sum stated in the Solicitation for which the Bidder offers to perform the Work described in the Solicitation as the base to which Work may be added or from which Work may be deleted for sums stated in Alternate Bids.
- 1.7 An Alternate is an amount stated in the Proposal/Bid that may be added to or deducted from the amount of the Base Bid if the corresponding change in the Work as described in the Solicitation is accepted.
- 1.8 A Unit Price is an amount stated in the Solicitation as a price per unit of measurement for materials equipment or services or a portion of the Work as described in the Solicitation.
- 1.9 A Bidder is any reliable and interested person, broker, vendor, contractor and/or manufacturer who responded to the solicitation /submits a Bid/Proposal.
- 1.10 An Award Bidder is a person or entity who submits a Proposal/Bid and has been approved by the Board of Education for award.
- 1.11 A Sub-contractor is a person or entity who submits a proposal or bid to an Award Bidder for materials, equipment, or labor for a portion of the Work.

2.0 AN INVITATION TO BID

- 2.1 BCPS invites all interested and qualified Contractors to submit a proposal/bid. These specifications are intended to cover the purchase of services and/or commodities requested and include, but are not limited to, providing labor, materials, equipment and supervision of labor and subcontractors to complete requirements as identified [by BCPS].
- 2.2 In accordance with State law and BCPS policies, notices and announcements shall be published a minimum of 14 calendar days in advance of due date for any proposal/bid having a potential award value of \$25,000 or more.
- 2.3 Unless otherwise indicated, BCPS shall receive sealed proposals/bids until date and time indicated on bid or as modified by addenda. Proposals/Bids must be delivered to the BCPS Office of Purchasing located at 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204. Proposals/Bids must be delivered in sealed opaque envelopes and clearly marked on the outside: Name of Bidder, Due Date and Time, Solicitation/Bid Number and Solicitation Title.
- 2.4 Brand name and model numbers are offered as a reference for bidders as to the style, size, weight, and other characteristics of the item(s) in the specifications. The use of such brand names should not be interpreted as the exclusive brand desired unless so stated. The determination of the acceptability and/or the criteria for acceptability of an alternate is solely the responsibility of BCPS. (Refer to Part II: Specifications--General Requirements and/or Part III: Technical Specifications).
- 2.5 The Bidder or their authorized representatives are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, circumstances, prerequisites, qualifications and/or specifications before submitting their proposal/bid. A Bidder's failure to become fully informed is at the Bidder's sole and complete risk of loss. The Bidder shall have no right to any damages, cost and/or any other remedy at law or equity against BCPS for any miscalculation, misunderstanding, error (either omissions or commissions), mistake, misinterpretation, and/or the failure by the Bidder to obtain an award of bid, award of contract and/or profits, fees or money from BCPS when the Bidder failed to fully inform themselves. In the case of error in extension of prices in the bid, the unit price shall govern or the entire proposal/bid may be declared non-responsive.
- 2.6 Upon evaluation of all responses, a recommendation for the award of contract will be presented to the Board of Education of Baltimore County for approval. Upon approval of the award of contract, the bidder(s) shall be notified either by mail, telephone or purchase order of their award(s). When applicable, a BCPS contract document shall also be issued.
- 2.7 The Bidder will not be allowed to offer more than one price on each item even though he may feel that he has two or more types or styles that will meet specifications. Bidder must determine which to offer. IF SAID BIDDER SHOULD SUBMIT MORE THAN ONE PRICE ON ANY ITEM, ALL PRICES FOR THAT ITEM WILL BE REJECTED AND THE PROPOSAL/BID WILL BE DECLARED NON-RESPONSIVE.

- 2.8 Where provision is made on the proposal form for bidding items on an individual, group or aggregate basis, the award will be made on whichever basis is in the best interest of the BCPS. When an aggregate bid is requested, the unit prices for each item shall be identified on the proposal sheet for accounting purposes. The unit prices in an aggregate bid should be consistent with the total quoted price for an aggregate bid. A "NO BID" on a combination of items will be permitted except as otherwise provided for on the proposal sheet and/or in PART II: SPECIFICATIONS-GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND PART III: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.
- 2.9 The product offered by the bidder shall be new, not used, and the latest version. Should a product be discontinued and/or upgraded during the course of the contract, the Award Bidder shall offer to BCPS a new alternate product meeting and/or exceeding the established specifications, under the same terms, conditions and prices as the originally offered item.
- 2.10 The Award Bidder, after award and before manufacture and/or shipment, may be required to submit working drawings or detailed descriptive data identified as acceptable to BCPS, which provide sufficient data to enable BCPS to judge the bidder's compliance with specifications.

3.0 BID PREPARATION, PROPOSAL SHEET, AND BID OPENING

- 3.1 Bidder must submit one (1) original with original signatures of the proposal using BCPS proposal forms. The bidder should make and retain one (1) copy of the bid for their files. Bids must be signed and submitted by an authorized representative of the bidder. Each bidder may attach a letter of explanation to the bid, if so desired, to provide an explanation of any detail(s) in the bid.
- 3.2 Signed proposals/bids should be returned in a sealed envelope. If the Bid is sent by mail, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate sealed opaque mailing envelope with the notation "SEALED BID ENCLOSED" on the face thereof. BCPS shall not accept any facsimile transmission to agents, representatives or employees as meeting the requirement of the sealed bid. A facsimile document shall not be considered a valid response to the bid specification.
- 3.3 Each bid must show the full business address, telephone number, and fax number of the bidder and be signed by the person or persons legally authorized to sign contracts. All correspondence concerning the bid and contract, including Notice of Award, copy of Contract, and Purchase Order, will be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the bid in the absence of written instructions from the bidder to the contrary.
- 3.4 All bidders shall be required to complete the certificates and/or affidavits, and/or acknowledgements that are incorporated into the proposal pages of this specification. Such documents are required by local, state or federal funding agencies of BCPS as part of the bidding process. The documents may include: Anti-Bribery Affidavit, Debarment Certificate, Sales Tax Certification, Minority Bidder Status, and when applicable, Asbestos Free Certification.

3.5 Bid Opening

- 3.5.1 At the public opening of the bid, the bidder's names and their prices will be read and posted.
- 3.5.2 Complete evaluations of the proposals/bids will not take place at the bid opening and no indication of award will be made. BCPS reserves the right to review all responses and analyze the results of the procurement process.
- 3.5.3 A final recommendation(s) shall be prepared for review and approval by the Board of Education of Baltimore County.
- 3.5.4 The recommended award will be available in the Office of Purchasing after the completed evaluation.
- 3.5.5 Proposals will be available for review by the public after Award of Contract by the Board of Education of Baltimore County. Upon acceptance and approval of the proposal(s)/bid(s) by the Board of Education, a binding contract shall be established between BCPS and the Award Bidder(s). Bidder(s) may contact the Office of Purchasing to arrange a date and time to review bid documents.
- 3.6 At the time of the bid opening each bidder will be presumed to have read and to be thoroughly familiar with the specifications and related documents (including all Addenda). The failure or omission of any bidder to receive or examine any form, instrument, or document, shall in no way relieve them from any obligation in respect of his bid.
- 3.7 Any omissions, errors, conflicts, or discrepancies in this document shall be called to the attention of BCPS IN WRITING at least seven (7) business days prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids.

4.0 MULTI-AGENCY PROCUREMENT

4.1 BCPS reserves the right to extend the terms and conditions of this solicitation to any and all other agencies within the state of Maryland as well as any other federal, state, municipal, county, or local governmental agency under the jurisdiction of the United States and its territories. This shall include but not limited to private schools, parochial schools, non-public schools such as charter schools, special districts, intermediate units, non-profit agencies providing services on behalf of government, and/or state, community and/or private colleges/universities that require these goods, commodities and/or services. This is conditioned upon mutual agreement of all parties pursuant to special requirements, which may be appended thereto. The supplier/contractor agrees to notify the issuing body of those entities that wish to use any contract resulting from this bid and will also provide usage information, which may be requested. A copy of the contract pricing and the bid requirements incorporated in this contract will be supplied to requesting agencies.

4.2 Each participating jurisdiction or agency shall enter into its own contract with the Award Bidder(s) and this contract shall be binding only upon the principals signing such an agreement. Invoices shall be submitted in duplicate "directly" to the ordering jurisdiction for each unit purchased. Disputes over the execution of any contract shall be the responsibility of the participating jurisdiction or agency that entered into that contract. Disputes must be resolved solely between the participating agency and the Award Bidder. BCPS does not assume any responsibility other than to obtain pricing for the specifications provided.

5.0 BID SECURITY

- If so stipulated in the Advertisement, Invitation to Bid, or supplementary instructions to bidders, each Proposal/Bid shall be accompanied by a Bid Bond in the dollar amount of five percent (5%) of the Base Bid. This Bid Bond pledges that the Bidder will enter into a Contract with BCPS on the terms stated in the Solicitation and will, if required, furnish bonds covering the faithful performance of the Contract and payment of all obligations arising hereunder. Should the Bidder refuse to enter into such Contract or fail to furnish such bonds, where required, the amount of the Bid Security/Bid Bond/Surety Bond shall be forfeited to BCPS as liquidated damages not as a penalty. This bond must be provided with the proposal/bid submission and failure to do so may be cause for rejection of the bid as being non responsive. The cost of the bid bond will be borne by the bidder(s) in all instances.
- 5.2 If a surety bond is required it shall be written on AIA Document A3I0, Bid Bond, unless otherwise provided in the Bidding Documents and the attorney in fact who executes the bond on behalf of the surety shall affix to the bond a certified and current copy of the power of attorney.
- 5.3 BCPS will have the right to retain the bid security of Bidders to whom an award is being considered until either (a) the Contract has been executed and bonds, if required, have been furnished or (b) the specified time has elapsed so that bids may be withdrawn or (c) all proposals/bids have been rejected.
- 5.4 All bonds must be underwritten by surety companies which are authorized to transact surety business in the State of Maryland. If a bonding company is used that is not authorized, the contract will be Terminated for Default or if the required bond is a bid bond, this is just cause for rejection of the bid as being non responsive.
- Performance Bonds and/or payment bonds are required for proposals/bids meeting the following conditions. The Award Bidder(s) of this contract may be required to submit either one or both of these bonds within ten (10) days of receipt of the Notice of Intent to Award and in accordance with the terms stated below. The cost of the performance bond and/or payment bond will be borne by the bidder(s) in all instances.
 - 5.5.1 Performance Bond shall be required for contracts and/or awards of construction contracts in excess of \$30,000.00 for the amount of 100% of the contract price to cover faithful performance of the contract. Simultaneously with his delivery of the executed contract, the Award

Bidder must deliver to BCPS an executed bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the accepted bid as security for the faithful performance of his contract and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, prepared on the standard bond form A 311 as approved and issued by the American Institute of Architects and having as surety thereon such surety company or companies as are authorized to transact surety business in the State of Maryland and approved by the Board of Education of Baltimore County and are authorized to transact business in this State. Performance Bond shall be made out in the name of the "Board of Education of Baltimore County". They shall be provided to the Office of Purchasing, Contracting Assistant, 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204.

- 5.5.2 Payment Bond shall be required for contracts and/or awards of construction contracts in excess of \$30,000.00 for the amount of 100% of the contract price as security for the payment of all persons performing labor and furnishing materials in connection therewith when required by BCPS. Payment Bonds shall be made out in the name of the "Board of Education of Baltimore County". They shall be provided to the Office of Purchasing, Contracting Assistant, 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204.
- 5.6 Certified checks in the amount(s) stated above will be accepted in lieu of the performance bond and payment bond only upon prior approval of the Purchasing Agent. If checks are approved for acceptance in lieu of either bond, they should be in the same amount as these bonds; be separate checks; and should clearly designate the purpose i.e., performance of payment.
 - 5.6.1 Certified checks, if submitted, will be deposited in the BCPS bank account(s). Upon successful completion of the contract, check(s) will be drawn upon the Board's bank account(s) for the full amounts of both certified checks.
 - 5.6.2 Certified checks shall be made out in the name of the "Board of Education of Baltimore County". They shall be provided to the Office of Purchasing, Contracting Assistant, 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204.
- 5.7 A letter of credit drawn on a bank with a local branch may be used in place of bonds. Letters of credit should list the beneficiary as Board of Education of Baltimore County. Letters of credit drawn on a bank shall be made out in the name of the "Board of Education of Baltimore County". They shall be provided to the Office of Purchasing, Contracting Assistant, 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204.

5.8 ACCEPTABLE BID SECURITY

5.8.1 Baltimore County Public Schools may require performance or payment bonds, or both, on supply, service, maintenance, or construction-related service contracts if the contract is expected to exceed \$100,000.

Acceptable security for bid, performance, and payment bonds is limited to a bond in a form satisfactory to Baltimore County Public Schools underwritten by a surety company authorized to do business in the State of Maryland.

Should the bidder be denied corporate surety credit for whatever reason Baltimore County Public Schools will accept an Irrevocable Trust Receipt (ITR) issued by an individual surety. This individual surety must work through insurance agents licensed in the State of Maryland, in accordance with Maryland law.

- 5.8.2 The bidder electing to use a bond provided by an individual surety shall provide evidence with the bond in a form satisfactory to Baltimore County Public Schools that the Contractor has been denied credit by a corporate surety within the past 3 years from the date the bond was submitted, based on a good faith application by the contractor, and the Individual surety transacts business only through an insurance agency licensed to do business in the State of Maryland. A letter issued and duly authorized from the conventional bonding company denoting the "reason for denial" must be submitted with the bid as "Proof of Denial", and provided that the individual surety can meet all Maryland statutory and regulatory requirements, including, but not limited to, Subtitle 6 of Title 21 of the code of Maryland regulations. Failure to meet the bonding requirement(s) shall be cause for immediate rejection of the bid.
- 5.8.3 Individual sureties for contracts and bonds shall be United States citizens. An individual surety may be accepted only if a security interest or recorded mortgage creating a lien on assets acceptable to the procurement officer is provided to the State by the individual surety and, an individual surety shall submit documents with a bond that confirms the assets supporting the bond. Acceptable assets include, but are not limited to;
 - 1. Cash or certificates of deposit,
 - 2. Cash equivalents held with a federally insured financial institution,
 - Assets that are evidenced by a security interest, including an irrevocable trust receipt issued by the financial institution or by an independent trustee in the name of Baltimore County Public Schools, and are issued in accordance with Commercial Law Article, §9-109, Annotated Code of Maryland.
- 5.8.4 Unacceptable assets include, but are not limited to:
 - 1. Notes or accounts receivable and,
 - 2. Foreign securities and,
 - 3. Real property as follows:
 - a. Real property located outside of the State and.
 - b. Real property that is the principal residence of the surety and,

- c. Real property owned concurrently, regardless of the form of co tenancy, including joint tenancy, tenancy by the entirety, and tenancy in common, except where all cotenants agree to act jointly.
- 5.8.5 Whenever a bond with a security interest in real property is submitted, the individual surety shall provide:
 - 1. Evidence of title in the form of a certificate of title prepared by an attorney or a title insurance company licensed by the State;
 - 2. Title evidence showing:
 - Fee simple title vested in the contractor or surety along with any concurrent owners;
 - Whether any real estate taxes are due and payable and, All recorded encumbrances.
- 5.8.6 Acceptability as an individual surety:
 - 1. A corporation, partnership, or other unincorporated association or firm,
 - 2. A member of a partnership, if that member is a principal obligor,
 - Stockholders of corporate principals are acceptable as individual sureties, provided their qualifications are independent of the stockholder's financial holdings.
- 5.8.7 If a bond with a security interest in personal property is submitted, the individual surety shall provide evidence of title in a form satisfactory to Baltimore County Public Schools. Except for irrevocable letters of credit and irrevocable trust receipts, Uniform Commercial Code (UCC) security interests in personal property assets shall be provided to Baltimore County Public Schools.

6.0 TIE BIDS

- In the event of tie bids, where all other factors such as past performance on purchases or bidder's service or delivery record are considered comparable, the award(s) shall be made to one of the tie bidders in the following order of preference: Baltimore County minority and/or small business enterprise vendor; the Baltimore County based bidders; out-of -county but Maryland based minority and/or small business enterprise vendor; the out-of-county but Maryland based bidder; out-of-state minority and/or small business enterprise vendor and the out-of-state based bidder.
- In the event a tie bid still exists, the Manager, Office of Purchasing or their designee, shall conduct a coin toss for selection of the potential Award Bidder(s) or seek a geographical, proportional or divided award of contract, whichever is in the best interest of BCPS.

7.0 BID PRICES

- 7.1 Any bidder may withdraw his bid submission prior to the bid opening date and time specified. After this, BCPS has a period of one-hundred twenty (120) calendar days to issue a Purchase Order or have award of contract approved by the Board of Education. The bidder agrees to retain all prices and requirements of the bid until the completion of the contract period
- 7.2 Unit Prices must be rounded off to no more than two (2) decimal places, unless otherwise specified.
- 7.3 Cash discounts will not be taken into consideration in determining a contract award. All discounts, other than prompt payment, are to be included in bid price.
- 7.4 BCPS reserves the right to accept price reductions from the award bidder during the term of this contract.
- 7.5 BCPS will not accept any proposals with bidder escalator clauses, unbalanced figures or irregular features.
- 7.6 If a Base Bid and/or Alternate amount contain contradictory terms, typewritten terms prevail over printed terms, handwritten terms prevail over both, and words prevail over numbers, the dollar amount expressed in words shall govern.

8.0 TAXES AND PERMITS

- 8.1 Materials, which are incorporated into work under formal or informal contracts, are not exempt from the Maryland State Sales or Use Tax. Award Bidders shall be responsible for paying such taxes when purchasing materials.
- 8.2 Award Bidders shall obtain and pay for any permits required.

9.0 BILLING AND PAYMENTS

9.1 All invoices are to be submitted in duplicate and mailed as specified and directed to either:

Baltimore County Public Schools Engineering & Construction 9610 Pulaski Park Drive, Suite 204 Baltimore, Maryland 21220

OR

Baltimore County Public Schools Accounts Payable 6901 Charles Street, Building "E" Towson, Maryland 21204

9.2 To expedite payments you must follow these guidelines:

- 9.2.1 All invoices must contain a valid Baltimore County Public Schools' purchase order number.
- 9.2.2 An itemized packing slip including the purchase order number and dollar amounts must accompany all supplies and materials delivered.
- 9.3 Standard BCPS payment terms are net 30 days. Payments made directly by BCPS will be made within 30 days from invoice date or receipt of goods, whichever is later. Payments made by any other agency may not meet these terms.
- 9.4 Payment in full will only be made upon completion of contract.

10.0 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE

The bid shall be construed in accordance with, and interpreted under, the laws of the State of Maryland. Any lawsuits arising out of such bid shall be filed in the appropriate State Court located in Baltimore County, Maryland.

11.0 ADDENDA

- 11.1 All changes to the bid specifications will be made through appropriate addenda issued from the Office of Purchasing.
- 11.2 Addenda will be available to all who are known by the Office of Purchasing to have received a completed set of Bid Documents.
- 11.3 Copies of Addenda will be made available for inspection wherever Bid Documents are on file.
- All changes to the bid documents will be made through the appropriate addenda. Any and all such interpretations and any supplemental instructions will be available to all project plan holders. Addenda will be issued a minimum of five (5) business days prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids, excluding date of bid opening, unless the addendum issued extends the due date of the bid. It is the bidders' responsibility to verify receipt of all addenda. Failure of any bidder to receive any addenda or interpretation shall not relieve that bidder from any obligations under this bid and as amended by all addenda. All addenda so issued shall become a part of the award and contract documents.
- 11.5 Each Bidder shall ascertain prior to submitting a Bid that they have received all Addendum issued and the Bidder shall acknowledge their receipt on the Addenda Affidavit Form. The Addenda Affidavit Form shall be completed and returned in duplicate with the bid proposal response. Failure to return the Addenda Affidavit Form may be reason for rejection of the bid.

12.0 INSURANCE

12.1 Award Bidder's LIABILITY INSURANCE

- 12.1.1 The Award Bidder shall purchase and maintain in a Company or Companies acceptable to the BCPS such insurance as will protect him from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from the Award Bidder's operations under the Contract, whether such operations be by himself or by any Subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable:
 - .1 claims under workers' or workmen's compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee benefit acts;
 - .2 claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of his employees;
 - .3 claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than his employees;
 - .4 claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage, which are sustained (1) by any person as results of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by the Award Bidder, or (2) by any other person;
 - .5 claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting there from:
 - .6 claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle; and
 - .7 claims for damages because of employee dishonesty by any of the Award Bidder's employees.
- 12.1.2 The insurance required by Subparagraph 12.1.1 shall be written for not less than the following, or greater if required by law:
 - .1 Comprehensive General Liability

Bodily Injury: \$1,000,000 each occurrence--\$1,000,000 aggregate Property Damage: \$500,000 each occurrence--\$500,000 aggregate or if such insurance is written with a combined single limit, not less than \$1,500,000 each occurrence, \$1,500,000 aggregate. Such insurance shall include:

- .1 Premises/Operations:
- .2 Independent Contractor's;
- .3 Products/Completed Operations to be maintained for two years after final payment:
- .4 Contractual Liability including protection for the Award Bidder from claims arising out of liability in connection with this contract:

- .5 Personal Injury Liability including coverage for offenses related to employment;
- .6 Explosion, Collapse and Underground hazards as applicable
- .2 Comprehensive Automobile Liability

Liability - \$1,000,000 Personal Injury Protection - Statutory Uninsured Motorists - Statutory

- .3 Workers' Compensation--Maryland Benefits Statutory Employer's Liability \$100,000
- .4 Blanket Fidelity
- .5 **Prime Contractor** Pollution Liability:

Each Occurrence Limit: \$1,000,000 General Aggregate Limit: \$1,000,000

Claims Made or Occurrence Forms are acceptable

- 12.1.3 Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the BCPS shall be filed with the BCPS prior to commencement of the Work. The Certificates of Insurance will state that such insurance is in force and cannot be cancelled or released except upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Board of Education of Baltimore County. The Certificate of insurance must name the Board of Education of Baltimore County as an additional insured.
- 12.2 BCPS'S LIABILITY INSURANCE--BCPS shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining its own liability insurance and, at its option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect him against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract. Baltimore County Board of Education is a member of the Board of Education Group Insurance Pool (the Pool), which provides property self-insurance. Coverage is effective July 1 through June 30 annually. The Pool is a self-insurance mechanism, authorized under Maryland law, by which boards of education pool together to provide property self-insurance coverage.

The Board of Education of Baltimore County is subject to the provisions of Md. Code Ann., Educ. '4-105 and Md. Code Ann., Cts. & Jud. Proc. '5-518 limiting liability to \$100,000.00. Pursuant to the provisions of the aforementioned statute, the Board of Education of Baltimore County is a member of the Maryland Association of Board of Education Group Insurance Pool for comprehensive liability coverage to \$100,000.00.

12.3 PROPERTY INSURANCE

12.3.1 Unless otherwise provided, the BCPS shall purchase and maintain property insurance, subject to a deductible of \$10,000 to be assumed by the BCPS, upon the entire Work at the site to the full insurable value

thereof. This insurance shall include the interests of the BCPS, the Award Bidder, Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors in the Work and shall insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and shall include "all risk" insurance for physical loss or damage including, vandalism and malicious mischief. If the BCPS does not intend to purchase such insurance for the full insurable value of the entire Work, he shall inform the Award Bidder in writing prior to commencement of the Work. The Award Bidder may then affect insurance, which will protect the interests of him, his Subcontractors and the Sub-subcontractors in the Work, and by appropriate Change Order the cost thereof shall be charged to the BCPS. If the Award Bidder is damaged by failure of the BCPS to purchase or maintain such insurance and to so notify the Award Bidder, then the BCPS shall bear all reasonable costs properly attributable thereto. The BCPS does not maintain insurance of any kind on tools, equipment, temporary offices, sheds, shacks and other property of the Award Bidder or of his employees, nor materials or supplies stored away from the job site. It shall be the complete responsibility of the Award Bidder to provide for his own protection and that of his employees against any losses of such tools. equipment and other property, and materials and supplies stored away from the job site.

- 12.3.2 The Award Bidder shall purchase and maintain boiler and machinery insurance if this contract includes installation, modification or repair of such equipment. This insurance shall be at limits of not less than \$500,000, covering all boilers and other equipment not covered for explosion by standard property insurance policies. This insurance shall include the interests of the BCPS, the Award Bidder, Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors in the Work.
- 12.3.3 Any loss insured under Subparagraph 12.3.1 is to be adjusted with the BCPS and made payable to the BCPS as trustee for the insured, as their interests may appear, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause and of Subparagraph 12.3.8. The Award Bidder shall pay each Subcontractor a just share of any insurance moneys received by the Award Bidder, and by appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, shall require each Subcontractor to make payments to his Sub-subcontractors in similar manner.
- 12.3.4 BCPS maintains a copy of all policies, which are available to the Award Bidder for inspection before an exposure to loss may occur.
- 12.3.5 If the Award Bidder requests in writing that insurance for risks other than those described in Subparagraph 12.3.1 or other special hazards are included in the property insurance policy, the BCPS shall, if possible, include such insurance, and the cost thereof shall be charged to the Award Bidder by appropriate Change Order.
- 12.3.6 If required in writing by any party in interest, the BCPS as trustee shall, upon the occurrence of an insured loss, give bond for the proper performance of his duties. He shall deposit in a separate account any money so received, and he shall distribute it in accordance with such

- agreement as the parties in interest may reach, or in accordance with an award by arbitration in which case the procedure shall be as provided. If after such loss no other special agreement is made, replacement of damaged work shall be covered by an appropriate Change Order.
- 12.3.7 BCPS as trustee shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers unless one of the parties in interest shall object in writing within five days after the occurrence of loss to the BCPS's exercise of this power, and if such objection be made, arbitrators shall be chosen. The BCPS or trustee shall, in that case, make settlement with the insurers in accordance with the directions of such arbitrators. If distribution of the insurance proceeds by arbitration is required, the arbitrators will direct such distribution.
- 12.3.8 BCPS and Award Bidder waive all rights against (1) each other and the Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, agents and employees each of the other, and (2) the Architect and separate contractors, if any, and their Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, agents and employees, for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by insurance obtained pursuant to this Paragraph 12.3 or any other property insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance held by the BCPS as trustee. The foregoing waiver afforded the Architect, his agents and employees shall not extend to the liability of the Architect, his agents or employees, arising out of (1) the preparation or approval of maps, drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, change orders, designs or specifications, or (2) the giving of or the failure to give directions or instructions by the Architect, his agents or employees providing such giving or failure to give is the primary cause of the injury or damage. The BCPS or the Award Bidder, as appropriate, shall require of the Architect. separate Contractors, Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for validity, similar waivers of each in favor of all other parties enumerated in this Subparagraph 12.3.6.
- 12.3.9 If BCPS finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the facility where work is being done prior to Substantial Completion thereof, such occupancy shall not commence prior to a time mutually agreed to by the BCPS and Award Bidder and to which the insurance company or companies providing the property insurance have consented by endorsement of the policy or policies. This insurance shall not be cancelled or lapsed on account of such partial occupancy. Consent of the Award Bidder and of the insurance company or companies to such occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld.

12.4 Loss of Use Insurance

The BCPS, at its option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will insure him against loss of use of his property due to fire or other hazards, however caused.

12.5 Evidence of Insurance

- 12.5.1 Prior to the award of contract, the Award Bidder is required to submit a certificate of insurance evidencing Worker's Compensation and Employer Liability Insurance in the amounts required above, and in addition, this certificate will indicate the amounts of insurance carried by the Bidder of the following types: Comprehensive General Liability Insurance, Comprehensive Automobile Insurance, Excess Liability Insurance, and any other insurance coverage maintained by the Award Bidder. The Certificates of Insurance will state that such insurance is in force and cannot be cancelled or released except upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Board of Education of Baltimore County. The Certificate of insurance must name the Board of Education of Baltimore County as an additional insured.
- 12.5.2 All Required Insurance Coverage must be underwritten by insurers allowed to do business in the State of Maryland and acceptable to the Board. The insurers must also have a policyholder's rating of "B" or better, and a financial size of "Class VII" or better in the latest evaluation by A. M. Best Company. The board hereby grants specific approval for the acquisition of worker's compensation and employer's liability insurance from the Injured Worker's Insurance Fund of Maryland.

13.0 **DIRECT DAMAGES**

In the event the Award Bidder fails to deliver the goods or services of the contract in accordance with the specifications, BCPS reserves the right to purchase the goods/services on the open market. All expenses incurred by BCPS as a result of such purchases will be deducted from the monies owed or monies which may become due.

14.0 TERMINATIONS/SUSPENSIONS FROM CONTRACT

- 14.1 Termination by BCPS for Cause
 - 14.1.1 BCPS may terminate the Contract if the Award Bidder:
 - .1 persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;
 - .2 fails to make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective agreements between the Award Bidder and the Subcontractors;
 - .3 persistently disregards laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a public authority having jurisdiction; or
 - .4 otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision Of the Contract Documents such, but not limited to: (I) Maintain progress in accordance with Project schedule; (2) Prevents other contractors from meeting their scheduled progress; (3) has unsatisfactorily performed the contract.

- 14.1.2 When any of the above reasons exist, BCPS, after consultation with the Construction Manager, and after determining that sufficient cause exists to justify such action, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of BCPS and after giving the Award Bidder and the Award Bidder's surety, if any, seven days written notice, terminate employment of the Award Bidder and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety take the following actions:
 - .1 take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Award Bidder
 - .2 accept assignment of subcontracts and
 - .3 finish the Work by whatever reasonable method BCPS may deem expedient.
- 14.1.3 When BCPS terminates the Award Bidder for one of the reasons stated above, the surety shall not, without the written consent of BCPS, retain the Award Bidder for the Work and the Award Bidder shall not, without written consent of BCPS, perform any of the Work.
- 14.1.4 When BCPS terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Award Bidder shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.
- 14.1.5 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for the Construction Manager's and Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby, such excess shall be paid to the Award Bidder. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Award Bidder shall pay the difference to BCPS. The amount to be paid to the Award Bidder or BCPS, as the case may be, shall, upon application, be certified by the Architect after consultation with the Construction Manager and this obligation for payment shall survive termination of the Contract.
- 14.2 Termination for Convenience: In the event that BCPS determines to terminate this contract for convenience, then BCPS will provide the Contractor with written notice of that termination for convenience. The parties agree that the provisions of this contract, which would be their nature survive final acceptance of the work or service described and required by the contract and bid documents, shall remain in full force and effect after any termination for convenience in order to implement the following provisions.
 - 14.2.1 In the event of such a termination for convenience, the Contractor agrees to waive any claims for damages including, but not limited to anticipated profits, mark-ups or payroll reimbursements. The Contractor agrees that upon such termination for convenience the sole right and/or remedy available to the Contractor will be the right of the Contractor to be paid the actual cost of all work properly performed by the Contractor

prior to the date of the termination. The Contractor further agrees that it will only be entitled to payment for work not previously paid for in other sums of money already received by the Contractor under any of the terms and conditions of this agreement. If at the date of such termination that Contractor has properly purchased, prepared or fabricated, off the site, any goods for subsequent incorporation in the work, and if the Contractor delivers such goods to the site or to such other place as BCPS shall reasonably direct, then the Contractor shall be paid for such goods or materials.

- 14.2.2 Upon receipt of such notice the Contractor shall, unless notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue the work on that date and, to the extent specified in the notice, place no further order or subcontracts for materials, equipment, services or facilities except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of the work, as is not discontinued: promptly make every reasonable effort to procure cancellation upon terms satisfactory to BCPS of all orders and subcontracts to the extent that related to the performance of the discontinued portion of the work, and shall thereafter do only such work as may be necessary to preserve and protect work already in progress and to protect materials, plants and equipment on the site or in transit thereto.
- 14.2.3 Upon such termination, the obligations of the contract shall continue as to portions of the work already performed and as to bona fide obligations assumed by the Contractor prior to the date of termination.
- 14.2.4 The Contractor agrees that the Contractor does not have a right to termination for convenience.
- 14.3 BCPS reserves the right to terminate this contract, in whole or in part, because of non-appropriation of funds by the fiscal authorities. In the event of a termination for non-appropriation of funds, the provisions of Paragraphs 14.2.1, 14.2.2 and 14.2.3 above shall be controlling.

15.0 DRUG, TOBACCO, AND ALCOHOL

- All Baltimore County Board of Education and BCPS properties are "drug, tobacco, and alcohol free zones" as designated by federal, state and local laws and by Board of Education policy. Neither the Contractor nor any of the Contractor's employees, subcontractors or agents will be permitted to have any illegal drugs; tobacco products; or alcohol products while performing their duties under this Contract and while working on Board of Education and BCPS property. Use or possession of illegal drugs, tobacco products, or alcohol products on school property will result in immediate removal of the offending individual(s). BCPS reserves the right to issue, at a minimum, a verbal directive to the offending individual(s) to comply with this prohibition and to cease use. The Contractor will be notified in writing of any violation(s).
- 15.2 Any subsequent offense by any individual or individuals may result in a permanent ban from the project for the offender(s), with appropriate formal notice to the Contractor. BCPS reserves the right to document any offenses in the

Contractor's file maintained by the Office of Purchasing. BCPS further reserves the right to address any substance use infraction by any means it deems necessary, up to and including termination of the Contract. In the event that a Contract is terminated as a result of a substance abuse infraction, BCPS will provide an "unsatisfactory" reference when references are requested.

16.0 APPEAL PROCESS

- 16.1 BCPS intends the appeal process to resolve contract disputes in a manner consistent with the effort to promote fair and open competition. Any bidder objecting to the recommendation for award or the award of contract may appeal the action to the Office of Purchasing by formally notifying the designated Purchasing Agent in writing no later than seven calendar days after the basis for appeal is known. The bidder shall have an opportunity to meet and/or talk with the Purchasing Agent to present the issues. A formal written response to the appeal shall be issued in a timely manner.
 - 16.1.1 For an appeal of recommendation of award of contract, the decision of the Purchasing Agent shall be reviewed by the Manager, Office of Purchasing. The Manager, Office of Purchasing may approve, modify or disapprove the decision of the Purchasing Agent. In disapproving, the decision, the appeal will be remanded to the Purchasing Agent for resolution. In all other cases, the decision of the Manager, Office of Purchasing is the final action by BCPS. The decision shall include a statement of the decision, with supporting material. Bidders receiving a decision on an appeal of recommendation of award shall forfeit the right to continue the appeal process of the award of contract.
 - 16.1.2 In the event a bidder determines cause to appeal an award of contract, which has been approved by the Board of Education of Baltimore County, said action must be filed in writing to the Executive Director, Division of Physical Facilities. This action shall occur not later than seven days from the date of award of contract. The Executive Director, Division of Physical Facilities reserves the right to meet with the protesting Bidder as a part of the appeal investigation. A formal written decision will be issued by the Executive Director, Division of Physical Facilities in a timely manner.
 - 16.1.3 Should the Bidder wish to pursue the appeal of award of contract further, administrative procedures have been established for such action, which will be outlined at the time the appeal is made.
- 16.2 Appeal of Suspension or Termination.
 - 16.2.1 Any Award Bidder objecting to their Suspension or Termination may protest the action to the Department of Physical Facilities by formally notifying the Executive Director, Department of Physical Facilities in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the notification. The Award Bidder shall have an opportunity to meet with the Executive Director, Department of Physical Facilities, or his designee, to present his issues.

- 16.2.2 If the Award Bidder is unsatisfied with the outcome of this meeting, then the Award Bidder may utilize the administrative process to further the appeal.
- 16.3 BCPS reserves the right to proceed with the work under the contract during the appeal process if BCPS determines that this is in the best interest of BCPS, in the opinion of BCPS.
- 16.4 Appeal of Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds or for loss of Appropriated funds: NONE
- 16.5 Any costs incurred in the appeal process will be borne by the bidder(s) in all instances.

17.0 <u>LITIGATION PROCEDURES</u>

- 17.1 All questions involving interpretation of the Contract Documents and of a value of less than \$10,000, which cannot be settled by agreement between the BCPS Project Manager and the Award Bidder shall be referred to the next highest department level manager for a decision. If the Award Bidder is not satisfied with the decision rendered, the matter shall, within thirty (30) days from that decision, the matter shall be referred to the Baltimore County Attorney or their designee sitting as Arbitrator with all of those rights, responsibilities, and duties mandated pursuant to Section 3-201, et seq., Court and Judicial Proceedings Article, Annotated Code of Maryland. Said decision rendered shall be final, subject only to Section 3-223 and 3-224, Court and Judicial Proceedings Article, Annotated Code of Maryland.
- 17.2 All questions involving interpretation of the Contract Documents which involve a value of \$10,000 or more, and cannot be resolved between the Award Bidder and BCPS <u>Manager</u> shall be referred to the <u>Departmental Administrator</u> for a review. If the Award Bidder is not satisfied with the decision rendered, the matter may be appealed to the BCPS, <u>Department's Executive Director</u>.
- 17.3 If the Award Bidder is unsatisfied with the decision of the <u>Executive Director</u>, then the Award Bidder may utilize administrative procedures established by the Board of Education for such action.

17.4 Waiver of Jury Trial

The Vendor and board hereby waive trial by jury in any action or proceeding to which the board and/or the Vendor are parties arising out of or in any way pertaining to this agreement. It is agreed and understood that this waiver constitutes a waiver of trial by jury of all claims against all parties to such actions or proceedings, including claims against parties who are not parties to this agreement. This waiver is knowingly, willingly and voluntarily made by the board and the Vendor and the board and the Vendor hereby represent and warrant that no representations of fact or opinion have been made by an individual to induce this waiver of trial by jury or to in any way modify or nullify its effect. The board and the Vendor further represent and warrant that they have been represented or

have had the opportunity to be represented, in the signing of this agreement and in the making of this waiver by legal counsel, selected of their own free will, and that they have had the opportunity to discuss this waiver with counsel.

18.0 DISCRIMINATION

- 18.1 The Award Bidder will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color or national origin. The Award Bidder will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, creed, color or national origin. Such action shall include but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training including apprenticeship. The Award Bidder agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants, notices provided by the BCPS setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- 18.2 The Award Bidder will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice to be provided by the BCPS advising the said labor union or workers' representative of the Award Bidder's commitments under this section, and the Award Bidder shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- 18.3 The Award Bidder shall furnish, if requested by BCPS, a compliance report concerning their employment practices and policies in order for BCPS to ascertain compliance with the special provisions of this contract concerning discrimination in employment.
- 18.4 In the event the Award Bidder is deemed noncompliant with the nondiscrimination clause of this contract, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the Award Bidder may be declared ineligible for further/future BCPS' work.
- 18.5 The Award Bidder shall include the special provisions outlined herein, pertaining to nondiscrimination in employment in every subcontract or purchase order utilized by him in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this contract, so that such nondiscrimination in employment provisions shall be binding on each Subcontractor.

19.0 GENERAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS

The standard printed form A-201, General Conditions of the American Institute of Architects, current edition, will form the General Conditions of the contract.

20.0 BUY AMERICAN STEEL ACT

Bidders shall comply in every respect with Article 21, Section 17 – 301 to Section 17 – 306, Annotated Code of Maryland.

21.0 AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT

BCPS routinely opens all sealed bids in a public setting identified within the language of each specification. If a prospective bidder has special needs, the bidder shall contact the BCPS at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of the published bid opening date and time to arrange for such services.

22.0 NON-HIRING OF EMPLOYEES BY AWARD BIDDER OR BCPS

- 22.1 No employee of the BCPS or any unit thereof, whose duties as such employee include matters relating to or affecting the subject matter of this contract, shall, while so employed, become or be an employee of the party or parties hereby contracting with the BCPS or any unit thereof.
- 22.2 No employee of the Award Bidder or any unit thereof, whose duties as such employee include matters relating to or affecting the subject matter of this contract, shall, while so employed, become or be an employee of the party or parties hereby contracting with the Award Bidder or any unit thereof.

23.0 FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Award Bidder shall comply with the provisions of Section 13-221 of the State Finance and Procurement Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, which requires that every business that enters into contracts, leases or other agreements with the State of Maryland or its agencies during a calendar year under which the business is to receive in the aggregate \$100,000 or more, shall within 30 days of the time when the aggregate value of these contracts, leases or other agreements reached \$100,000, file with the Secretary of State of Maryland certain specified information to include disclosure of beneficial ownership of the business.

24.0 POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE

The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Election Law Article §§14-104 through 14-108 of the Annotated Code of Maryland, which require that every person that enters into contracts, leases, or other agreements with the State of Maryland, including its agencies or a political subdivision of the State, during a calendar year under which the person receives in the aggregate \$100,000 or more, shall file with the Secretary of State of Maryland certain specified information to include disclosure of political contributions in excess of \$500 to a candidate for elective office in any primary or general election, as required by §14-104.

25.0 RETENTION OF RECORDS

The Award Bidder shall retain and maintain all records and documents relating to this contract for three (3) years after final payment by BCPS hereunder or any applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, and shall make them available for inspection and audit by authorized representatives of BCPS or designed, at all reasonable times.

26.0 ANNULMENTS AND RESERVATIONS

- 26.1 BCPS reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and re-advertise for other bids.
- 26.2 BCPS reserves the right to waive technical defects within submittals.
- 26.3 BCPS reserves the right to order the said equipment, materials, supplies or services as described within the specifications, and also reserves the right not to order any.
- 26.4 BCPS may conduct any necessary investigation to determine the ability of the bidder to perform the work, and the bidder shall furnish to the BCPS all such information and data requested. BCPS reserves the right to reject any proposal if the evidence submitted by the bidder or investigation of such bidder fails to satisfy BCPS that such bidder is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the Contract and to complete all stipulated requirements. Conditional proposals will not be accepted.
- 26.5 BCPS reserves the right to annul any contract, if in its opinion there shall be a failure, at any time, to perform faithfully any of its stipulations, or in case of any willful attempt to impose upon BCPS, materials, products and/or workmanship inferior to that required by the Award Bidder, and any action taken in pursuance of this latter stipulation shall not affect or impair any rights or claims of BCPS to damages for the breach of any covenant of the contract by the Award Bidder.
 - 26.5.1 Should the Award Bidder fail to comply with the conditions of this contract or fail to complete the required work within the time stipulated in the contract, except for circumstances beyond their control, including but not limited to Act of GOD, war, flood, governmental restrictions or the inability to obtain transportation, BCPS reserve the right to purchase these in the open market, or to complete the required work and receive liquidated damages as specified in this document.
 - 26.5.2 Should the Award Bidder be prevented from furnishing any item or items, or from completing the required work included in the contract, by reason of such failures caused by circumstances beyond their control, including but not limited to Act of GOD, war, flood, governmental action or the inability to obtain transportation, BCPS reserve the right to withdraw these from the operation of this contract without incurring further liabilities.
- 26.6 BCPS reserves the right to issue Blanket Purchase Orders to encumber, i.e. make available without obligating to spend, certain monies for Award Bidder's services. The Blanket Purchase Order dollar value does not in any way represent a guarantee of potential contracts, jobs, work assignments or monies during the course of the contract. The allocation of funds is at the discretion of BCPS.

- 26.7 BCPS reserves the right to discussions resulting in best and final offers.
 - 26.7.1 Based on the Evaluation Committee's initial review of the proposals, the issuing office may invite, without cost to BCPS, ranking finalists to make a presentation of their proposal and their capabilities as further consideration in the selection process. BCPS reserves the right to recommend a Bidder for contract award on the basis of initial proposals without discussions or negotiations. However, Bidders should not rely on having an opportunity, during any negotiation, to change their offer. Discussions or negotiations may be conducted with all responsible Bidders whose proposals are initially classified as reasonably acceptable for award.
 - 26.7.2 Should BCPS determine that further discussions would be in the best interests of the BCPS, the Purchasing Agent shall establish procedures and schedules for conducting discussions and will notify qualified Bidders.
 - 26.7.3 When in its best interest, BCPS may permit all responsible offers whose proposals are classified as reasonably susceptible for award to revise their initial proposal by submitting Best and Final Offers.
- 26.8 Licenses for boilers, equipment or buildings are the responsibility of BCPS and shall not be part of this Agreement.
- 26.9 BCPS shall have the right to reject any or all Bids, reject a Bid not accompanied by a required bid security or by other data required by the Bidding Documents, or reject a Bid which is in any way incomplete or irregular.

27.0 DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS

- 27.1 All deliveries must be scheduled, received and will be the responsibility of the Award Bidder and deliveries by "Drop Shipment" from other sources will not be accepted by BCPS.
- 27.2 All supplies and/or materials must be held by the Award Bidder until needed at the site, unless they can be stored in the area in which the work is to be done and that area has been closed to occupant usage. The Award Bidder shall obtain the permission of the using institution's representative regarding any needed storage of materials and equipment. Such storage shall be done in such a manner as not to interfere with the building schedule. The Award Bidder shall be responsible for any and all accidents caused by negligence from this source. BCPS does not accept responsibility for losses of material or equipment, regardless of approval to store, in any institution's facilities or grounds.

28.0 INSPECTIONS

28.1 BCPS reserves the right to have inspectors on the premises of the manufacturer during the process of manufacture of any products being furnished under this contract for as long as may be considered necessary by BCPS. All expenses of the inspectors shall be borne by BCPS.

28.2 The presence of the inspectors at the site of manufacture of the products shall not relieve the Award Bidders of responsibility for faulty workmanship of materials which may be discovered at any time after delivery and prior to final acceptance in accordance with the specifications. In case of factory inspection of items being manufactured for BCPS, every facility shall be afforded inspectors by the manufacturers for the prosecution of their work.

29.0 COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

- 29.1 The bidder shall abide by and comply with the true intent of the specifications and not take advantage of any unintentional error or omission, but shall fully complete every part as the true intent and meaning of the drawings and specifications as described.
- 29.2 The Award Bidder, after award and prior to starting work may be required to submit working drawings or detailed descriptive data identified as acceptable to BCPS, which provide sufficient data to enable BCPS to judge the Award Bidder's compliance with the specifications.
- 29.3 Where the requirements of the specifications call for higher grade and are not in conflict with the laws, ordinances, etc., the specifications shall govern.
- 29.4 Where the requirements of the laws, ordinances, etc., are mandatory, they shall govern.
- 29.5 In case of any apparent conflict between the specifications and such laws, ordinances, etc., the Award Bidder shall call the attention of the applicable BCPS designee(s) to such conflict for a decision before proceeding with any work.

30.0 GUARANTEE AND WARRANTY

- 30.1 The Award Bidder shall unconditionally guarantee the materials and workmanship of all equipment and materials furnished by the Contractor, its subcontractors or suppliers for a period of at least TWO (2) YEARS from the date of acceptance and/or substantial completion of the installation by BCPS. If the manufacturer warrants equipment for a period longer than two years the Contractor shall pass through this time frame to BCPS. All warranty work shall be accomplished to the satisfaction of the owner within SEVENTY TWO (72) HOURS of notification of the work to be done.
- 30.2 In the event the Award Bidder fails to repair, replace, adjust, rectify, remedy, correct or complete the items, defects, deterioration, faulty design or installation and/or un-workmanlike performance, then BCPS may have the right to secure the services of another contractor to correct the work or complete the performance required by the award of this bid. The Award Bidder shall be solely responsible for any (and all) cost, expenses and monies due the new contractor plus ten percent (10%) for BCPS to reimburse the Board for the expenses of obtaining a new contractor.
- 30.3 The Award Bidder must act as the manufacturer's agent for all warranty claims.

31.0 SUBCONTRACTORS

- 31.1 All subcontractors, prior to their use by the Award Bidder in any BCPS facility, must be approved by BCPS. Award Bidder shall submit with their bid a list of subcontractors that they will employ and utilize for BCPS work. The responsibility for updating this list is the Award Bidders and utilization of a BCPS non-approved subcontractor is grounds for suspension or termination.
- 31.2 The Award Bidder shall give their constant personal attention to the faithful execution of this contract, shall keep the same under their own control, and shall not assign by power of attorney or otherwise, the work or any part thereof without the previous written consent of Coordinator of Purchasing. The Award Bidder shall provide the name of the subcontractor(s) he intends employing, the portion of the materials/labor to be furnished, their place of business, and such other information as requested by the bid specifications and/or BCPS. The information may be used in considering the potential performance capabilities of the subcontractor(s).
- 31.3 The Award Bidder shall not, without prior written consent of BCPS, assign any of the moneys payable under the contract.

32.0 AWARD BIDDER'S RESPONSIBILITY

- 32.1 Award Bidders shall be required under Article 56, Section 270(4), of the Annotated Code of Maryland, to provide proof of Certificate of Registry.
- 32.2 Award Bidders are responsible to protect all existing and newly installed work, materials, equipment and landscaping. Any BCPS property damaged shall be replaced or repaired to the satisfaction of BCPS.
- 32.3 Award Bidders are responsible for having all employees sign-in and sign-out at the work site. Use the appropriate form provided by the school office.
- 32.4 Award Bidders are responsible for daily removal of all debris from the work site and to keep the work site tidy as work progresses. Under no circumstance shall Award Bidders use BCPS garbage and/or recycling dumpsters to dispose of debris.
- 32.5 At no cost to the Award Bidder, BCPS shall provide and pay for water, heat, telephone and utilities used or consumed by the Award Bidder during the performance of the work or services hereunder if they are currently available at the work site. However, the Award Bidder shall install and pay for the costs of any temporary facilities not already in existence that will be required during construction for accessing such water, heat and utilities.
- 32.6 Award Bidders are responsible for coordinating planned interruptions of utility service with BCPS.
- 32.7 Award Bidders are responsible to notify BCPS of any occurrence of pre-existing condition that would prevent the completion of work as Specified. Any changes

- in the scope of work and any resulting changes in cost shall be agreed to in writing by BCPS. BCPS assumes no responsibility for verbal changes in the scope of work or cost.
- 32.8 Award Bidders may be responsible at the discretion of BCPS to complete the American Institute of Architects (AIA) Abbreviated form of Agreement Between BCPS and Award Bidder.
- 32.9 Award Bidders are responsible to provide their own materials, tools and equipment. BCPS assumes no responsibility for vandalism or theft of Award Bidder s property.
- 32.10 At the time of the opening of bids each bidder will be presumed to have inspected the site and to have read and to be thoroughly familiar with the Solicitation, Specification, Plans and Contract Documents (including all Addenda). The failure or omission of any bidder to receive or examine any form, instrument, or document, shall in no way relieve any bidder from any obligation in respect of his bid.
- 32.11 Award Bidder shall be responsible for ensuring that employees assigned to BCPS sites, either employed by Award Bidder or their Sub-contractor(s), have successfully passed a criminal background check. The Award Bidder shall advise the BCPS of the intention to use any employees, including sub-contractor employees that are hired or obtained from any penal pre-release or work-release programs. In the event such employees are used, notification to BCPS shall include name and violation for each individual. The contractor shall take reasonable precautions when selecting such individuals and provide whatever safeguards are necessary for effective supervision. Such employees are not permitted inside school buildings when the nature of the contract is for outside work.
- 32.12 In accordance with Board of Education Policy 3231 and Superintendent's Rule 3231, the effective management of vendors conducting business with the Baltimore County Public Schools includes a process to evaluate vendor performance under a contract for the purchase of goods, performance of service, consulting, construction, construction management, building renovation, or improvement of facilities. The results of vendor performance appraisals may be used in subsequent evaluations of a vendor's ability to perform on future contracts. Vendors should receive feedback on their performance, whether it is positive or negative. In the case of negative feedback, the vendor shall be informed of why their performance is unsatisfactory and what corrective action is required.

Vendor performance evaluations are required for all BCPS contracts for construction, construction management, building renovation, or facility improvement that exceed \$500,000. Vendor performance evaluations shall be completed by the Office of Physical Facilities during the contract, and a final evaluation shall be prepared within 30 days of substantial completion of the contract. More frequent evaluations may be submitted if necessary to facilitate proper management of the vendor. The Office of Purchasing may request a vendor performance evaluation for any contract with a value less than \$500,000.

For large, long-term projects, BCPS may use an internet and email based system to collect evaluations from key participants (vendors, contractors, subcontractors, designers, etc.) on its projects. This system is designed to facilitate open, detailed communication about any technical, communications, administrative or management issues that arise during the course of the contract, as well as to insure that potential problems are specifically identified and addressed as early in the contract period as possible (See PART II: SPECIFICATIONS--GENERAL REQUIREMENTS for further guidance).

32.13 Award Bidders must submit semi-annual statistical reports via email in an Excel format prescribed by BCPS for the periods of January to June and July to December each year. Reports are due, without notice, to BCPS on August 1 and February 1, respectively, following the end of each six-month period. Failure of the BCPS to remind Award Bidders that the reports are due does not relieve the BCPS of the responsibility of submitting the reports on time. The semi-annual reports must show the dollars spent in connection with this contract by the participating entities and may show other reporting categories mutually agreed upon by BCPS and Award Bidders. Failure to submit the reports on time may constitute unsatisfactory performance under the terms of the contract.

33.0 SAFETY AND CODE REQUIREMENTS

All materials and labor shall comply with the following requirements:

- 33.1 Award Bidder shall comply with all Federal, State, and Local laws, ordinances and regulations pertaining to work under their charge and these shall be construed as the minimum requirements of these specifications.
- 33.2 Award Bidder certifies that their firm adheres to or follows non-discriminatory practices with respect to the employment of promotion of personnel without regard to color, creed, race, sex, or national origin.
- 33.3 Award Bidder shall provide all equipment and machinery furnished and delivered to BCPS complying with the Safety regulations as required by OSHA and the Maryland State Safety Health Act known as MOSHA meeting the CFR-1910 MOSH Standard.
- 33.4 Award Bidder shall submit Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for all supplies, materials, equipment or any other substances furnished and/or installed under this proposal in accordance with OSHA Hazardous Communication Standard 29 CFR 1910.101, 29 CFR 1910.1200 and 29 CFR 1926.58 or any other applicable state, federal, or local regulation. The Award Bidder must submit MSDS sheets to each school or facility that receives any such supplies, materials, equipment or any other substances furnished and/or installed by the Award Bidder. Failure on the part of the Award Bidder to furnish the necessary MSDS sheets will result in the withholding of final payment.

33.5 Standards are as defined in the latest issue from the following:

AABC Associated Air Balance Council

ADC Air Diffusion Council
AGA American Gas Association
ADA American's With Disabilities Act

AMCA Air Moving and Conditioning Association
ANSI American National Standards Institute
ARI Air Conditioning and Refrigeration

ASHRAE American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air

Conditioning Engineers

ASME American Society of Mechanical Engineers
ASTM American Society of Testing and Materials

AWS American Welding Society

AWWA American Water Works Association

BOCA Building Officials and Code Administrators
COBA Council of American Building Officials
CPSC Consumer Product Safety Commission

CS Commercial Standard

FM Factory Mutual

IBR Institute of Boiler and Radiator Manufacturers
IEEE Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers

MSSP Manufacturers Standards Society of the Valve and Fittings

Industry

NEC National Electrical Code

NEMA National Electrical Manufacturers Association

NFPA National Fire Protection Association

SMACNA Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors National

Association

TEMA Tubular Exchanger Manufacturers Association
TIMA Thermal Insulation Manufacturers Association

UL Underwriters Laboratories

- 33.6 No new, replacement or restoration materials shall contain asbestos or asbestiform minerals in an amount greater than 0.0% as determined by polarized light microscopy (PLM) as prescribed in Federal Regulation 40 CFR 763.87. For ceiling tile and materials that are tightly bound (e.g. floor tile, roofing asphalt and felts, adhesive/mastic, caulk, glaze, etc.) and for which PLM analysis is not conclusive, transmission electron microscopy must be used for analysis. If no commercially available material meets this criterion, written authorization for use of the material shall be obtained from the BCPS Project Manager. All materials delivered to or used on BCPS property must be accompanied by a manufacturer's certification to be asbestos free, based upon criterion above. The Material Safety Data Sheet may not be used for this purpose.
- 33.7 No new, replacement or restoration materials shall contain lead in an amount greater than 0.00 milligrams per liter or 0.00 milligrams per kilogram. If no commercially available material meets either criterion, written authorization for use of the material shall be obtained from the BCPS Project Manager.

- 33.8 All Baltimore County codes and regulations including the latest edition of <u>the</u> International Building Code are relevant.
- 33.9 Public Law 91-596 dated December 29, 1970, entitled Occupational and Health Act of 1970.
- 33.10 Award Bidder shall insure that all modifications address the provisions of the ADA.

34.0 CONCEALED OR UNKNOWN CONDITIONS

In the performance of any work or services, if the Award Bidder encounters conditions at the Facilities that are (1) subsurface if otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated on the drawings furnished by BCPS or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those conditions normally found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in the construction activities if the type and character as that which is described, then the Award Bidder shall notify BCPS of such conditions promptly, prior to significantly disturbing the same, and in no event later than two (2) days after the first observation the conditions. If such conditions differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Award Bidder's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work or services, the Award Bidder shall be entitled to, and BCPS shall consent in writing to, an equitable adjustment in the amounts paid to the Award Bidder pursuant to this Agreement, the times for performance or both.

35.0 INDEMNIFICATION

- 35.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Award Bidder shall indemnify and hold harmless the Baltimore County Public Schools and the Baltimore County Board of Education and its officials and employees, Construction Manager, Architect, Construction Manager's and Architect's consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages, losses, and expenses including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work but only to the extent caused in whole or in part by negligent acts or omissions of the Award Bidder, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be constructed to negate, abridge or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a party or person described within this indemnification.
- 35.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified within this indemnification by an employee of the Award Bidder, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Award Bidder or a Subcontractor under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

- 35.3 The obligations of the Award Bidder within this indemnification shall not extend to the liability of the Construction Manager, Architect, their consultants and agents and employees of any of them arising out of (I) the preparation or approval of maps, drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, Change Orders, designs, or specifications, or (2) the giving of or the failure to give directions or instructions by the Construction Manager, Architect, their consultants, and agents and employees of any of them provided such giving or failure to give is the primary cause of the injury or damage.
- 35.4 Baltimore County Public Schools shall not be responsible for errors or omissions made by the printer or advertising house which prepared the Bid Documents, addenda, or advertising services. If bidders or advertising houses suspect that their set of bidding documents is incomplete or defective, they should contact the Office of Purchasing, immediately.

36.0 EXCLUSIONS FROM WORK

BCPS acknowledges and agrees that the Award Bidder's obligation to furnish equipment and perform construction work or otherwise modify the Facilities, is limited to the work as defined on an individual site basis as determined by BCPS.

37.0 ACCESS TO FACILITIES FOR PERFORMANCE

From the date hereof and throughout the term of this agreement, the Award Bidder shall have reasonable access to the Facilities and relevant personnel of BCPS to perform its obligations and to investigate performance of the equipment, systems and operations of the Facilities.

38.0 LIABILITY FOR LOSS OF DATA

In the event of loss of data or any data or record necessary for the performance of this Agreement where such loss is due to gross negligence of the Award Bidder, the Award Bidder shall be responsible, irrespective of the cost to the Award Bidder, for the recreation of such lost data or records. BCPS shall be the sole judge as to whether the lost records have been recreated accurately and completely.

39.0 SUSPENSION OF WORK

- 39.1 BCPS may unilaterally order the Award Bidder in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt all or any part of the work for such period of time as may be appropriate for the convenience of the BCPS. Such suspensions, delays or interruptions should be for less than sixty (60) days unless there are extenuating circumstances.
- The times required and the completion of work shall be equitably adjusted to take into account the period of such suspensions, delay or interruption.
- 39.3 BCPS will compensate the Award Bidder only for the cost(s) to re-mobilize to the Facilities any equipment that had to be leased or rented for the suspension period that was critical to the operation of the Facility and any offsite storage cost(s) besides the Award Bidder's facility that had to be used to store materials

related to the work. The Award Bidder shall, at the suspension of work, notify the BCPS of any such charges stating the monetary damages that will incur and shall document weekly in writing to the BCPS the cumulative costs during the delay period. In no way will any approved delay effect the warranty period regarding any accepted completion by the BCPS relating to equipment installed by the Award Bidder, its subcontractors and suppliers.

40.0 DELAYS, EXTENSIONS OF TIME

- 40.1 The Bidder agrees to perform all work and provide all supplies or materials, in accordance with all the sections of this bid in a timely, continuous and diligent manner in order to comply with the time requirements set forth in this bid and/or the contract. The Bidder acknowledges and agrees that the only party that may grant a legally binding time extension or agree to a substitution of products, materials, equipment and/or supplies is BCPS. Any and all time extensions and/or changes/substitutions of products, materials, equipment and/or supplies must be requested in writing by the Bidder before the extension and/or change takes place and approved in writing by BCPS.
- 40.2 Delays by the Award Bidder causing the completion of Projects to extend past the Commencement Date will not change the Commencement Date for Performance guarantee purposes.

41.0 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

- 41.1 The Award Bidder's work and other services pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement includes work connected and associated with asbestos, lead, polychlorinated biphenyl ("PCB"), fluorescent light bulbs, or other hazardous materials (hereinafter, collectively, "Hazardous Materials"). The Award Bidder shall be required to perform identification, abatement, cleanup, control, and removal of Hazardous Materials. BCPS warrants and represents that, except as set forth in the Technical Proposal, there are no Hazardous Materials on the Facilities that will in any way affect the Award Bidder's work or any other services and BCPS has disclosed to the Award Bidder the existence and location of any Hazardous Materials in all areas within which the Award Bidder will be performing any part of the work or other services. The existence or location of any Hazardous Materials that have been disclosed by BCPS to the Award Bidder prior to the execution hereof, or that were otherwise identified in the Technical Specifications, shall be the exclusive responsibility of the Award Bidder.
- 41.2 Should the Award Bidder become aware of or suspect the presence of Hazardous Materials, other than already disclosed by BCPS within the Technical Specifications, the Award Bidder shall immediately stop work in the affected area and notify BCPS. BCPS will be responsible for taking any and all actions necessary to correct the condition in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. The Award Bidder shall be required to resume performance of the work or any BCPS requested work in the affected areas only in the absence of Hazardous Materials or when the affected area has been rendered harmless. Except as set forth in the Technical Specifications, the Award Bidder shall not be obligated to transport or handle Hazardous Material, to provide any notices to

any governmental authority or agency, or to inspect or examine the Facilities for the presence of Hazardous Material.

42.0 BIDDER SUBMITTALS

- 42.1 BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT THE FOLLOWING:
 - 42.1.1 Award Bidders providing skilled labor that requires certification from a local, state, or federal agency, shall provide proof of certification indicating the date of expiration and retain certification for the duration of this contract within ten (10) business days of being notified of being the apparent award bidder. The Insurance Certificate must name the "Board of Education of Baltimore County" as the "additional insured".
 - 42.1.2 Award Bidder's must provide a certificate of insurance evidencing Worker's Compensation and Employer Liability Insurance in the amounts required above, and in addition, this certificate will indicate the amounts of insurance carried by the Award Bidder of the following types within ten (10) business days of being notified of being the apparent award bidder:

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance
Comprehensive Automobile Insurance
Excess Liability Insurance
and any other insurance coverage maintained by the Award Bidder

The Certificates of Insurance will state that such insurance is in force and cannot be cancelled or released except upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Board of Education of Baltimore County.

- 42.1.3 Award Bidders shall be required under Article 56, Section 270(4),
 Annotated Code of Maryland, to provide proof of Certificate of Registry
 and must be licensed to do business in the State of Maryland and
 provide a tax certification number within ten (10) business days of
 being notified of being the apparent award bidder. Visit the following
 website to ensure compliance:
 http://www.dat.state.md.us/sdatweb/charter.html
- 42.1.4 Award Bidders who cannot provide evidence of having the personnel and equipment to satisfactorily provide the required services in a safe and timely fashion, as determined using criteria developed by BCPS and not necessarily industry standards, will be found to be non-responsive and have their bid rejected. Additionally, BCPS will consider the Award Bidder's equipment for size, suitability to do the work, condition of equipment, attachments required to do the work. Safety is a primary concern and safety related attachments are required by BCPS. It is the Award Bidders responsibility to supply this information to BCPS with their submittal.
- Prior to the award of the Contract the Bidder will be notified in writing if either BCPS or Architect, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to a person

or entity proposed by the Bidder. If BCPS or Architect has reasonable objection to a proposed person or entity, the Bidder may, at the Bidder's option, (I). withdraw the Bid, or (2) submit an acceptable substitute person or entity with an adjustment in the Base Bid or Alternate Bid to cover the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution. BCPS may accept the adjusted bid price or disqualify the Bidder. In the event of either withdrawal or disqualification, bid security will not be forfeited.

43.0 SUBSTITUTIONS

Bids shall be based upon the materials, systems, and equipment required by the bidding documents without exception. Where a specific manufacturer or trade name is designated, it is to establish a standard of material, design function, finish and quality. Only products of the named acceptable manufacturers and "or equal" (in quality, accessories, and attachments) are to be used in the Bid. Other products which will perform equally will be considered providing Bidder makes a submittal for substitution in strict accord with, Division 1 of the Technical Specifications - "Substitutions." The Contract award will be made solely on the basis of the Base Bid and Alternate Bids without regard to proposed substitutions and deducts when requested. Proposed substitution may be accepted with the award of the Contract or later by BCPS. After the Contract Award, substitutions will be considered and reviewed by the Consultant who will make acceptance or rejection recommendation to BCPS. The burden of proof of equivalency rests with the Award Bidder and evidence of such equivalency shall be submitted to the Consultant. If the bidder wishes to offer a substitute, the bidder should do so in accordance with subparagraph 43.2.

Proposed substitute products or manufacturers shall be submitted in accordance with the following provisions:

- 43.1 Substitutions will be considered prior to the initial advertisement for bids and after receipt of bids.
- 43.2 Bidders must submit a substitutions statement for the materials, systems and equipment specified with their bid and specification sheets showing and telling exactly where and how the bid does deviate from said specifications, and if in fact it does deviate in any respect, along with any stipulated cost adjustment (add, deduct, or no change) in the space provided on the Form of Proposal.

44.0 EMERGENCIES AND NOTIFICATION

In any case of an emergency the Award Bidder shall immediately notify the Architects, Construction Manager and BCPS by the most expeditious means available. Follow by telegram or written notice, explaining the situation and actions taken. Additional compensation or extension of time will not be considered or permitted for emergencies arising from delay, damage, or loss.

45.0 OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK

45.1 If the Award Bidder fails to correct Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents or persistently fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, BCPS, by written order signed

personally or by an agent specifically so empowered by BCPS in writing, may order the Award Bidder to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however the right of BCPS to stop the Work; shall not give rise to a duty on the part of BCPS to exercise this right for the benefit of the Award Bidder or any other person or entity. This right shall be in addition to and not in restriction or derogation of the Owner's rights under the General Conditions.

45.2 If unforeseen conditions occur or are encountered which may substantially impair the quality of the Work unless the Work is suspended, BCPS may, with the written concurrence of the Architect, suspend the Work by notice in writing to the Award Bidder, the Contract Management, and Architect. In the event of such a suspension, the Award Bidder shall be entitled to only adjustments in the Contract Time and an adjustment in the Contract Sum for costs actually incurred at the Project site by reason of such suspension. In any event where the Award Bidder reasonably determines that a suspension is required in such circumstances, the Award Bidder shall promptly notify in writing BCPS and Architect of such determination.

46.0 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK

If the Award Bidder defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails within a seven day period after receipt of written notice from BCPS to commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, BCPS may after such seven day period give the Award Bidder a second written notice to correct such deficiencies within a second seven day period. If the Award Bidder within such second seven day period after receipt of such second notice fails to commence and continue to correct any deficiencies, BCPS may, without prejudice to other remedies BCPS may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from payments then or thereafter due the Award Bidder the cost of correcting such deficiencies, including compensation for the Construction Manager's and Architect's and their respective consultants' additional services and expenses made necessary by such default, neglect or failure. If payments then or thereafter due the Award Bidder are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Award Bidder shall pay the difference to BCPS.

47.0 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

The Award Bidder shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Award Bidder shall defend suits or claims for infringement of patent rights and shall hold BCPS, Construction Manager, and/or the Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall not be responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design process or product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents. However, if the Award Bidder has reason to believe that the required design process or product is an infringement of a patent, the Award Bidder shall be responsible for such loss unless such information is promptly furnished to BCPS and/or the Architect.

48.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST, LOBBYING, AND ETHICS REVIEW PANEL

- 48.1 In accordance with §5-815 through §5-820 of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, the Board of Education of Baltimore County has promulgated Ethics Policies, which cover conflict of interest, financial disclosure and lobbying. All bidders are expected to comply with any and all Board Ethics Policies that may apply to them individually or as a business entity.
- 48.2 All bidders should review carefully the conflict of interest policies. Specific attention should be accorded to the Board Ethics Policies (Board Policy 8363) prohibiting Baltimore County Public Schools employees from benefiting from business with the school system.
- 48.3 All bidders are placed on notice that all questions/interpretations concerning the Board Ethics Policies may be submitted to the Ethics Review Panel in accordance with Board Policy 8366.

49.0 INCLEMENT WEATHER

- 49.1 **PRE-BID:** If Baltimore County Schools are **closed** (either the "schools" and/or "offices") on the day a pre-bid is scheduled, **"THE PRE-BID IS CANCELLED"** and **will not be rescheduled unless an addendum is issued.** Bidders are advised that they are to email or FAX questions to the purchasing agent by the date and time required within this solicitation.
- 49.2 **BID OPENING:** If Baltimore County Schools "offices" are closed on the day a bid is "DUE", or prior to the due time, that **bid will be due** <u>at the same time the</u> <u>next day</u> that the Baltimore County Schools "offices" are open. The bid opening shall not be impacted if Baltimore County Schools "schools" are closed.
- 49.3 If Baltimore County Schools (either the "schools" and/or "offices") open late, due to inclement weather, the Bid Due Date and Time of Opening will be conducted AS SCHEDULED. If Baltimore County Schools "offices" close early, due to inclement weather, the Bid Due Date and Time of Opening will be conducted at the same time the next day that the Baltimore County Schools "offices" are open. If Baltimore County Schools "schools" close early, due to inclement weather, the Bid Due Date and Time of Opening will be conducted AS SCHEDULED.

50.0 ILLEGAL IMMIGRANT LABOR

The use of illegal immigrant labor to fulfill contracts solicited by BCPS is in violation of the law and is strictly prohibited. Contractors and subcontractors must verify employment eligibility of workers in order to assure that they are not violating Federal/State/Local laws regarding illegal immigration. A compliance audit may be conducted.

51.0 FOREIGN LANGUAGE TRANSLATOR REQUIREMENT

- 51.1 BCPS requires an Award Bidder that has an employee on site that does not speak English to have on site, full time, an interpreter that is fluent in speaking and understanding that employee's native language.
- 51.2 Failure of an Award Bidder to have on site, full time, an interpreter that is fluent in speaking and understanding an employee's native language for those employees that do not speak English is reason for immediate termination of the contract for cause.

52.0 <u>EMPLOYMENT OF CHILD SEX OFFENDERS AND PERSONS WITH UNCONTROLLED ACCESS TO STUDENTS</u>

- 52.1 Maryland Law requires certain child sex offenders to register with the State and with the local law enforcement agency in the county in which they will reside, work and/or attend school. Section 11-722(c) of the Criminal Procedure Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland states, "[a] person who enters into a contract with a County Board of Education or a non-public school may not knowingly employ an individual to work at a school if the individual is a registrant. A person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor and on conviction is subject to imprisonment not exceeding five years or a fine not exceeding \$5,000 or both." If a child sex offender, sexually violent predator, or sex offender, as defined in the Criminal Law and Criminal Procedure Articles of the Annotated Code of Maryland, is employed by the Award Bidder, the Award Bidder is prohibited from assigning that employee to perform management, delivery, installation, repair, construction or any other type of services on any BCPS property, including the project property. Violation of this provision may result in immediate Termination for Cause.
- 52.2 Additionally, in accordance with Md. Ed. Code Ann., §6-113 (b), the Award Bidder and any of its subcontractors will not knowingly assign any employee to work on school premises with direct, unsupervised and uncontrolled access to children, if that employee has been convicted of a crime identified in Md. Ed. Code Ann., §6-113(a).

53.0 FORCE MAJEURE

Force Majeure is defined as an occurrence beyond the control of the affected party and not avoidable by reason of diligence. It includes the acts of nature, war, riots, strikes, fire, floods, epidemics, or other similar occurrences. If either party is delayed by force majeure, said party shall provide written notification to the other within 48 hours. Delays shall cease as soon as practicable and written notification of same provided. The time of contract completion may be extended by contract modification, for a period of time equal to that delay caused under this condition. BCPS may also consider requests for price increase for raw materials that are directly attributable to the cause of delay. BCPS reserves the right to cancel the contract and/or purchase materials, equipment or services from the best available source during the time of force majeure, and Contractor shall have no recourse against BCPS. Further, except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other or deemed in default under this contract, if and to the

extent that such party's performance of this contract is prevented by reason of force majeure as defined herein.

54.0 ASSIGNMENT

The Award Bidder shall not assign or transfer the Award Bidder's interest or obligation under this Agreement to any third party, without the prior written consent of the Board. Nothing herein shall be construed to create any personal or individual liability upon any employee, officer, elected official of the Board, nor shall this Agreement be construed to create any rights hereunder in any person or entity other than the parties to this Agreement.

55.0 ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS ACT NOTICE

The Board of Education of Baltimore County is subject to the Maryland Public Information Act, State Government Article § 10-611, et.seq. As a result, the Board may be required to disclose, upon request, certain public records. However the Act excludes from disclosure records that contain commercial information when the record is identified as: (1) a trade secret; (2) confidential commercial information; (3) confidential financial information; or (4) confidential geological or geophysical information.

If your bid documents contain any of the following classifications of records, you must note this specifically, on each relevant page that the document contains information that can be classified as confidential commercial, confidential financial information or a trade secret. Any pages that do not contain such a statement will be disclosed upon request under the Act.

56.0 CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS

- 56.1 Bidder's employees that have unsupervised or direct access to children or that are assigned duties in a school where unsupervised contact with children is likely, are required to be fingerprinted by BCPS and will complete the Background Investigation process with the exception of the I-9 form. The cost will be borne by the Award Bidder and all records will remain in the control and custody of the school system. The school system reserves the right to reject the Bidder's employees based on information received from said background investigations.
- 56.2 Bidder's employees who will work at facilities where no contact with children is anticipated are not required to be fingerprinted, however, such employees will complete the Background Check Application form and Authorization and Release for the Procurement of an Investigative Consumer Report. A Consumer Investigative Report (Commercial Background Check) will be prepared on each of these employees. The cost will be borne by the Award Bidder. Further instructions for this process will be provided to the Award Bidder.

END OF PART I: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

DIVISION OF BUSINESS SERVICES 6901 CHARLES STREET, BUILDING "E", 1ST FLOOR DEPARTMENT OF FACILITIES MANAGEMENT TOWSON, MARYLAND 21204 OFFICE OF PURCHASING PHONE: 443-809-4334

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Part II: Specifications--General Requirements

Section

1.0	General Scope & Services
2.0	Qualification of Bidder
3.0	Award Bidder Employees
4.0	Inspection of Site
5.0	Bonding and Certificates of Insurance
6.0	Small Business and/or Certified Minority Business Enterprises
7.0	Bid Submission
8.0	Bidder Registration
9.0	Inquiries
10.0	Addenda and/or Explanation of Bid Documents
11.0	Bid Opening
12 0	Award of Contract

- 13.0 Term of Contract
- 14.0 Assignment of Work
- 15.0 Hourly Rates
- 16.0 'Percentage Off List' Pricing
- 17.0 Delivery
- 18.0 Substitutions
- 19.0 Equipment
- 20.0 Response Time
- 21.0 Warranty
- 22.0 Hazardous Material Information
- 23.0 Occupancy Requirements
- 24.0 Professionalism
- 25.0 Subcontractors
- 26.0 Interruption of Service
- 27.0 Permits
- 28.0 Applicable Standards and Guidelines
- 29.0 Invoicing and Payment

Part II: Specifications--General Requirements

(If there is a discrepancy between specifications of Part I: General Terms and Conditions and Part II: Specifications--General Requirements, Part III Technical Specifications: Part III and Part III specifications shall prevail.)

1.0 General Scope & Services

- 1.1 This solicitation and the specifications that follow are being offered to qualify and select contractor(s) to furnish necessary labor, equipment, materials, supervision, tools, and all related incidentals required to test, maintain, repair, and/or upgrade sprinkler systems at various locations (approximately 200 schools and offices) for Baltimore County Public Schools (BCPS). Award Bidder(s) shall perform emergency and routine trouble shooting/problem diagnosis. Equipment provided must be 100% compatible with the manufacturer/models and technical specifications indicated within this solicitation. The Award Bidder(s) shall provide for services in accordance with industry standards and/or manufacturer recommendations. The requirements outlined herein are intended as an aid to acquaint Bidders with what could be required to execute the work on this contract. These specifications will serve as the source document for services for the term of the contract.
- This is an Indefinite Delivery / Indefinite Quantities (IDIQ) contract. The services and/or materials intended for purchase are based upon future needs of the system, and, are pending allocation of funds and approval of award by the Board of Education of Baltimore County. BCPS reserves the right to authorize/order services and/or materials as may be required during the contract period and, also, reserves the right to not authorize/order any services and/or materials. To aid in bid preparation, BCPS anticipates the total estimated value of the contract to be approximately \$400,000 annually, based upon historical records. This figure may change drastically based upon the needs of the system for the term of this contract. BCPS does not guarantee that this dollar amount will be met or exceeded, nor can BCPS guarantee any minimum dollar amount to any Award Bidder(s).
- 1.3 All proposals shall be submitted on the proposal forms provided by BCPS. All blank spaces shall be filled in, in ink and properly signed.
- 1.4 BCPS may withdraw this solicitation at any time prior to the actual opening of the bids.
- 1.5 The Bidders agree to hold their prices, under the same terms and conditions, for a period of one-hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the date of the bid opening.
- 1.6 At the time of the opening of bids, each Bidder will be presumed to have read and to be thoroughly familiar with the specifications and related documents (including all Addenda). The failure or omission of any Bidder to receive or examine any form, instrument, or document, shall in no way relieve any Bidder from any obligation in respect of his bid. It is the Bidder's responsibility to verify

- that they have received all addenda that have been issued prior to submission of their proposal.
- 1.7 Any omissions, errors, conflicts, or discrepancies in this document shall be called to the attention of the BCPS Purchasing Agent and/or the Office of Purchasing immediately.
- 1.8 Conditional proposals/bids will not be accepted. BCPS contractual terms and conditions shall govern and supersede any terms and conditions from the award bidder.
- 1.9 Bidders providing incomplete and/or inaccurate information to BCPS are subject to immediate termination of contract and/or rejection of their proposal/bid as non-responsive.
- 1.10 Bidders are solely responsible for their expenses, if any, in preparing a response to this solicitation.
- 1.11 Time is of the essence. All work must be done with the least possible disruption to the school operation and is to be coordinated with the BCPS Department of Physical Facilities.
- 1.12 All work shall be approved by BCPS Department of Physical Facilities. BCPS reserves the right of final approval for any work at the time of job completion. If the work is not acceptable, the Award Bidder will be called in to review and correct all problem areas without additional cost to BCPS. Any work necessary will be performed in accordance with a schedule jointly agreed upon. Failure of the Award Bidder to correct deficiencies, in a timely manner, may result in BCPS contracting with another vendor to correct deficiencies. The Award Bidder may then be pecuniarily responsible for the associated cost(s).
- 1.13 BCPS reserves the right to provide any materials and/or equipment for related installation or repairs.

2.0 Qualification of Bidder

- 2.1 All Bidders submitting a proposal shall include evidence that they maintain a permanent place of business and shall be authorized to transact business in Maryland, and considered in "Good Standing" (all fees, taxes, and penalties owed to Maryland are paid). All Bidders shall include copies of any and all appropriate licenses necessary to perform this work. BCPS prefers that participating bidders have been in business for at least three (3) years installing, repairing and maintaining sprinkler systems. Bidders who cannot demonstrate to the satisfaction of BCPS that they have had similar experiences of sprinkler install, repair and maintenance services will not be considered.
- 2.2 Bidders responding to ITEM 1 GROUP: HOURLY RATES AND INSTALLATION SERVICES (as designated within "SECTION 00400- FORM OF PROPOSAL")

shall meet the qualifications of the Maryland Fire Prevention Code including COMAR 29.06.05 (Fire Sprinkler Contractor Licensing and Regulation) and be qualified (as per NFPA 13 and NFPA 25) to test and to provide all necessary repairs to all makes and models of sprinkler systems including but not limited to fire pumps, private fire service mains, standpipe and hose systems, water storage tanks, water spray fixed systems, foam water sprinkler systems, valves and fire department connections, obstruction investigation and impairments. Verification of such qualifications shall be in writing from the Award Bidder(s) as requested by BCPS.

- 2.3 BCPS may conduct any necessary investigation to determine the ability of the bidder to perform the work, and the bidder shall furnish to BCPS all such information and data/documentation requested. BCPS reserves the right to reject any proposal if the evidence submitted by the bidder or investigation of such bidder fails to satisfy BCPS that such bidder is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the contract and to complete all requirements contemplated therein.
- 2.4 In determining the qualifications of a bidder, BCPS will consider the bidder's record and performance on any prior contracts with BCPS, Federal Departments or agencies, or with other public bodies. BCPS reserves the right to reject the proposal of any bidder if the investigation discloses that this bidder, in the opinion of BCPS, has not properly performed such contracts or has habitually and without just cause neglected the payment of bills or has otherwise disregarded their obligations to subcontractors, material suppliers or employees.
- 2.5 Bidders shall complete and return with their proposal the "REFERENCE FORM" included in this solicitation. Bidders shall have successfully completed at least three (3) projects/contracts of <u>similar size and scope</u> within the past three (3) years. You may include BCPS as one (1) of the three required references.
- 2.6 All bidders must maintain a dispatch / customer support center with availability twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, to facilitate the reporting of service issues at no additional cost to BCPS. The dispatch / customer support center shall be accessed via a toll free telephone number and shall be staffed by live operators (no recorded messages).
- 2.7 Bidders responding to ITEM 1 GROUP: HOURLY RATES AND INSTALLATION SERVICES (as designated within "SECTION 00400- FORM OF PROPOSAL") shall complete and return with their proposal the "Certified Technician Form".

 <u>Do not provide this information on any other form or paper--use the form provided</u>. Make as many copies of this form as needed to accommodate all assigned employees. Bidders shall:
 - 2.7.1 Provide the name and date of hire for each full time (not contractual) individual, currently employed by the firm, who will be used on any BCPS project.

- 2.7.2 Bidders are required to submit a minimum of six (6) sprinkler technicians. Technicians must meet the minimum requirements of the COMAR 29.06.05 and NFPA 13 & 25.
- 2.7.3 The authorized representative of the bidder must sign the form affirming that these are <u>full time properly trained</u>, <u>experienced</u>, <u>and certified employees</u> and not part time, contractual, or temporary employees. The Bidder agrees that these are the only assigned employees to be used for work at BCPS sites.

3.0 Award Bidder Assigned Employees

Applicable only to Bidders responding to ITEM 1 GROUP: HOURLY RATES AND INSTALLATION SERVICES (as designated within "SECTION 00400- FORM OF PROPOSAL").

- 3.1 The Award Bidder(s) shall provide a copy of <u>ALL</u> related certifications and or licenses held by each of its assigned employees listed on the "Certified Technician Form" within ten (10) days of notification of award.
- 3.2 The Award Bidder(s) has the right to remove individuals from the "Certified Technician Form" throughout the term of contract by notifying BCPS in writing.
- 3.3 The Award Bidder has the right to add individuals to the "Certified Technician Form" throughout the term of contract. However, BCPS reserves the right to review these assigned employees work record to determine if these individuals are properly trained and experienced. Individuals that are not properly trained and experienced shall not be utilized. For all new assigned employees, the Award Bidder shall:
 - 3.3.1 Submit the assigned employee name and last two years work history to BCPS for review. Work history must include previous employers contact information.
 - 3.3.2 Provide a copy of <u>ALL</u> related certifications and licenses for each assigned employee.
 - 3.3.3 BCPS must be notified of Award Bidder(s) intent to replace worker within one (1) business day of original workers departure. Award Bidder shall provide proof of required certifications for the new worker within ten (10) business days of assignment to BCPS contract.
- 3.4 Utilizing any employee not previously approved by BCPS is reason for <u>immediate</u> <u>termination</u> of the contract for cause.
- 3.5 Award Bidder(s) shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of BCPS that assigned employees who will be used on any BCPS project are properly trained and experienced in the services outlined herein.

- 3.6 Award Bidder shall be solely responsible for and pay, withhold, and transmit payroll taxes; provide unemployment insurance and workers' compensation benefits; and handle unemployment and worker's compensation claims involving the assigned employees.
- 3.7 The services that the Award Bidder shall render to BCPS will be as an independent contractor. Nothing within the bid documents and/or forms will be construed to create the relationship of principal and agent, employer and employee, and/or joint employers of the assigned employees, between the Award Bidder and BCPS.

4.0 Inspection of Site

- 4.1 Bidders are responsible for site visitation and confirmation of existing conditions.
- 4.2 To aid Bidders with formulation of pricing associated with this solicitation, all Bidders are invited to visit each site. Site visits shall be coordinated as follows:
 - .1 Call BCPS site.
 - .2 Schedule appointment with **Building Operations Supervisor**.
 - .3 On day of appointment sign in at main office. Building Operations Supervisor will provide escort.
- 4.3 Failure to become familiar with the site will not relieve a successful bidder of his obligation to furnish all materials, labor, and services necessary to carry out the provisions of the specifications herein.
- 4.4 The Award Bidder is the employer of the assigned employee(s) and has the right to physically inspect the work site and work processes to assess any potential work hazards; conduct post-accident/incident investigations; review and address assigned employee work performance, and enforce the Award Bidder's employment policies relating to the assigned employee conduct at the work site.

5.0 Bonding and Certificates of Insurance

- 5.1 A Bid Bond is NOT required for this solicitation.
- 5.2 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS
 - .1 Performance Bonds and/or payment bonds may be required from Award Bidder for <u>individual projects</u> in excess of \$30,000 for the amount of 100% of the contract price to cover faithful performance and/or payment of the specific project contract. The Award Bidder for that specific project will be required to submit bonds to the Office of Purchasing within ten (10) days of receipt of the Notice of Intent to award.

- .2 The cost of the performance bond and/or payment bond shall be included in the quote amount for <u>each specific BCPS project.</u>
- .3 Bonds shall be prepared on the standard bond form A312 as approved and issued by the American Institute of Architects and having as surety thereon such surety company or companies as are authorized to transact surety business in the state of Maryland.
- .4 Performance bonds and payment bonds shall be made out in the name of the "Board of Education of Baltimore County, Attn: Contracts, 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204". Send or have delivered all, performance bonds, and payment bonds to the attention of:

Baltimore County Public Schools Contracts 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor Towson, Maryland 21204

- 5.3 CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE
 - 5.3.1 Certificates of insurance shall be provided by Award Bidder(s) only.

 Certificates shall be made out in the name of the "Board of Education of Baltimore County". The notification of any change in status of the insurance shall be provided to the Contracts, 6901 Charles Street,

 Building "E", 1st Floor, Towson, Maryland 21204.
 - .1 Send or have delivered all certificates of insurance, to the attention of:

Baltimore County Public Schools Contracts 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor Towson, Maryland 21204

- .2 The Insurance Certificate must name the "Board of Education of Baltimore County" as the "additional insured".
- .3 The Certificates of Insurance cancellation notice shall read:

"Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing company shall mail thirty (30) days in advance of the cancellation date notice to the certificate holder."

NOTE: ALL other wording shall be deleted.

- 5.3.2 Cost of Insurance shall be included in the bid amount.
- 5.3.3 If Award Bidder fails to execute and deliver the signed Contract and Certificates of Insurance within ten (10) business days from receipt of the Contract, BCPS reserves the right to rescind award.
- 5.3.4 The Certificates of Insurance shall comply with all required coverages and provisions in Section 12 of BCPS' Part I General Terms and Conditions.

6.0 Small Business and/or Certified Minority Business Enterprises

6.1 It is the intent of BCPS to achieve a minimum of fourteen percent (14%) of the total dollar value of the contracts resulting from this solicitation to be made to Small Business and/or certified Minority Business Enterprises either directly or indirectly.

6.1.1 Definitions:

.1 Minority Business: Any legal entity, other than a joint venture, organized to engage in commercial transactions and which is (1) at least 51% owned and/or controlled by one or more minority interest persons, or (2) a non-profit entity organized to promote the interests of the physically or mentally disabled. Minority Groups identified are:

African Americans
Asians
Hispanics
American Indians
Women
Physically or Mentally Disabled Individuals

- .2 Certified MBE: A minority business that holds a certification issued by the Maryland State Department of Transportation (MDOT) or other recognized municipalities or minority associations.
- .3 Small Business: A business with fewer than fifty (50) employees which generates an annual revenue less than \$10 million dollars. BCPS reserves the right to request tax documents to support such a claim.
- 6.2 Each bid submitted including a submittal from a certified minority business enterprise, in response to this solicitation shall be accompanied by a completed Small and Minority Business Enterprise Utilization Affidavit.
- 6.3 The following documentation shall be considered as part of the contract, and shall be furnished **with your proposal/bid**:

- 6.3.1 Small and Minority Business Enterprise and Prime Contractors Statement of Intent: A separate form completed and signed by the prime contractor and each SBE/MBE firm.
- 6.3.2 A Request for Waiver (if necessary) with supporting documentation, which represents a good faith effort by the bidder to obtain the SBE/MBE participation goal but it was unable to be obtained, or was unable to be obtained at a reasonable price, and that the public interest is served by a waiver. If the bidder is unable to achieve the contract goal of 14 percent for SBE/MBE participation, they may submit a written request for a waiver by completing the Request for which shall include the following:
 - .1 A detailed statement of the efforts made by the bidder to identify and select portions of the work proposed to be performed by subcontractors in order to increase the likelihood of achieving the stated goal;
 - .2 A detailed statement of the efforts made by the bidder at least 10 days before the bid opening to solicit small and minority business enterprises through written notices that describe the categories of work for which subcontracting is being solicited, the type of work to be performed, and specific instructions on how to submit a bid;
 - .3 A detailed statement of the bidder's efforts to make personal contact with SBE/MBE firms identified for item (2) above:
 - .4 A record of the name, address, telephone number, and dates contacted for each SBE/MBE identified under items (2) and (3) above:
 - .5 A description of the information provided to SBE/MBEs regarding the plans, specifications, and the anticipated time schedule for portions of the work to be performed;
 - .6 Information on activities to assist SBE/MBE's to fulfill bonding requirements, or to obtain a waiver of these requirements;
 - .7 Information on activities to publicize contracting opportunities to small and minority business enterprises, attendance at pre-bid meetings, or other meetings scheduled by the MBE Liaison or designated representative;
 - .8 As to each SBE/MBE that placed a subcontract quotation which the bidder considers not to be acceptable, a detailed statement of reasons for this conclusion; and

- .9 A list of small and certified minority subcontractors found to be unavailable. This shall be accompanied by a Small and Minority Subcontractor Unavailability Certificate signed by the small and/or minority business enterprise or from the bidder indicating that the small and/or minority business did not provide the written certification.
- The MBE Liaison will review and accept or reject the SBE/MBE material that is submitted, and may obtain legal advice or assistance from its attorney.
- 6.5 The MBE Liaison may assist the apparent low bidder in identifying certified minority businesses that could participate in the contract.
- 6.6 Small Business and/or certified Minority Business Enterprise policies, procedures and/or requirements, as stated above, pertain to projects that are BOARD/COUNTY funded. In some instances, projects may be partially funded by the STATE. When a specific project is partially funded by the STATE, the Award Bidder shall attempt to achieve the result that a minimum of 25 percent of the total project value is made directly or indirectly from certified minority business enterprises, with a minimum of 7 percent from certified African American-owned businesses, a minimum of 4 percent from certified Asian American-owned businesses, and the balance from all certified minority business enterprises. All general contractors and subcontractors including certified MBE firms, when bidding as general or prime contractors, are required to attempt to achieve the MBE subcontracting goals from certified MBE firms approved by the Maryland Department of Transportation (MDOT). Reference: MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROCEDURES FOR STATE FUNDED PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS as attached to this solicitation.

7.0 <u>Bid Submission</u>

7.1 Return of bids to: BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OFFICE OF PURCHASING

MBU-506-18 Attn: Melvin E. Burley

6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor

Towson, Maryland 21204

- 7.1.1 Bids must have the Bid Due Date and Time, bidder's name, and the above address on the OUTSIDE of the return envelope. Plainly print the words "SEALED BID" on the outside of the envelope to avoid premature opening of the bid.
- 7.1.2 All bids must be delivered to the above address by the specified due date and time. Bids returned to any other address will not be considered.
- 7.2 Proposals shall include <u>all</u> of the following, as outlined within "SECTION 004000-FORM OF PROPOSAL":

Developing Lifelong Learners Through Literacy An Affirmative Action Employer

- 7.2.1 Section 004000-1: Cover Page.
- 7.2.2 Section 004000-2: "Price Proposal Instructions"
- 7.2.3 Section 004000-3-4: "Price Proposal Pages". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.4 Section 004000-5: "Technician Form". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.5 Section 004000-6: "References". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.6 Section 004000-7: "Addenda". Bidders are reminded that the "Addenda" page should be completed and returned whether or not an actual addenda page was issued for this bid. Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.7 Section 004000-8: "Proposal Sheet". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.8 Section 004000-9: "State of Maryland Anti-Bribery Affidavit" & "State of Maryland Tax Certification" (on same page). Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.9 Section 004000-10: "Certification Regarding U.S. Government Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.10 Section 004000-11: "Board of Directors Diversity Affidavit". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.11 Section 004000-12: "Small Business Enterprise Affidavit". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.12 Section 004000-13: "Small and Minority Business Enterprise Utilization Affidavit". Complete, sign, notarize and return with bid.
- 7.2.13 Section 004000-14: "SBE/MBE Statement of Intent". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.14 Section 004000-15: "SBE/MBE Request For Waiver". Complete, sign, notarize and return with bid".
- 7.2.15 Section 004000-16: "SBE/MBE Minority Subcontractor Unavailability Certificate". Complete, sign and return with bid.
- 7.2.16 Section 004000-17: "No Bid Page". This page should only be returned if not participating in the bid.

- 7.2.17 All other information and/or forms and/or affidavits specified in Specifications Part II, Technical Specifications, and/or Addenda issued.
- 7.3 All proposals shall be "original". No proposal copies or duplication shall be provided to BCPS at time of bid. Submit one complete original proposal only.
- 7.4 Proposals received after the published due date/due time will be rejected as non-responsive.
- 7.5 Proposals submitted improperly and/or incomplete may be deemed as non-responsive.

8.0 <u>Bidder Registration</u>

- 8.1 Bidders are invited to register on the BCPS "Vendor Self-Service" (VSS). Award Bidder(s) are required to register. Please follow the registration instructions below:
 - 8.1.1 Type the following into your browser:

 http://www.bcps.org/offices/purchasing/
 (Vendor Self Service is not supported by Safari, Firefox, Google Chrome)
 - 8.1.2 Click the link: "Visit our Vendor Self Service Center"
 - 8.1.3 Select "Creating A New Account" for detailed instructions. Print these instructions for reference, and then return to the VSS welcome page.
 - 8.1.4 Click onto "Register" from the VSS welcome page and follow the instructions you printed.
 - 8.1.5 Complete the application. Record your UserID and Password for future use.
- 8.2 Entering your corporate information into the VSS website is the first step in doing business with BCPS. If you have already done business with BCPS in the past, much of your information may already be present. You may only have to confirm or update the existing information.
- 8.3 Parties interested in conducting business with BCPS are encouraged to visit the Office of Purchasing website: http://www.bcps.org/offices/purchasing/ Click "Invitation to Bid". The list is updated on a weekly basis.

9.0 Inquiries

- 9.1 No interpretation of the meaning of the plans, specifications, or other contract documents will be made to any bidder orally. To be given consideration, inquiries must be received at least seven (7) business days prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids, so that they may be responded to in a timely fashion.
- 9.2 Any inquiries regarding the "SPECIFICATIONS" and/or the "SOLICITATION DOCUMENT" shall be IN WRITING and directed to Melvin E. Burley, C.P.M.,

- CPPO, CPPB at e-mail: mburley2@bcps.org (receipt verified by calling phone: 443-809-9387).
- 9.3 Any inquiries regarding the "MBE and/or SBE PARTICIPATION" in this bid shall be directed to Melanie Webster at e-mail: mwebster@bcps.org or fax: 410-887-7831 (receipt verified by calling: 443-809-4334).

10.0 Addenda and/or Explanation of Bid Documents

- All changes to the bid specifications and/or drawings will be made through the appropriate addenda. Any and all such interpretations and any supplemental instructions will be available to all bidders who pick up a copy of the bid. Addenda will be issued at least five (5) business days prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids, unless the addendum issued extends the due date of the bid.
- 10.2 It is the bidders' responsibility to verify receipt of all addenda. Failure of any bidder to receive any addenda or interpretation shall not relieve that bidder from any obligations under this bid and as amended by all addenda. All addenda so issued shall become a part of the award and contract documents.

11.0 Bid Opening

- 11.1 At the bid opening the bidders' names and their prices will be read. Each participating bidder shall be e-mailed and/or faxed a copy of the posting of prices upon verification of prices by BCPS. This process will take several days (or longer depending upon the number of bidders).
- 11.2 Complete evaluation of the bids will not take place at the opening and no indication of award will be made at the opening. The recommended award(s) will be available in the Office of Purchasing after the completed evaluation.
- 11.3 Bids will not be available for review by bidders at the bid opening. BCPS reserves the right to review all materials and present a recommendation to the Board of Education prior to bids being available for review. Bid documents will only be available for review after approval of the contract by the Board. Bidders may call the Office of Purchasing to set up a date and time for reviewing bid documents.

12.0 Award of Contract

- 12.1 Method of award will be to the responsive and responsible bidder offering the most favorable "COMPUTED ITEM COST". BCPS reserves the right to make awards of contract to multiple bidders.
- 12.2 BCPS shall develop a price scenario formula to calculate the "COMPUTED ITEM COST". This pre-determined price scenario formula will apply a multiplier to each "ITEM". The sum of which will be combined to determine the "COMPUTED

- ITEM COST". The BCPS formula applied to award computation shall be available upon request any time after the posted Due Date/Time.
- 12.3 Responsive and responsible bidders responding to the solicitation shall be ranked, based upon their "COMPUTED ITEM COST".
- 12.4 While pricing will be given primary consideration in evaluation of all proposals meeting specifications, successful bidder(s) must be able to document their ability to service an account of this size and, also, be able to guarantee completion of work on time. BCPS reserves the right to award to bidder(s) receiving the most favorable proposal evaluation and providing best in class, overall value to BCPS per ITEM.
- 12.5 BCPS is not obligated to contract for all "ITEMS" as listed on the Price Proposal Sheet(s).
- 12.6 Time is of the essence. Submission of a proposal/bid, in response to this solicitation, shall mean that the Bidder can complete all work "as specified" within the specified time frame.
- 12.7 BCPS does not guarantee that all or any work will be done and reserves the right to reject all bids and to re-bid at its discretion. BCPS reserves the right to issue separate formal bids for any repair and/or installation services.
- 12.8 BCPS reserves the right to add award bidder(s) to this contract if the initial award bidders cannot fulfill all of the requirements.

13.0 Term of Contract

- 13.1 The term of the contract shall commence from the day of signing of the contract after the Board of Education of Baltimore County's approval, and all terms and conditions shall remain in effect through December 31, 2022.
- 13.2 BCPS reserves the right to terminate the contract for convenience at any time by providing the Award Bidder thirty (30) days prior written notice. The Award Bidder does not have a right to termination for convenience.
- 13.3 On an annual basis, BCPS and the Award Bidder(s) shall meet and confer regarding performance and modifications to the contract.
- 13.4 BCPS reserves the option to extend this contract for an additional period upon mutual agreement, and under the same terms, conditions, and pricing.

14.0 Assignment of Work

14.1 At its sole discretion, BCPS reserves the following rights:

- .1 To perform any work at any site utilizing "in-house/BCPS personnel" for any project
- .2 To issue a new solicitation for these services at any one or combination of sites, separate from this bid
- .3 To obtain the work from any source, if for any reason, none of the Award Bidders can complete the services within the time frame required by BCPS.
- 14.2 This contract is to be utilized for projects with an estimated value not exceeding \$200,000. If a project estimate exceeds this threshold, the Office of Purchasing reserves the right to issue a formal solicitation.
- 14.3 BCPS reserves the right to utilize Hourly Labor Rates (Regular, Off Hours, Emergency) submitted by Award Bidder(s) in response to this solicitation for work and for projects that are less than \$30,000.
- 14.4 For projects under \$30,000, BCPS shall reserve the right to obtain in writing, "Request for Quote" (RFQ) from Award Bidder(s). BCPS reserves the right to award the project to the company offering the most favorable quote (as determined by BCPS). It is important to note that the most favorable quote may not be the one offering the lowest price. BCPS may evaluate the quote based on the starting and completion dates provided by the bidders with their quote for that project and the subsequent effect this will have on the school curriculum. Time is of the essence.
- 14.5 For projects exceeding \$30,000, BCPS will obtain in writing, "Request for Quote" (RFQ) from <u>all</u> Award Bidder(s). BCPS reserves the right to award the project to the company offering the most favorable quote (as determined by BCPS). It is important to note that the most favorable quote may not be the one offering the lowest price. BCPS may evaluate the quote based on the starting and completion dates provided by the bidders with their quote for that project and the subsequent effect this will have on the school curriculum. Time is of the essence.
- 14.6 For projects exceeding \$30,000, the cost of performance and payment bonds shall be included in the quote amount. Performance and payment bonds must be submitted to the Project Manager by the RFQ Award Bidder.
- 14.7 The type of "Request for Quote" (RFQ) shall be communicated to Award Bidder(s) by BCPS. Pricing methodology to be utilized by Award Bidder(s) will be specified in writing by BCPS at time of RFQ issuance. Some examples of RFQ types include:
 - Not to Exceed
 - Lump Sum/ Firm Fixed Price/Base Bid
 - Cost-plus-fee
 - Design-build/Turnkey
 - Informational Budget Estimate

- 14.8 BCPS reserves the right, as a component of future RFQs, to accept Award Bidder's use of Hourly Labor Rate(s) equal or below those which were submitted in response to this solicitation.
- 14.9 BCPS reserves the right to request that Award Bidder(s) utilize the Hourly Labor Rate(s) submitted in response to this solicitation as a component of the RFQ.
- 14.10 BCPS reserves the right to request that Award Bidder(s) provide breakout costs as an attachment to the RFQ invoice.
- 14.11 Award Bidder(s) will not be paid for visiting a BCPS site to provide RFQ, and/or for any pre-examination of work.
- 14.12 Award Bidder(s) must include contract number on all guotes.
- 14.13 To maintain Award Bidder status, Award Bidder(s) shall respond to EVERY RFQ. If a contractor is unable to provide a quote for ANY reason, they must submit a "NO QUOTE"/"No Bid" response. FAILURE to respond may result in termination of the contract with that Award Bidder.

15.0 Hourly Rates

- 15.1 "Regular Hourly Labor Rate" for repair services, installation services, and/or testing services. In effect from 7:00 A.M. until 5:00 P.M. EST Monday through and including Friday. The rate is for one (1) certified technician, on-site working. Inclusive of all overhead, including but not limited to: driving time to and from the job site, materials, proper disposal, paperwork, salary of employees, and profit. The hourly rate must include overseeing and providing the work. The rate shall not include special equipment rental charges (i.e. aerial lifts, boom lifts, scissor lifts). Award Bidder shall respond as specified and required by BCPS when the request for service is placed. Reference Part II: Specifications--General Requirements, Section 20.0 Response Time, for detailed response time requirements.
- 15.2 "Regular Hourly Labor Rate Off Hours" for repair services, installation services, and/or testing services. In effect Monday through and including Friday from 5:00 P.M. until 11:00 P.M. EST and Saturday from 7:00 A.M. until 3:00 P.M. EST. The rate is for one (1) certified technician, on-site working. Inclusive of all overhead, including but not limited to: driving time to and from the job site, materials, proper disposal, paperwork, salary of employees, and profit. The hourly rate must include overseeing and providing the work. The rate shall not include special equipment rental charges (i.e. aerial lifts, boom lifts, scissor lifts). Award Bidder shall respond as specified and required by BCPS when the request for service is placed. Reference Part II: Specifications--General Requirements, Section 20.0 Response Time, for detailed response time requirements.

- 15.3 "Emergency Hourly Labor Rate" for all emergency services. In effect twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Response time shall not be greater than (2) hours (as delineated within Part II: Specifications--General Requirements, Section 20.0 Response Time). The rate is for one (1) certified technician, on-site working. Inclusive of all overhead, including but not limited to: driving time to and from the job site, materials, proper disposal, paperwork, salary of employees, and profit. The hourly rate must include overseeing and providing the work. The rate shall not include special equipment rental charges (i.e. aerial lifts, boom lifts, scissor lifts).
- "Overtime Rate" is 1.5 times the Regular Hourly Labor Rate and/or the Regular Hourly Labor Rate Off Hours. Overtime will be paid for hours other than those specified in the Regular Hourly Labor Rate and shall apply to work performed during "regular hourly labor rate off hours". BCPS will not pay any overtime rates unless prior written authorization is received by Award Bidder(s). If overtime is requested by award bidder and approved by BCPS, award bidder may be responsible for paying BCPS custodial coverage fees on-site.
- 15.5 "Holiday Hours" and/or "Double Time Rate" are those hours worked on the following days: Christmas Day, New Years Day, Memorial Day, Labor Day, July 4th, and Thanksgiving Day. Holiday hours will be paid at the rate of two (2) times the Regular Hourly Labor Rate or the Emergency Hourly Labor Rate.
- 15.6 **"Working Hours"**: are those hours the assigned employees are actually on site working, excluding lunch time and/or breaks.
- All hourly labor rates include the cost of consumable materials utilized by Award Bidder to facilitate install and/or for repair services. Some examples of consumable materials shall include, but not be limited to: cable ties, fasteners, tape, tags. BCPS shall not reimburse for any additional materials unless agreed to by BCPS in advance of the work.
- 15.8 BCPS shall not reimburse for travel expenses, or vehicle mileage, nor shall BCPS reimburse for travel time to obtain parts.
- 15.9 BCPS shall not reimburse for cell phone usage.
- 15.10 Award Bidder(s) shall be granted the option to request an adjustment to Hourly Labor Rates on each contract anniversary date. All adjustment requests affecting hourly labor rates must be made in writing to the Office of Purchasing and in accord with the conditions outlined herein.
 - 15.10.1 Award Bidder(s) will have thirty (30) days from the contract anniversary date to submit a request for a Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustment which may be applied to "Hourly Rate". For calculating the CPI adjustment, the Office of Purchasing shall follow the instructions below:

- .1 Access the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics website at the following internet address: http://www.bls.gov/cpi/home.htm
- .2 Under the section "CPI Databases" click the "TOP PICKS" icon next to "All Urban Consumers (Current Series) (Consumer Price Index CPI)".
- .3 Select from list "U.S. All items, 1982-84=100 CUUR0000SA0". Select "Retrieve data".
- .4 Select "More Formatting Options". Select "12 Months Percent Change". Click "Retrieve Data"
- .5 Use the chart: 12 Months Percent Change, Series Id: CUUR0000SA0, Not Seasonally Adjusted, Area: U.S. city average, Item: All items, Base Period: 1982-84=100 (Note: The file can be downloaded into an excel worksheet.)
- Adjustments shall be based on the average of the 12 months percentage change published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics at the time of request. For example, an adjustment request is submitted by Award Bidder to BCPS on December 10, 2011. The contract anniversary date is January 1. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics has published data up to October 2011. Price adjustment would be based on the average from November 2010 to October 2011. This calculation shall include monthly U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics data labeled as "Preliminary".
- The CPI adjustment is NOT automatic. BCPS reserves the right to accept or reject the adjustment request within sixty (60) days of receipt of request.
 - .1 If the request is rejected, the contract for that item shall be terminated thirty (30) days from the date of BCPS rejection letter.
 - .2 If adjustment request is rejected, BCPS reserves the right to purchase services and/or goods from the next most favorable responsive and responsible bidder, as the requested adjustment may change the award position. If the next most favorable responsive and responsible bidder(s) does not have service available within the requested timeframe, BCPS reserves the right to purchase from any source.

- .3 Award Bidder whose price adjustment has been rejected by BCPS shall be granted the right of first refusal, and shall be given an opportunity to match the item pricing of next most favorably ranked responsive and responsible bidder within ten (10) days of receipt of BCPS rejection notification.
- 15.10.3 BCPS reserves the right to decrease rate, if such downward adjustment is reflected within CPI data.

16.0 'Percentage Off List' Pricing

- All delivery/freight charges, packaging (including pallet), insurance, expenses, and/or overhead shall be included within unit pricing requested by BCPS. When parts/equipment is ordered by BCPS from Award Bidder(s), standard delivery charges shall be included by Award Bidder(s) within line item pricing. BCPS may pay separate line item shipping charges <u>only</u> when order has been requested by BCPS to be expedited. Expedited delivery charges <u>must</u> be authorized by BCPS.
- 16.2 Manufacturer discount pricing provided by Bidders shall be for any quantity. No minimum quantity orders and/or shipments are guaranteed.
- 16.3 Manufacturer discount pricing submitted by bidders shall be non-direct, Governmental sales, where bidder is responsible for shipping and invoicing.
- 16.4 BCPS reserves the right to accept additional discount pricing if offered by the Award Bidders for bulk purchases, promotional pricing, and/or downward adjustments to discount pricing offered by manufacturer to Award Bidder(s).
- 16.5 Award Bidder(s) must have capability to accept BCPS Procurement Card (i.e. "VISA") as a method of payment. Bidders are prohibited from charging any additional cost to process orders.
- 16.6 BCPS may require Award Bidder(s) to provide documentation from manufacturer that authenticates actual manufacturer pricing.
- 16.7 Award Bidder(s) shall be granted the option to request an adjustment to each manufacturer discount pricing once per calendar year. If manufacturer represented by Award Bidder(s) issues a mid-year or force majeure 'discount adjustment, BCPS shall either accept or reject such on a case by case basis.
- 16.8 Award Bidder(s) must notify the Office of Purchasing of any change in discount pricing IN WRITING. Failure to provide all the following will result in the request not being considered.
 - 1. Provide the Solicitation Number or Contract Number
 - 2. Provide the existing discount

- 3. Provide the new proposed discount. Increases shall be limited to the actual cost increase to the Award Bidder from manufacturer.
- 4. Provide the supporting documentation. The Award Bidder shall provide bona-fide manufacturer's documentation reflecting the percentage change. BCPS shall validate the requested percentage adjustment.
- 16.9 Pricing adjustments are NOT automatic. BCPS reserves the right to accept or reject the adjustments within sixty (60) days of receipt of request.
 - .1 If the request is rejected, the contract for that item shall be terminated thirty (30) days from the date of BCPS rejection letter.
 - .2 If adjustment request is rejected, BCPS reserves the right to purchase item from the next most favorable responsive and responsible bidder, as the requested adjustment may change the award position. If the next most favorable responsive and responsible bidder(s) does not have material available within the requested timeframe, BCPS reserves the right to purchase from any source.
 - .3 Award Bidder whose price adjustment has been rejected by BCPS shall be granted the right of first refusal, and shall be given an opportunity to match the item pricing of next most favorably ranked responsive and responsible bidder within ten (10) days of receipt of BCPS rejection notification.
- 16.10 BCPS reserves the right to decrease pricing, if such downward adjustment is reflected within manufacturer data.

17.0 Delivery

- 17.1 All deliveries shall be **FOB Destination (inside).**
- 17.2 All deliveries shall be scheduled at least 24 hours in advance by calling the contact person designated on the Purchase Order.
- 17.3 Delivery shall be made Monday through Friday (excluding school holidays) between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 3:00 P.M. EST. Award Bidder shall be responsible for ensuring that deliveries are made during regular business hours and days.
- 17.4 BCPS requires that all items be delivered within ten (10) business days from receipt of order.
 - 17.4.1 Failure of the Award Bidder to deliver within ten (10) business days of receiving an order may result in BCPS canceling the order with the Award Bidder and BCPS ordering the products from the next lowest bidder. The

Award Bidder may then be pecuniarily responsible for the difference in cost.

- 17.4.2 If there are extenuating circumstances, out of the control of the Award Bidder, that would extend the delivery past ten (10) business days, then, the Award Bidder agrees to notify BCPS immediately of these circumstances and to advise of when the delivery shall be made.
- 17.4.3 Award Bidder demonstrating habitual delivery deficiencies will be subject to termination of contract for cause.
- 17.5 Any damaged shipments will be replaced solely at the Award Bidder's expense. This shall include pick-up of damaged product and delivering replacement product. Delivery of replacement product shall be made within three (3) business days from receipt of notification of damage.
- 17.6 All "drop shipments" (direct from a manufacturer or wholesaler) must adhere to the terms specified within this solicitation.
- 17.7 A delivery ticket shall accompany all deliveries. The delivery ticket must include the BCPS purchase order number. Any delivery that does not identify the BCPS purchase order number will be rejected. The Award Bidder shall obtain a signature from BCPS employee on the delivery receipt for all items delivered. The supplier will be required to furnish proof of delivery in case of dispute.
- 17.8 It is the Bidder's responsibility to have material available for BCPS to pick up at a location within fifty (50) miles from the Baltimore County Public Schools, 9610 Pulaski Park Drive, Baltimore, MD 21220. The determination of the mileage shall be obtained through on-line Internet tools, such as http://maps.yahoo.com/ or http://www.mapquest.com/, based upon the address provided by Bidder.
- 17.9 BCPS shall not pay restocking fee for any returned product.

18.0 Substitutions

- 18.1. Where a specific manufacturer or trade name is designated, it is to establish a standard of material, design function, finish, and quality. Only products of the named acceptable manufacturers and "or equal" (in quality, accessories, and attachments) shall be utilized.
- 18.2 The Award Bidder shall be responsible for determining what model or product of the acceptable manufacturer meets the specified standards. Other products which will perform equally the duties imposed by the general design will be considered providing submittal for substitutions is in strict accordance with requirements as indicated within the technical specifications of this solicitation.
- 18.3 All equipment and replacement components shall be new and unused. BCPS shall approve make and or model of replacement parts utilized.

19.0 **Equipment**

- 19.1 All equipment required to perform standard/typical work under this contract shall be owned by the Award Bidder and shall be normally available on the dispatched vehicle. BCPS shall not reimburse Award Bidder for equipment rental charges that are considered standard/typical equipment for services provided under this contract.
- 19.2 All equipment of the Award Bidder shall be in good working condition and shall conform to required safety standards.
- 19.3 The Award Bidder(s) shall NOT utilize rental equipment without the expressed prior consent of BCPS. Use of rental equipment prior to obtaining the expressed prior written consent of BCPS shall result in termination of the contract for cause.
- 19.4 Use of BCPS equipment is prohibited.
- 19.5 BCPS shall direct Award Bidder(s) as to the appropriate equipment, parts, and supplies that should be maintained on dispatched vehicles upon official signing of the contract after the Board of Education of Baltimore County's approval. It is understood that Award Bidders who have not dealt with BCPS in the past may need more direction than those Award Bidders who have provided service to BCPS in the past.

20.0 Response Time

- 20.1 Regular Service Calls:
 - .1 Regular service requests shall be made in writing by BCPS and shall document the required service and time parameters for response.

 Response time shall be as specified and required by BCPS when the request for regular service is placed. BCPS may first notify Award Bidder via phone call; however, all requests for regular service shall be delineated in writing by BCPS.
 - .2 Physical response times by Award Bidder for regular service calls shall be less than two (2) hours from when request is made by BCPS.
 - .3 Physical response times by Award Bidder for regular service calls shall not exceed seventy-two (72) hours from when request is made by BCPS. In some instances, BCPS may require a response time that exceeds the seventy-two (72) hour requirement. BCPS will make any such request in writing.
 - .4 Notwithstanding the aforementioned above (".3"), a typical regular service call will provide the Award Bidder with a twenty-four (24) hour window of time in which to mobilize technicians.

- .5 Award Bidder is to physically show up at the site and perform services as required at the Regular Hourly Labor Rate at the time and/or day the service is requested and/or required by BCPS.
- .6 BCPS shall notify Award Bidder in writing if service request must be cancelled.

20.2 Emergency Service Calls:

- .1 Due to the nature of emergency service calls, BCPS may first notify Award Bidder via phone call of the emergency service requirement. Award Bidder response time shall commence at time of phone notification. After initial phone notification, BCPS shall provide Award Bidder with emergency service request in writing.
- .2 Physical response time for emergency service calls shall be within two (2) hours of telephone notification by BCPS.
- .3 Emergency repairs shall be provided on a twenty-four (24) hour, seven (7) days a week basis.
- .4 The Award Bidder is to physically show up at the site and perform services as required at the Emergency Hourly Labor Rate.
- .5 If Award Bidder cannot respond to the emergency request within the time period specified above, Award Bidder must notify BCPS at the time the request for emergency service is placed. This will enable BCPS to go to the next Award Bidder for performing the emergency work.
- .6 BCPS shall notify Award Bidder in writing if service request must be cancelled.
- 20.3 Award Bidder(s) is guaranteed a minimum of one (1) hour on site for each regular, off hour, and/or emergency service call.
- 20.4 If Award Bidder fails to meet the response times herein specified, the Award Bidder will issue an invoice credit to BCPS. Such credit shall be based on the Award Bidder's hourly labor rate. For example, the Award Bidder was scheduled to commence services (regular service call) at 1:00 P.M. and the certified technician does not physically show up at the BCPS site until 1:30 P.M. The Award Bidder's Regular Hourly Labor Rate is \$50. The credit amount would be \$25. Credits owed to BCPS shall be reflected in the next billing cycle following the event. Failure to respond within timeframe requested at time of placing service call may result in termination of the contract for cause with that Award Bidder.

- 20.5 Award Bidder(s) shall make every effort to expedite any and all repairs in accordance with set time limits. Where limits may need to be exceeded, any deviations shall be verified and approved in advance by BCPS. The Award Bidder will notify BCPS Department of Physical Facilities in writing of any delays in repairs which exceed the above set time limits. Excessive delays in repairs which cannot be explained by the Award Bidder to the satisfaction of BCPS will be considered to be unsatisfactory service under the terms of the contract. Any excessive number of instances of unsatisfactory service, as determined by BCPS, will be cause for BCPS to consider the Award Bidder in default and the contract terminated for cause.
- 20.6 Award Bidder(s) must provide list of contacts, complete with phone numbers and email addresses.

21.0 Warranty

- 21.1 The Award Bidder shall unconditionally guarantee the materials and workmanship of all equipment and materials furnished by the Award Bidder, its subcontractors or suppliers for a period of at least two (2) year from the date of acceptance of the installation by BCPS. If the manufacturer warrants equipment for a period longer than two years the Award Bidder shall pass through this time frame to BCPS.
- 21.2 All warranty work shall be done within seventy two (72) hours of notification of the work to be done.
- 21.3 Award Bidder shall not charge BCPS for any repeat visit for the same problem occurring within thirty (30) days of the original visit.

22.0 Hazardous Material Information

- 22.1 No new, replacement or restoration materials shall contain asbestos or asbestiform minerals in an amount greater than 0.0% as determined by polarized light microscopy (PLM) as prescribed in Federal Regulation 40 CFR 763.87. For materials that are tightly bound (e.g. floor tile, roofing asphalt and felts, adhesive/mastic, caulk, glaze, etc.) and for which PLM analysis is not conclusive, transmission electron microscopy must be used for analysis. If no commercially available material meets this criterion, written authorization for use of the material shall be obtained from the BCPS Project Manager. All materials delivered to or used on BCPS property must be accompanied by a manufacturer's certification to be asbestos free, based upon criterion above. The Material Safety Data Sheet may not be used for this purpose.
- 22.2 No new, replacement or restoration materials shall contain lead in an amount greater than 0.00 milligrams per liter or 0.00 milligrams per kilogram. If no commercially available material meets either criterion, written authorization for use of the material shall be obtained from the BCPS Project Manager.

- 22.3 Award Bidder(s) shall not be responsible for performing any asbestos abatement services. BCPS will have all asbestos containing material abated prior to commencement of work by Award Bidder(s). Award Bidder(s) will not initiate any work which will disturb any asbestos containing material. Failure to adhere to this policy may result in termination of the contract for cause.
- 22.4 Building materials in BCPS facilities may contain asbestos and/or lead paint. To prevent contamination or exposure, no work shall be performed by Award Bidder(s) that would disturb any building material(s). This shall include, but not be limited to the following activities: cutting, drilling and/or moving ceiling tiles. Award Bidder(s) shall notify the BCPS Project Manager in writing as soon as it is known that approval will be needed for a particular activity. BCPS shall respond to Award Bidder(s) request in writing to approve or deny the particular activity.

23.0 Occupancy Requirements

23.1 Full BCPS Occupancy: BCPS will occupy the site and existing building during the entire work period. The Award Bidder(s) shall cooperate with BCPS during the work to minimize conflicts and facilitate BCPS usage. To the satisfaction of the school, the Award Bidder is to move and/or protect all school equipment, furnishings and occupied areas from work-related debris and noise. The Award Bidder shall perform the work so as not to interfere with BCPS operations. The Award Bidder is aware that this work shall be performed on school grounds, where students, staff, and parents will be present and is responsible for maintaining a safe clean worksite.

23.2 Use of Premises:

- .1 Limit use of premises to work in areas indicated. Confine operations to areas within contract limits indicated. Do not disturb portions of the site beyond the areas in which the Work is indicated.
- .2 Keep driveways and entrances serving the premises clear and available to BCPS, BCPS's employees and emergency vehicles at all times. Do not use these areas for parking or storage of materials.
- .3 Award Bidder is responsible for all clean up related to their work. The school's custodial staff is not responsible for cleaning debris left from the Award Bidder's work.
- .4 The Award Bidder shall protect all BCPS property, materials, equipment, improvements, utilities, structures, and vegetation at all times during the course of this contract. Any property or incidentals damaged during the course of this contract shall be repaired or replaced by Award Bidder to the satisfaction of the BCPS.
- Deliveries of equipment and other materials must be done with the Award Bidder present and stored on site as indicated by the Department of Physical Facilities. Equipment and material shall not be delivered to the

- site prior to their installation, unless approved by the Department of Physical Facilities.
- .6 Award Bidder(s) shall not sound alarm devices during regular class hours, unless authorized by BCPS.
- .7 Award Bidder(s) shall comply with specific considerations in regard to the sounding of alarm devices for BCPS sites that serve students who have multiple disabilities. BCPS liaison shall provide direction to Award Bidder(s) in regard to required special provisions for these sites (Reference "Exhibit A: BCPS Sites").
- 23.3 Failure to become familiar with the site will not relieve a successful bidder of his obligation to furnish all materials, labor, and services necessary to carry out the provisions of the plans and specifications and to complete the contemplated Work for the consideration set forth in his bid.

24.0 Professionalism

- 24.1 BCPS requires all work to be completed utilizing "Professional Workmanship". BCPS shall very closely monitor and examine the services provided and shall only accept a "Professional Workmanship". The following shall be considered some reasons for immediate termination of a company:
 - 24.1.1 Failure of the Award Bidder to have the required materials and equipment with them to execute a project without undue delay to leave the project and pick up supplies and/or equipment. BCPS reserves the right to bring in any other contractor in order to complete work that is not completed in a timely fashion.
 - 24.1.2 Failure of the Award Bidder to mobilize certified technicians to provide an adequate response for simultaneous/multiple site emergencies.
 - 24.1.3 Failure of the Award Bidder to have all personnel <u>sign into and out of the</u> main office of any school, whenever that school's office is open.
 - 24.1.4 Failure of the Award Bidder to utilize qualified personnel to do the work for BCPS sites. The individuals doing the work at the BCPS sites shall:
 - 1. be on the "list" of assigned employees being utilized by that Award Bidder for work on any BCPS site.
 - 2. be properly trained and experienced to perform services as specified.
 - 3. refrain from any comments and/or gestures to the students and/or staff; and, refrain from making any comments and/or gestures to

fellow workers that could be interpreted as inappropriate and/or obscene.

- 4. be dressed appropriately to work in a "school environment" with student, teacher, staff, and parents present. The assigned employee shall prominently display the name of their company on a shirt and/or hat.
- 5. abide by the BCPS no smoking and alcohol policy. BCPS maintains a Tobacco-Free environment. Furthermore, BCPS policy prohibits gambling, alcohol, drugs and obscene/abusive language.
- 24.2 Immediate termination of a company for not providing "Professional Workmanship" as determined by BCPS, using criteria determined by BCPS and not necessarily industry standards, shall result in:
 - 24.2.1 Award Bidder being paid for all work completed to date. Any monies required to complete the repairs and/or installations in progress shall be deducted from those owed, prior to final payment. In the event the monies due exceed the amount BCPS owes that Award Bidder, the monies required to complete services in progress shall be owed BCPS by that Award Bidder.
 - 24.2.2 Award Bidder being unable to bid any BCPS project for up to twelve (12) months from the date of termination.

25.0 Subcontractors

The Award Bidder(s) shall NOT utilize the services of any subcontractor without the expressed prior consent of BCPS. Use of a subcontractor prior to obtaining the expressed prior written consent of BCPS shall result in immediate termination of the contract for cause. Contractor mark-up percentage shall be no more than 5%.

26.0 Interruption of Service

- 26.1 Planned interruption of telephone, security alarm, and/or fire alarm service under this contract shall be coordinated with BCPS Department of Physical Facilities at least five (5) business days in advance of the expected occurrence.
- 26.2 Schools and/or Offices will require a temporary electric power source, during any interruption, to maintain the security system, fire alarm system and telephone system.
- 26.3 This temporary power shall be available and maintained by the Award Bidder(s) until power/service is restored.

- 26.4 If an on-site generator is provided by Award Bidder, an Award Bidder assigned employee shall also be on site 24 hours per day until power is restored.
- Award Bidder(s) shall be responsible for repairing accidental interruption(s) of utilities, caused by the Award Bidder, at the Award Bidder's expense.

27.0 Permits

Award Bidder(s) shall make application for permits, as required for the work under this contract. BCPS shall reimburse Award Bidder(s) for the direct cost of application fee, as required for the work under this contract. Award Bidder is required to schedule inspections by Baltimore County Public Works and/or other State/Local agencies as required and is responsible to meet or exceed all codes.

28.0 Applicable Standards and Guidelines

- 28.1 Award Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility and liability for the compliance with all applicable federal/state/county laws, regulations, standards, licensing requirements and patented systems pertaining to all work practices.
- 28.2 All work is to be handled in complete compliance with OSHA and MOSHA requirements. Every effort is to be made to insure the safety of all individuals during work, as well as, during operation.
- 28.3 Award Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility and liability for the protection of workers, visitors to the work site and persons occupying areas adjacent to the work site.
- Award Bidder(s) shall have available, copies of all applicable codes, regulations, standards, documents and this specification.
- 28.5 Where conflicts among the requirements of the codes, regulations, standards, documents and this specification exist, the most stringent requirement shall be utilized by the Award Bidder(s).

29.0 <u>Invoicing and Payment</u>

Award Bidder(s) shall submit Original Invoice (include all Work Tickets related to invoice) to BCPS Department of Physical Facilities. Invoices shall be mailed via U.S. Postal Service or emailed to a pre-approved BCPS liaison. Award Bidder(s) shall invoice BCPS within thirty (30) days after the completion date and the invoice shall contain the following:

- 1. BCPS Purchase Order Number, Work Order Number, Release Number, Name of Facility.
- 2. Award Bidder's Invoice number, Invoice date, Completion date

- 3. All labor rates shall be paid in one half (1/2) hour increments after the first full hour (reference section 20.3). Labor rates should be itemized with date of service, total number of "working" hours, labor rate, and a subtotal of labor costs.
- 4. A total reimbursement amount for all material. Attach an itemized listing which includes the approved materials provided and installed. Materials shall be priced at the Award Bidders cost (including tax) plus markup. Proof of cost by receipt, for materials over \$100, must accompany the invoice, unless approved otherwise by BCPS. The formulas for the Award Bidder's Cost of materials Reimbursement Amount is as follows:

Award Bidder's Cost of materials = (Price of item) plus (Applicable Taxes)

Reimbursement Amount = (1.mark-up) times (Award Bidder's cost of materials)

Note: Cost of part(s) shall include all applicable manufacturer discounts and rebates.

- 5. If multiple facilities are listed on one invoice, charges must be listed separately for each facility where work was performed.
- 6. Service Ticket(s) attached to invoice. Assigned employee names and the number of hours each assigned employee worked on site must be listed. Date(s) of service shall be included, which must correspond to the sign in/out sheet located in the school office.
- 7. Total dollar amount due.
- 8. BCPS will not pay for rented or leased equipment fees in addition to the hourly rate quoted, unless, approved specifically by the designated BCPS liaison, in advance of their use. All freight charges, packaging (including pallets) shall be included within unit pricing requested by BCPS. BCPS may pay separate line item shipping charges only when the order has been requested by BCPS to be expedited. Expedited delivery charges must be authorized in advance by BCPS. BCPS shall not reimburse for: travel expenses, vehicle mileage, phone usage, or traveling to pickup parts (Reference: Part II, Section 15.0 Hourly Rates).
- 9. The Award Bidder(s) are to have an invoice format approved by BCPS.
- 10. Only one invoice shall be submitted per BCPS Work Order unless authorized by the BCPS representative.

END OF PART II: SPECIFICATIONS--GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

SOLICITATION NUMBER: MBU-506-18

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

DIVISION OF BUSINESS SERVICES 6901 CHARLES STREET, BUILDING "E", 1ST FLOOR DEPARTMENT OF FACILITIES MANAGEMENT TOWSON, MARYLAND 21204 OFFICE OF PURCHASING PHONE: 443-809-4334

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART III: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

Section

- 1.0 General Scope & Services
- 2.0 Typical Installation
- 3.0 Work Requirements for Inspection Services
- 4.0 Required Maintenance, Repair and Replacement Services
- 5.0 Existing Equipment
- 6.0 Work Orders
- 7.0 Definitions

PART III: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

1.0 General Scope & Services

1.1 The specifications that follow are being offered to qualify and select contractor(s) to furnish necessary labor, equipment, materials, supervision, tools, and all related incidentals required to test, maintain, repair, and/or upgrade sprinkler systems at various locations (approximately 200 schools and offices) for Baltimore County Public Schools (BCPS). This work shall include, but not be limited to, control valves, water supply, control devices, pumps, compressors, alarm and electric devices, sprinkler heads, piping, hangers, flow switches, and all related equipment of the sprinkler systems, standpipe and hose systems. private fire service mains, fire pumps, water storage tanks, water spray fixed systems, foam-water sprinkler systems, valves and fire department connections. Award Bidder(s) shall perform emergency and routine trouble shooting/problem diagnosis. Award Bidder(s) shall perform testing and inspection services. It is the intent of BCPS to have each site inspected/tested two (2) times each year (either by BCPS staff and/or by Award Bidder) the inspections/tests shall be completed between July 1 and September 15 and again between December 1 and February 15, as directed by BCPS. Dates are subject to change at sole discretion of BCPS. Any change in the inspections/tests dates will be made in writing no less than forty-five (45) days in advance of the first inspections/tests. It is also the intent of BCPS to test the fire pump systems and perform a weekly fire pump churn test, both diesel and electric. This testing will be provided weekly with full flow testing provided annually. A list of restricted sites that will require special accommodations or hours will be provided by the Office of Facilities Support Services. Additional inspections shall be on an "as needed" basis and upon a formal written request by BCPS. BCPS reserves the right to purchase miscellaneous equipment, hardware, parts and accessories for sprinkler systems at discounted prices from Award Bidder(s).

The Award Bidder(s) shall:

- .1 Respond to a request for testing on a bi-annual basis to assure the integrity of the Sprinkler System.
- .2 Respond to a request for testing the fire pump churn test weekly to assure the integrity of the sprinkler system.
- .3 Provide a scheduling work book using, Microsoft Excel, for proposed dates on all inspection sites so the BCPS Department of Facilities Management can make necessary notifications in advance. The aforementioned workbook will be provided to the BCPS liaison, no less than three (3) weeks prior to scheduled inspection/testing. The original workbook will be supplied by BCPS.
- .4 Troubleshoot existing systems and isolate the faulty component(s) and/or wiring.

- .5 Supply all required replacement components, same make and model as being removed.
- .6 Properly remove and dispose of all control valve cable ties during testing.
 Upon completion of testing, replace control valve cable ties with black cable ties, or company identified tag.
- .7 Make necessary repairs including, but not limited to, replacement of components and testing to assure proper operation.
- .8 Maintain equipment for remote programming, diagnostics, and verification of proper operation.
- .9 Train BCPS personnel as necessary.
- .10 Assure and provide BCPS with reliable and functioning sprinkler systems at all times.
- .11 Provide full flow pump test reports with graphic/charts per NFPA 25 guidelines.
- .12 Provide for services in accordance with industry standards and/or manufacturer recommendations including but not limited to NFPA 13 Installation of Sprinkler Systems (current edition) and NFPA 25 Standard for Inspection, Testing and Maintenance of Water-Based Fire Protection Systems (current edition) and the Maryland Fire Prevention Code and COMAR 29.06.01 thru 29.06.07.
- .13 Provide bi-annual inspection reports within five (5) business days, of inspections. Computer based inspection reports are preferred, using third party sites such as "BuildingReports.com."
- 1.2 All sprinkler system hardware, software, peripherals, equipment and/or related components provided for under the terms and conditions of this contract must be 100% compatible with the existing fire alarm systems.
- 1.3 BCPS shall be notified in advance of any "proprietary" hardware, software, peripherals, equipment and/or related components provided for under this contract. Such notification shall be made by Award Bidder in writing to BCPS at time of bid.
- 1.4 Components which require repair, overhaul or replacement during warranty periods do not relieve the Award Bidder of responsibility. Under this contract the Award Bidder shall negotiate with appropriate manufacturers/distributors and/or suppliers to expedite the repair/overhaul or replacement within a period of time acceptable to BCPS Department of Facilities Management, or designated representative.

- 1.5 The Award Bidder must provide "as-built" drawing(s) for any changes made to the systems during the course of this contract. Three copies must be supplied to BCPS Department of Facilities Management, with all changes legibly marked in red. The Award Bidder shall also provide BCPS Department Facilities Management, or designated representative, three (3) copies of OEM manuals for all new equipment installed during this contract. Electronic format shall be acceptable.
- 1.6 BCPS reserves the right solely to make the determination whenever systems, or parts thereof, must be repaired, replaced or overhauled. The Award Bidder must notify BCPS Department of Facilities Management, or designated representative, for authorization to proceed with any repairs, replacements, or updates. The Award Bidder shall follow the operation and maintenance instructions which are furnished by the manufacturer for all systems, and equipment, however, the successful operation of the facilities is the primary goal even if it means that the manufacturer's operating and maintenance standards must be exceeded to attain that goal. With regard to this contract, BCPS Department of Facilities Management or designated representative will determine acceptability of all work and/or services performed. If the work and/or services are not acceptable, the Award Bidder will be called in to review and correct all problem areas without additional cost to BCPS. Upon notification by BCPS Department of Facilities Management, or designated representative, the Award Bidder will affect repairs to deficient work and/or services in accordance with a schedule jointly agreed upon.
- 1.7 BCPS reserves the right to negotiate a preventative maintenance (PM) program with Award Bidder(s).

2.0 Typical Installation

- 2.1 All equipment shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, NFPA 13 Installation of Sprinkler Systems (current edition) and NFPA 25 Standard for Inspection, Testing and Maintenance of Water-Based Fire Protection Systems (current edition), Maryland Fire Prevention Code, and other code and contract requirements
- 2.2 The equipment supplier's technician shall supervise location and actual installation of all equipment and final wiring connections, and shall perform all final testing, tuning, and adjusting to make the system operable.
- 2.3 Award Bidder shall provide 120 volt power as required.
- 2.4 Award Bidder shall provide 12 volt DC power supplies as needed to maintain DC power requirement of the system.

3.0 Work Requirements for Inspection Services

- 3.1 Wet System, including alarms, piping, valves and any other associated components shall be tested according to NFPA 25 and as follows:
 - 3.1.1 Test the alarm by opening the inspector's test connection and/or the bypass test connection in conjunction with making a "water flow" test <u>for each inspection</u> (whenever conditions permit.)
 - 3.1.2 Check all associated water valves, supervisory devices and exposed piping to assure their proper conditions and functionality for summer and winter operations for each inspection.
 - 3.1.3 Perform annual inspection requirements, such as main drain test, low-point drains, hangers, and sprinklers during summer inspection.
- 3.2 Dry System including dry valves, accelerators, exhausters and any other associated components shall be tested according to NFPA 25 and as follows:
 - 3.2.1 Test the alarm, both water flow and air, if provided, and perform a "flow test" through the drain connection whenever conditions permit <u>for each</u> inspection.
 - 3.2.2 Check air pressure, compressor(s), holding tank(s), differential switches, belts (if applicable), gauges, safeties, air tubing, connections, adjoining compressor apparatuses, priming water level, latching arrangements, automatic drip connections (when provided), and the general conditions of the dry pipe valves, accelerators, and/or exhausters for each inspection. This shall include the inspection of the dry pipe valve room and/or enclosure and noting the environment.
 - 3.2.3 The "trip test" of any "dry" systems shall be performed <u>once annually at the time of the summer inspection</u>. For this "trip test", dry pipe valves, together with accelerators and exhausters (if provided) shall be tested in accordance with standard testing and reporting procedures required by the local authority having jurisdiction.
 - 3.2.4 <u>After each testing</u>, Award Bidder(s) shall restore the system and the dry pipe valve to operation according to the manufacturer's instructions.
 - 3.2.5 <u>Each inspection</u> requires Award Bidder(s) to open condensation drains on drip connections and drain all low points.
- 3.3 Fire Pump Systems (both Electric and Diesel) and any other associated components, including but not limited to Lubrication System, Cooling System, Exhaust System, Battery System, Heater System and Electrical System shall be tested according to NFPA 25 and as follows:
 - 3.3.1 Fire Pumps will be exercised (churned) once a week for no less than thirty (30) minutes for Diesel Pump and ten (10) minutes for an Electric

- Pump. Pumps need to be exercised in such a manner that both solenoids for the battery banks are utilized.
- 3.3.2 BCPS will provide approved Test Forms to Award Bidder(s). Reference "Exhibit B: BCPS Test Forms". All Test Forms shall be filled out completely and accurately by Award Bidder(s) at BCPS site at time of testing. Upon completion, Award Bidder (s) will provide a copy of all Test Forms shall remain on-site and will be provided to BCPS liaison. Award Bidder(s) shall notify BCPS site liaison immediately if a Test Form is not available for completion at site. Daily service tickets shall be made out by Award Bidder(s) and signed by BCPS. Service tickets shall be submitted with all invoices along with copies of all material reimbursement invoices.
- 3.3.3 Fuel Tank is to be inspected and deficiencies reported to BCPS liaison. Low Fuel Levels are to be brought to the Building Operation Supervisors attention.
- 3.3.4 Award Bidder(s) is responsible for maintenance of the battery banks and shall be inspected for sufficient water/electrolyte levels and filled with the distilled water as needed.
- 3.3.5 Pumps and Engines are to be inspected for proper operation and service. Deficiencies shall be brought to the attention of the BCPS liaison immediately.
- 3.3.6 Pump room heaters and heat tape (if applicable) are to be inspected each inspection during the winter months for proper operation and exhaust fans shall be inspected each month.
- 3.3.7 Visually inspect level controls of reservoir holding tanks (if applicable) per inspection.
- 3.3.8 Award Bidder(s) must sign-in at the main office to gain entry to pump house and notify the staff of the test. Any alarm panels silenced for the test must be restored prior to leaving the site.
- 3.4 Prior to making any tests, the following shall be done:
 - 3.4.1 The BCPS liaison shall be informed by Award Bidder the date/time of testing. Award Bidder shall specify what services will be provided during the test.
 - 3.4.2 The BCPS liaison may accompany the inspectors to observe the process. BCPS personnel shall assist at the location and monitor access into all areas.
 - 3.4.3 Award Bidder(s) shall disable all audible and sound systems as to not disturb the instructional program for the students and teachers. Award

- Bidder(s) shall re-enable all audible and sound systems when testing is complete and notify BCPS designee immediately of any inoperable equipment.
- 3.4.4 Award Bidder(s) shall notify BCPS Office of Safety and Security (410-887-6488) prior to and immediately after testing any system and verify that BCPS Office of Safety and Security has received the proper signals for the location and that the system is restored to normal operating condition. Verification of signal and restoration of system to normal operating condition shall be noted on Award Bidder(s) invoice, signed service ticket, and inspection report.
- 3.5 Replacement Parts and Field Service Adjustments:
 - 3.5.1 Award Bidder(s) shall provide and replace when necessary, renewable rubber gasket, rubber clapper facings; and renewable valve discs for control valves.
 - 3.5.2 Award Bidder(s) shall perform field service adjustments for all control and alarm devices.
 - 3.5.3 Award Bidder(s) shall perform all tests and work described in the "Standard Form" inspection report per NFPA 25.
- 3.6 After inspection reports are completed for each building, if any further service is required to properly maintain the sprinkler systems or to keep the systems in compliance with all applicable codes, a written report describing the required work and a complete list of materials shall be submitted to the BCPS liaison within twenty-four (24) hours, if it is critical to system functioning properly, or within five (5) business days otherwise. It is the intent of BCPS to issue work orders related to these reports on a time and material basis. BCPS may also request a NTE Quote for such work at its discretion.
 - 3.6.1 Award Bidder(s) will be paid only for authorized work completed to the satisfaction of BCPS. Labor, rates and material cost plus mark-up quoted on the Bid Proposal shall be used. All freight charges, packaging (including pallets) shall be included within unit pricing requested by BCPS. BCPS may pay separate line item(s) shipping charges only when the order has been requested by BCPS to be expedited. Expedited delivery charges must be authorized in advance by BCPS.
 - 3.6.2 BCPS reserves the right to do any work at any site utilizing "in-house personnel" at any time.
 - 3.6.3 Award Bidder(s) dispatched vehicle shall be equipped with commonly used materials at the all times. Award Bidder(s) shall perform minor repairs at the time of Testing/Inspection. Such repairs include but are not

limited to the installation or replacement of fire department connection caps, sprinkler heads (spare and replacement), sprinkler head boxes, sprinkler wrenches and gauges on any and all of our existing sprinkler systems.

- 3.7 Award Bidder(s) shall prepare a report for each site within five (5) business days of the inspection that provides the following information:
 - 3.7.1 BCPS Site Name
 - 3.7.2 Type of system (wet/or dry) and manufacturer
 - 3.7.3 Indicate the number and the brand names of all sprinkler heads at each site
 - 3.7.4 Indicate the date the most recent inspection occurred and the findings. Problems, suggested solutions, and projected costs of repairs are required.
 - 3.7.5 This information shall be provided to BCPS (one copy shall remain onsite with the Building Operations Supervisor so as to be available for the Fire Marshal and one copy shall be provided to the BCPS liaison within five (5) business days of completion of the inspection at any site.

4.0 Required Maintenance, Repair and Replacement Services

- 4.1 "Annual Service" shall be defined as one (1) time per year.
- 4.2 "Bi-Annual Service" shall be defined as two (2) times per year.
- 4.3 BCPS shall establish "Annual Service" and "Bi-Annual Service" schedules for systems specified at each BCPS site.

5.0 Existing Equipment

The BCPS Department of Facilities Management shall provide the Award Bidder with disposition on existing equipment that is not reusable and is replaced with new equipment. Award Bidder shall not dispose of any BCPS equipment without consent from BCPS Department of Physical Facilities.

6.0 Work Orders

- 6.1 Bidders shall be capable of accepting BCPS work orders by E-Mail (.rtf format), facsimile and telephone.
- 6.2 Award Bidder(s) shall provide a service ticket for each service call.

- 6.3 Each service ticket shall detail the services being performed, the site and the date of the service call.
- 6.4 Service tickets shall be in triplicate and signed by a BCPS liaison at the job site. One copy shall be given to the Building Operations Supervisor or principal, one retained for the Award Bidder's files, and one sent to the BCPS Department of Facilities Management with the invoice (reference Part II, Section 29.0 Invoicing and Payment).
- 6.5 BCPS Department of Facilities Management shall approve the format of service tickets, equipment logs and/or required reports. Award Bidder(s) shall be responsible for providing BCPS with copies of all such documentation.
- 6.6 Award Bidder(s) must be capable of providing service tickets, equipment logs and/or required reports in electronic file format (i.e. Excel).
- 6.7 Award Bidder(s) shall provide a weekly update to BCPS Department of Facilities Management, referencing site and BCPS work order numbers of testing, repair and installation services provided.

7.0 Definitions

- 7.1 Service Ticket: Receipt of work provided by Award Bidder.
- 7.2 Work Order: Request for work provided by BCPS to the Award Bidder.
- 7.3 BCPS Liaison: Identified BCPS personnel who are the point of contact for their respective department, office or school.
- 7.4 Office Personnel: BCPS school site staff that can be contacted by Award Bidder while on school premises. These individuals include the principal, assistant principal, administrative assistant, building operations supervisor or building service workers.
- 7.5 Inspection Reports: Report provided to BCPS from Award Bidder stating deficiencies, violations, and the equipment that is working properly.
- 7.6 Release Number: Number that is assigned to each work order that correlates to the purchase order for the services being performed.
- 7.7 Building Operations Supervisor (BOS): Individual at each BCPS location, school or office that is responsible for the building and associated equipment. This person is the Department of Physical Facilities liaison at the school site on a daily basis.
- 7.8 Certified Technician: Performs tasks and scheduled assignments to ensure that sprinkler systems are properly maintained and operating correctly. Handles regular and emergency repair services, installation services, testing services,

inspection services and/or preventative maintenance services as directed. Technicians shall be trained/trainable, and knowledgeable with the installation, service, troubleshooting, testing and programming of all leading sprinkler system industry manufactures equipment that may or may not be mentioned in this contract as defined by NFPA 13 and 25 and COMAR 29.06.01 thru 29.06.07.

Responds to customer service calls (emergency, on-site, or on-line), checks indicated points of trouble, analyzes full requirements of system involved and checks and tests systems components. Diagnoses trouble or defect, determines corrective action and repairs system. Performs preventative maintenance and diagnostics on sprinkler systems and components. Tests and verifies system readings, ensuring an optimal system operation. Alerts BCPS to necessary system upgrades. Completes service repairs, replacements, upgrades, adjustments and calibration on sprinkler control systems and components following issued tasking, maintenance, troubleshooting and installation instructions. Performs system checkout and assists in sprinkler control systems startups. May coordinate electrical installation with electrical contractor at job site as required. Completes and submits written service orders and reports covering all aspects of each assignment and activity. Completes and submits timesheets and other necessary information as agreed and needed. If improper operation is due to another system or component, discusses problem with BCPS and advise the best course of action. Works with other company or external service providers or vendors to arrange servicing and to resolve problem. Conducts training and development classes for customers on site or at the branch. Delivers technical support, coaching and direction to end users and field labor when applicable.

END OF PART III: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor Towson, Maryland 21204

Division of Support Services

Office of Purchasing

Developing Lifelong Learners Through Literacy - An Affirmative Action Employer

SECTION 004000 "FORM OF PROPOSAL"

Bidders shall complete and return all the following forms with their bid. (*except this form)

Cover Page	004000-1
Price Proposal - Instructions	004000-2
Price Proposal Pages	004000-3-4
Worker Form	004000-5
References	004000-6
Addenda	004000-7
Proposal Sheet	004000-8
State of Maryland Anti-Bribery Affidavit & Tax Certification	004000-9
Certification Regarding U.S. Government Debarment	004000-10
Board of Directors - Diversity Affidavit	004000-11
Small Business Enterprise Affidavit	004000-12
Small and Minority Business Enterprise Utilization Affidavit	004000-13
SBE/MBE Statement of Intent	004000-14
SBE/MBE Request For Waiver	004000-15
SBE/MBE Minority Subcontractor Unavailability Certificate	004000-16
*No Bid Page	004000-17

SECTION 004000 - FORM OF PROPOSAL

DATE:			
SOLICITATION TITLE:	SPRINKLER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, INSTALLATION, PARTS & INSPECTIONS		
BCPS BID NUMBER: MBU-	<u>506-18</u>		
BID SUBMITTED BY: (Compar	y Name as reflected on your company's W-9 Form)		
SUBMITTED TO:	Baltimore County Public Schools Office of Purchasing 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor Towson, Maryland 21204		
The undersigned BIDDER proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with the OWNER in the form included in the Contract Documents to complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the Contract Price and within the Contract Time indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the Contract Documents.			
requirements (federal, state a conditions affecting cost, pro	ite and locality where the Work is to be performed, the legal and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations) and the gress, or performance of the Work and has made such as BIDDER deems necessary.		
	(Signature of Bidder) (Date)		

PRICE PROPOSAL - INSTRUCTIONS:

BIDDERS ARE REQUIRED TO SUBMIT PRICING FOR EVERY "ITEM" CONTAINED WITHIN THIS FORM OF PROPOSAL.

BIDDERS NOT RESPONDING TO EVERY "ITEM" SHALL BE DEEMED NON-RESPONSIVE.

Bidders are invited to provide "Percentage off" discount pricing for electrical supplies, parts and/or accessories that are typically utilized by commercial customers similar to BCPS. **Bidders may provide** as an attachment to this proposal the "Percentage off" discount pricing listing. Such listing should be formatted as instructed below:

List the name of the manufacturer, followed by the discount percentage.

For example: Square D 40%

DO NOT provide "percentage off" discount pricing that would increase cost above the most recent manufacturer price.

If a Bid amount contains contradictory terms, handwritten terms prevail over typewritten terms, and words prevail over numbers. The dollar amount expressed in words shall govern.

(Signature of Bidder)	(Date)

004000-3

PRICE PROPOSAL PAGE

FORM OF PROPOSAL

ITEM 1 GROUP	P: HOURLY LABOR RATES	
ITEM 1A:	"REGULAR HOURLY LABOR RATE" for one	(1) Certified Technician:
ITEM 1A BID: \$	S	(IN DOLLARS)
ITEM 1A BID:		(IN WRITING)
ITEM 1B:	"REGULAR HOURLY LABOR RATE – OFF H	OURS" for one (1) Certified Technician:
ITEM 1B BID: \$	5	(IN DOLLARS)
ITEM 1B BID:		(IN WRITING)
ITEM 1C:	"EMERGENCY HOURLY LABOR RATE" for o	one (1) Certified Technician:
ITEM 1C BID: \$	5	(IN DOLLARS)
ITEM 1C BID:		(IN WRITING)
ITEM 1D:	"HOLIDAY HOURS AND/OR DOUBLE TIME R	RATE" for one (1) Certified Technician:
ITEM 1D BID: \$	S	(IN DOLLARS)
ITEM 1D BID:		(IN WRITING)
ITEM 1E:	"MATERIAL MARK-UP PERCENTAGE:	
ITEM 1E BID: _		(PERCENTAGE)
ITEM 1E BID: _		(IN WRITING)
		(Signature of Ridder) (Date)

PRICE PROPOSAL PAGE

ITEM 2 GROUP:	MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT, HARDWARE, PARTS AND ACCESSORIES FOR SPRINKLER SYSTEMS:
ITEM 2A: Provide "perd	centage off list" discount pricing for American Automatic:
ITEM 2A BID:	% off list
ITEM 2B: Provide "perd	centage off list" discount pricing for Central:
ITEM 2B BID:	% off list
ITEM 2C: Provide "pero	centage off list" discount pricing for Potter:
ITEM 2C BID:	% off list
ITEM 2D: Provide "perd	centage off list" discount pricing for Reliable:
ITEM 2D BID:	% off list
ITEM 2E: Provide "pero	centage off list" discount pricing for SimplexGrinnell:
ITEM 2E BID:	% off list
ITEM 2F: Provide "pero	entage off list" discount pricing for Star:
ITEM 2F BID:	% off list
ITEM 2G: Provide "pero	centage off list" discount pricing for System Sensor:
ITEM 2G BID:	% off list
ITEM 2H: Provide "pero	centage off list" discount pricing for Tyco:
ITEM 2H BID:	% off list
ITEM 2i: Provide "perce	entage off list" discount pricing for Victaulic:
ITEM 2i BID:	% off list
	(Signature of Bidder) (Date)

CERTIFIED TECHNICIANS FORM:

INSTRUCTIONS:

- Complete and return <u>this form</u> with your bid. Do not provide the information on any other form or paper. Make as many copies of this form as needed to accommodate all employees who may be used for BCPS projects.
- 2. Provide the name, position (title) and date of hire for each worker on staff as a full time, not contractual employee. Bidders are required to submit minimum of five (5) Journeyman Electricians and a minimum of two (2) Apprentice Electricians.

EMPLOYEE #1			
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #2			
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #3	Name/Title of Worker		
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #4			
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #5			
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #6			
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #7			
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #8			
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #9	Name/Title of Worker		
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
EMPLOYEE #10			
	Name/Title of Worker	Date of hire	
part time, contractua	e are <u>full time, properly trained, expe</u> al, or temporary employees, and t d for work at BCPS sites.		
		(Signature of Bidder)	(Date)
FORM OF PROPOSA	AL	0	04000-5

REFERENCES

List at least 3 references (preferably school systems) -- one may be with BCPS, customers of your organization over the last eighteen (18) months. References--should include items of similar scope and size for which your firm has provided service. Make additional copies of this page if necessary.

Reference #1			
Customer/Client Name			
Description of Product or Serv	vices Provided to Customer/Client		
Representatives Name	() () Representative's Phone # Fax Numb	per Email	
Reference #2			
Customer/Client Name			
Description of Product or Serv	vices Provided to Customer/Client		
Representatives Name	() () Representative's Phone # Fax Numb	per Email	
Reference #3			
Customer/Client Name			
Description of Product or Serv	vices Provided to Customer/Client		
Representatives Name	Representative's Phone # Fax Numb	per Email	
	(\$	Signature of Bidder) (Date)

ADDENDA

f applicable) Please complete and return with your bid response.	
the undersigned, acknowledge receipt of the following addenda to this solid	citation
ddendum #1 - Date Received	
ddendum #2 - Date Received	
ddendum #3 - Date Received	
ddendum #4 - Date Received	
Signature	
Title	
Supplier Name	

PROPOSAL SHEET

I/We	of its employees directly	of my/our knowledge, that neither this firm, nor any of its officers, directors y involved in obtaining contracts with Federal, State or Local Agencies ha to violate procurement articles of the Annotated Code of Maryland (S.F. S	ve been found in
I / We		ade without any previous understanding, agreement, or connection with a id for the same supplies, materials, and equipment, and (contracted) servut collusion or fraud.	
I / We	all safety and health sta	and equipment bid by this firm, to be supplied to the Baltimore County Pub andards as prescribed by the rules and regulations of the Maryland Occup MOSHA STANDARDS 29 CFR 1910.	
I/We		delivered to, and/or used or brought on to BCPS property is accompanies ation verifying/confirming item(s) to be "asbestos free."	d by a
I / We		neres to or follows non-discriminatory practices with respect to the employ gard to color, creed, race, sex, or national origin.	ment or promotion
I/We		kage, mark, and deliver to the Baltimore County Public Schools, the suppin the accompanying specifications at the unit prices indicated.	ies, materials or
I / We		ware of and adheres to Section 11-722(c) of the Criminal Procedure Artic ryland; and, Md. Ed. Code Ann., §6-113.	e, of the
Is your compa	any a certified Minority B	Business Enterprise with the State of Maryland?YesNo MDO	Γ#
Please indica	ate which group gualifies	the business as a Minority Business Enterprise:	
			5
(African Ame Individual)	rican) (Alaskan Native)	(Asian) (Women) (Hispanic) (American Indian) (Physical or Mental	Disabled
ls your comp	any a small husiness wit	h less than fifty (50) employees which generates annual revenue less than	n ten (10) million
	_yesNo	Those than may (60) employees which generates annual revenue less than	11011 (10) 111111011
Is your busine	ess located within Baltim	ore County, Maryland?YesNo	
carefully exam Contract and a	ined Terms, Conditions,	of the bidder and having the legal authority to make this proposal, I hereby Requirements, Specifications and Drawings (including all Addenda), form is, inspections, labor, equipment, and materials to complete work as specific Schools.	ing a part of the
	COMPANY:	FEDERAL ID#	
	ADDRESS:		
	SIGNATURE:		
TY	PED NAME/TITLE:		
	TELEPHONE:	FAX DATE	
	E-MAIL:		
F	RETURN BID TO:	Office of Purchasing 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor Towson, Maryland 21204 Include Solicitation Number	

FORM OF PROPOSAL

STATE OF MARYLAND ANTI-BRIBERY AFFIDAVIT

ΙH	EREBY CERTIFY that			
1.	I am the	and the duly authorized representative of the	firm	
	of	who address is		
teri cor hav	aryland, and, where appropriate, to the Ende of Maryland. I acknowledge that if the minate any contract awarded and take ampliance with 16-203, S.F. of the Annot we admitted to bribery, attempted briber mentering into contracts with the State	be furnished to the requesting agency, to the Secretary of Board of Public Works and the Attorney General under 16 he representations set forth in this affidavit are not true an any other appropriate action. I further acknowledge that I tated Code of Maryland, which provides that certain persory, or conspiracy to bribe may be disqualified, either by open or any of its agencies or subdivisions.	-202, S.F. of the Annotated d correct, the State may am executing this affidavit in ns who have been convicted or eration of law or after a hearing	
	Tuo soleminy deciare and amm unde	The periance of perjury that the contents of this amount	are true and correct.	
	Witness	Signature		
		Date		
	STAT	E OF MARYLAND TAX CERTIFICATION		
pay De res	the procurement officer that the bidder of yments, and interest not barred by limital partment of Economic and Employmen sponsible for collection; and if the bidder	te procurement contract of \$10,000 or more is submitted, for offeror has paid all taxes, unemployment insurance conations and payable to the comptroller, the Department of Ast Development or has provided for payment in a manner strong of the Tax - General Article.	atribution, reimbursement Assessments and Taxation or the satisfactory to the unit	
	e Tax Division under 13-222, S.F. of the	be furnished to the requesting agency, and to the Compt e <u>Annotated Code of Maryland</u> . I acknowledge that, if the ate may terminate any contract awarded and take any othe	representations set forth in this	
BII	DDERS SHALL PROVIDE STATE OF	MARYLAND TAX CERTIFICATION NUMBER ON THE L	INE DIRECTLY BELOW:	
	I do solemnly declare and affirm unde	r the penalties of perjury that the contents of this certificate	e are true and correct.	
	Witness	Signature	Date	
 Na	me/Title (please type or print)	Name/Title (please type or print)	 Date	

<u>CERTIFICATION REGARDING U.S. GOVERNMENT DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION</u>

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 34 CFR, part 85, Section 85.510, Participants' responsibilities. The regulations were published as Part VII of the May 26, 1988, Federal Register (pages 19160-19211).

- (1) The prospective participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- (2) Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statement in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Name and Title	of Authorized A	Agency/Organization Representative
Signature	Date	
Agency/Organi	zation	

^{*}Above certification instituted by the U.S. Department of Education for all grantees and sub grantees as of fiscal year 1990.

Board of Directors - Diversity Affidavit

Code of Maryland proposals on scho diversity of its Bo	d. Education enacted July 1, 20 ool construction projects shall pard of Directors. Said diversity provide said documentation may	egulation, Bids, §5-112, Annotated 100. All bidders interested in submitting rovide information that identifies the shall be identified by completion of this to be cause for rejection of the bidder's
Name of	Corporation/Business	BCPS Bid No.
List of Board of D	<u>irectors</u>	
Name of Individu	al Title	Diversity (See Legend)
Diversity Legend: Americans;	(4) Asians; (5) Hispanics; (6) Phys (7) Women; or (8) A non-profit ent physically or mentally disabled inc	vidual may qualify for more than one

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned does hereby make the following Affidavit. I affirm that my company or I am a Small Business Enterprise (SBE). A Small Business is a for-profit business, other than a broker, that meets the following criteria:

- .1 it is independently owned and operated;
- .2 it is not a subsidiary of another business;
- .3 it is not dominant in its field of operation;
- .4 its wholesale operations did not employ more than 50 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$4,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years;
- .5 its retail operations did not employ more than 25 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$3,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years;
- .6 its manufacturing operations did not employ more than 100 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$2,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years;
- .7 its service operations did not employ more than 100 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$10,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years; and
- .8 its construction operations did not employ more than 50 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$7,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years.
- .9 BCPS reserves the right to request tax documents to support such a claim.

Print Name Signed Above		Print Name Signed Above	
Signature	Date	Witness	Date
Business Phone			-
City, State, Zip:			-
Street Address:			-
Company:			-
Name and Title:			_

FORM OF PROPOSAL

¹Board of Education of Baltimore County Policy No. 3200; Board of Education of Baltimore County Superintendent's Rule No. 3200 (Policy Adopted 9/10/96).

SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned as a contractor does hereby make the following Affidavit. I acknowledge the Small Business Enterprise (SBE) and Certified Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) participation goal of fourteen (14) percent for the contract with the Baltimore County Board of Education, and commit to make a good faith effort to achieve this goal. In the solicitation of subcontract quotations or offerors, all SBE and MBE subcontractors and suppliers were provided not less than the same information and amount of time to respond to the solicitations as non-Small Business Enterprise and Minority Business Enterprise subcontractors.

The solicitation process was conducted in such a manner so as to otherwise not place SBE and MBE subcontractors at a competitive disadvantage to non-SBE and MBE subcontractors.

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE FAILURE TO SUBMIT THIS AFFIDAVIT TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION MAY RESULT IN A DETERMINATION THAT THIS BID IS NON-RESPONSIVE.

I understand that I must submit the SBE/MBE documentation described in the bid documents at the time of bid. Furthermore, I understand that failure to comply with this contract requirement may result in a determination that my bid is non-responsive and therefore would not be awarded to me.

I understand and agree that, if awarded the contract, we will implement the provisions of the above paragraph with respect to subcontracts to be let after the award of the contract, but that such subcontracts will not be let until the Board of Education has reviewed and approved the SBE/MBE submittals.

I understand and agree that, if awarded the contract, I will and do hereby authorize representatives of the Baltimore County Board of Education to examine, from time to time, the books, records and files of this organization to the extent that such data relates and pertains to the affirmative action pursuant to this contract.

I do solemnly declare and affirm under the penalty of perjury that the contents of the foregoing document are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

Company Name			Signature
Address			Printed Name
Sworn and subscribed before me this	day of	in the year	·
Notary Public			

Baltimore County Public Schools SMALL BUSINESS AND CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND BIDDER'S STATEMENT OF INTENT

PROJE	CINA	ME:			
PROJE	CT LO	CATION:			
Α.	Name	of Bidder:			
В.	Name	of SBE/MBE:			
Indicate	e with a	nd "X" SBE or MBE status:	MBE	SBE	
SBE/M	BE Pho	ne Number:	Fax Number:		
	1.	Work or Services to be performed by	SBE/MBE:		
	2.	Subcontract Amount: \$			
	3.	SBE/MBE Commencement Date:	Completion Date	e:	
	4.	This SBE/MBE subcontract represen contract: %	ts the following percentage of the to	otal value of the	
	indicat with th Busine	ndersigned subcontractor and bidder wated above subject to the bidder's execute Baltimore County Board of Education ess Enterprise and/or a Certified Minori). The terms an ments.	tion of a contract for the above refend. The undersigned subcontractor is	renced project s a Small gency & no.	
	(Signature of Subcontractor) (Date) The terms and conditions stated above are consistent with our agreements.				
	(Signa	ture of Bidder) (Date)			

004000-15

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS SMALL BUSINESS AND CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE REQUEST FOR WAIVER

Proje	ect Name:	Bid No	
Total	contract amount (with accepted alternates))\$	
14%	of total contract value	\$	(0()
SBE/	MBE participation in this contract	\$	
Enter	I do hereby request that an exception be value of this contract be placed with a Smal rprise (MBE). I hereby certify that my positions are the contractive of	II Business Enterprise (SBE) and/o	or Certified Minority Business
			(Company Name)
partic	I do further certify that I have submitted rprise and Bidder Statement of Intent form vicipation, which my company expects to achientage is%. Therefore, the Request	which reflects the percentage and ieve for this contract. That dollar v	dollar value of SBE/MBE value is \$ and the
true t	To support this Request for Waiver, I in to the best of my knowledge, information an		attachments, which I certify to be
1.	A detailed statement of the efforts made subcontracts in order to increase the lik		
2.	A detailed statement of the efforts made business enterprise firms;	e to solicit small business enterpri	se and/or certified minority
3.	A detailed statement of the efforts to ma above;	ake personal contact with SBE/ME	BE firms identified for item (2)
4.	A record of the name, address, telepho and (3) above;	ne number, and dates contacted f	or each SBE/MBE firm for items (2)
5.	A description of the information provide anticipated time schedule for portions of		plans, specifications, and the
6.	A detailed statement of reasons for the which the bidder considers not be acce		tation from the SBE/MBE firm
7.	A list of SBE/MBE subcontractors found Enterprise/Certified Minority Business E SBE/MBE firm and the bidder.		
Signa	ature	Date	
Swor	rn and subscribed before me this	day of	in the year
	Notary Public		
Revie	ewed and approved by the Baltimore Count	y Board of Education MBE Liaison	1
Signa	ature	Date	

FORM OF PROPOSAL

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS SMALL BUSINESS AND CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE SUBCONTRACTOR UNAVAILABILITY CERTIFICATE

	It is hereby certified that the firm of(Name of SBE/MBE firm)
	Located at was offered an (Complete Mailing Address)
Section I	opportunity to bid on the school project in Baltimore County by (Name of School)
	located at (Name of Bidder) (Complete Mailing Address and Telephone Number)
Section II	The is either unavailable for the work/service, is (Name of SBE/MBE Firm) unable to prepare a bid for this project or did not respond to a request for a price proposal for the following reason(s): (Certifying Agency & Number) (Signature)
	(Telephone Number) (Title and Date)
	To be completed by the potential award bidder if Section II of this form is not completed by the small Business or certified minority business enterprise.
Section III	To the best of my knowledge, information and belief said Small or Minority Business Enterprise is either unavailable for the work/service for this contract, is unable to prepare a bid, or did not respond to a request for a price proposal and has not completed the above portion of this submittal.
	(Signature)
	(Title and Date)

NO BID SHEET (use only when not participating in bid)

PLEASE CHECK THE APPROPRIATE ITEM	VS
1. We wish to submit a NO BID at thi	s time. The reason for submitting a NO BID is:
	d return this form to the Purchasing Office may result in your removal School approved vendor list for this bid.
2. Please include our name to RECE	IVE FUTURE BIDS for the FOLLOWING GOODS/SERVICES:
	
3. Please DELETE our name from fu	ture bids for this commodity.
4. Please COMPLETE the following:	
_	ness Enterprise with State of Maryland?YesNo MDOT#
	·
5	business as a Minority Business Enterprise.
African American Asian Women Hisp	anic American Indian Physically or Mentally disabled individual
Is your company a small business with les less than ten (10) million dollars?Yes	ss than fifty (50) employees which generates an annual revenueNo
Is your business located within Baltimore	County, Maryland?YesNo
COMPANY	
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE	
TYPED NAME/TITLE	
ADDRESS	
CITY/STATE/ZIP	
PHONE	FAX
Return to:	Baltimore County Public Schools
	Purchasing Agent 6901 Charles Street, Building "E", 1st Floor Towson, Maryland 21204

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROCEDURES

FOR

BALTIMORE COUNTY FUNDED CONTRACTS

Baltimore County Public Schools

Focused on Quality, Committed to Excellence

Effective: April 2, 2001

Revised: December 1, 2015

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

S. Dallas Dance Ph.D., Superintendent

Towson, Maryland 21204-371

Small Business Enterprise and Certified Minority Business Enterprise Document Check List For Baltimore County Funded Contracts

- 1. Small Business and Certified Minority Business Enterprise Utilization Affidavit The bidder shall submit this affidavit with the bid proposal; failure to submit may result in the bid being determined non-responsive.
- 2. Small Business/Certified Minority Business Enterprise and Potential Award Bidder's Statement of Intent This form shall be completed and signed by bidder and each SBE/MBE firm selected as part of the bidder's team.
- 3. Request for Waiver (if applicable) This form shall be submitted by the bidder if necessary. See procedures for instructions.
- 4. Small Business and Certified Minority Business Enterprise Subcontractor Unavailability Certificate This certificate must be signed by the bidder and accompanied by a list of small and certified minority business enterprise subcontractors or suppliers found to be unavailable.
- 5. Standard Monthly Contractor's Requisition for Payment The potential award bidder shall complete this form with each requisition submitted for payment. **This form shall be completed for construction projects only.**

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Division of Physical Facilities Melanie Webster Minority Business Enterprise Officer 6901 N. Charles Street Building E Towson, MD 21204

> Telephone: 443-809-4334 Fax: 410-887-7831

Baltimore County Public Schools

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROCEDURES FOR COUNTY FUNDED CONTRACTS

1.0 Purpose

To attempt to achieve a minimum of 14 percent of the total dollar value of all contracts directly or indirectly with small business and/or certified minority enterprises when Baltimore County funds are utilized.

2.0 Effective Date

These procedures have been approved by Baltimore County Public Schools (BCPS), and supersede previously approved Small Business and Certified Minority Business Enterprise procedures, and are in effect on or after April 2, 2001.

3.0 Definitions

- 1. Small Business: A for-profit business, other than a broker, that meets the following criteria:
 - a. it is independently owned and operated;
 - b. it is not a subsidiary of another business;
 - c. it is not dominant in its field of operation;
 - d. its wholesale operations did not employ more than 50 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$4,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years;
 - e. its retail operations did not employ more than 25 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$3,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years;
 - f. its manufacturing operations did not employ more than 100 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$2,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years;
 - g. its service operations did not employ more than 100 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$10,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years; and
 - h. its construction operations did not employ more than 50 persons, and its gross sales did not exceed an average of \$7,000,000 in its most recently completed 3 fiscal years.
 - i. BCPS reserves the right to request tax documents to support such a claim.
- 2. Certified Minority Business Enterprise is any legal entity, other than a joint venture, which holds a certification issued by the Maryland State Department of Transportation or other recognized municipalities which identify the legal entity as a Minority Business Enterprise.
- 3. Minority Business Enterprise Liaison means the employee of the Board of Education designated to administer the Board's Small Business Enterprise and Certified Minority Business Enterprise Procedures.
 - a. The MBE Liaison may assist the potential award bidder in identifying SBE/MBE firms that could participate in the contract.
- 4. Potential Award Bidder means a bidder deemed responsive and responsible pending approval by the Board of Education.
- 5. Award Bidder means a responsive and responsible bidder approved by the Board of Education.

6. Failure to provide required SBE/MBE participation forms may result in the rejection of the proposal.

4.0 Implementing Procedures

1. EACH PROPOSAL SHALL INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

- A notarized Small Business Enterprise and Certified Minority Business Utilization Affidavit.
- b. A properly executed Small Business Enterprise/Certified Minority Business Enterprise and Potential Award Bidder's Statement of Intent form for each SBE/MBE participating in the contract, that describes:
 - (1) The contract work to be performed, or items furnished by the SBE/MBE
 - (2) The proposed timetable for performance
 - (3) The agreed prices to be paid for the work or supplies; and
 - (4) The percentage of the total value of the contract
- c. If the bidder is unable to achieve the contract goal of 14 percent for SBE/MBE participation, the bidder will submit a written request for waiver by completing the Request for Waiver form which shall include the following:
 - (1) A detailed statement of the efforts made by the bidder to identify and select portions of the work to be performed by subcontractors and/or suppliers in order to increase the likelihood of achieving the stated goal;
 - (2) A detailed statement of the efforts made by the bidder to solicit SBE/MBE firms;
 - (3) A detailed statement of the bidder's efforts to make personal contact with SBE/MBE firms identified for item (2) above;
 - (4) A record of the name, address, telephone number and dates contacted for each SBE/MBE firm identified in items (2) and (3) above;
 - (5) A description of the information provided to SBE/MBE firms regarding the plans, specifications, and the anticipated time schedule for portions of the work to be performed;
 - (6) A detailed statement of reasons for the rejection of a subcontractor's quotation from the SBE/MBE firm which the bidder considers not to be acceptable; and,
 - (7) A list of SBE/MBE subcontractors and/or suppliers found to be unavailable. This list shall be accompanied by a Small Business Enterprise/Certified Minority Business Enterprise Subcontractor Unavailability Certificate form signed by the SBE/MBE firm and the bidder.
- d. In the event a bidder seeks a waiver of the fourteen percent (14%) goal, the bidder shall submit to the MBE Liaison the completed request for waiver on the standard BCPS form with an attachment consisting of the original supporting documentation listed immediately above 4.2.b. (1)-(7).

2. BIDDER'S RESPONSIBILITIES:

a. The bidder must ensure that SBE/MBE firms shall have the maximum practical opportunity to compete for subcontract.

- b. The bidder shall provide information and documentation as requested by the MBE Liaison.
- c. The bidder shall maintain the following records:
 - (1) All documents necessary to confirm compliance with SBE/MBE utilization.
 - (2) All written records that indicate the identity of the SBE/MBE subcontractors employed on the contract and the type/scope of work performed by the identified SBE/MBE.
 - (3) The actual dollar value of the work and/or services performed by the identified SBE/MBE.
 - (4) All records and documents concerning SBE/MBE participation must be retained by the potential award bidder/award bidder for a period of three (3) years after final completion of the contract.
 - (5) All records and documents will be available for inspection by the MBE Liaison.
- d. In the event the bidder decides to change SBE/MBE participating firms, the bidder shall submit in writing the proposed change to the MBE Liaison for approval. All written submissions must be delivered to the MBE Liaison forty-eight (48) hours in advance of proposed implementation of the change.
- e. At the completion of all work under the contract, the award bidder shall prepare a written summary of the final SBE/MBE participation. The final written report shall compare the proposed participation at the time of contract award with the actual participation. The written report shall include the dollar values of the proposed participation and the dollar values of the action participation for each SBE/MBE. In the event the actual dollar amount varies from the dollar value of the proposed participation by more than one percent (1%) then the award bidder shall provide a written explanation of the difference.
- f. Failure of the potential award bidder/award bidder to provide required SBE/MBE participation may result in termination of this contract.

5.0 Monitoring

- 1. The MBE Liaison is responsible for reviewing and approving the SBE/MBE documentation.
- The MBE Liaison reserves the right to review the SBE/MBE participation documents during the course of this contract.

SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned as a contractor does hereby make the following Affidavit. I acknowledge the Small Business Enterprise (SBE) and Certified Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) participation goal of fourteen (14) percent for the contract with the Baltimore County Board of Education, and commit to make a good faith effort to achieve this goal. In the solicitation of subcontract quotations or offerors, all SBE and MBE subcontractors and suppliers were provided not less than the same information and amount of time to respond to the solicitations as non-Small Business Enterprise and Minority Business Enterprise subcontractors.

The solicitation process was conducted in such a manner so as to otherwise not place SBE and MBE subcontractors at a competitive disadvantage to non-SBE and MBE subcontractors.

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE FAILURE TO SUBMIT THIS AFFIDAVIT TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION MAY RESULT IN A DETERMINATION THAT THIS BID IS NON-RESPONSIVE.

I understand that I must submit the SBE/MBE documentation described in the bid documents at the time of bid. Furthermore, I understand that failure to comply with this contract requirement may result in a determination that my bid is non-responsive and therefore would not be awarded to me.

I understand and agree that, if awarded the contract, we will implement the provisions of the above paragraph with respect to subcontracts to be let after the award of the contract, but that such subcontracts will not be let until the Board of Education has reviewed and approved the SBE/MBE submittals.

I understand and agree that, if awarded the contract, I will and do hereby authorize representatives of the Baltimore County Board of Education to examine, from time to time, the books, records and files of this organization to the extent that such data relates and pertains to the affirmative action pursuant to this contract.

I do solemnly declare and affirm under the penalty of perjury that the contents of the foregoing document are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

Company Name		Signature	
Address		Printed Name	
Sworn and subscribed before me this	day of	in the year	
Notary Public			

Baltimore County Public Schools SMALL BUSINESS AND CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND BIDDER'S STATEMENT OF INTENT

PROJEC	CT NAMI	B:			
PROJEC	CT LOCA	TION:			
A.	Name of	Bidder:			
B.	Name of SBE/MBE:				
Indicate	with and	"X" SBE or MBE status: MBE SBE			
SBE/MI	BE Phone	Number: Fax Number:			
	1.	Work or Services to be performed by SBE/MBE:			
	2.	Subcontract Amount: \$			
	3.	SBE/MBE Commencement Date: Completion Date:			
	4.	This SBE/MBE subcontract represents the following percentage of the total value of the contract:			
	work/ser reference Small Bu	ersigned subcontractor and potential award bidder will enter into a contract for the evice/supplies indicated above subject to the bidder's execution of a contract for the above ed project with the Baltimore County Board of Education. The undersigned subcontractor is a usiness Enterprise and/or a Certified Minority Business Enterprise (certifying agency & no.			
	(Signatu	re of Subcontractor) (Date)			
	The term	as and conditions stated above are consistent with our agreements.			
	(Signatu	re of Bidder) (Date)			

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS SMALL BUSINESS AND CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE REQUEST FOR WAIVER

	Name:ntract amount (with accepted alternates)	Bid No		
14% of t	ntract amount (with accepted afternates)	\$\$		
SBE/ME	otal contract valueBE participation in this contract	\$_	(_	%)
this cont	I do hereby request that an exception be gract be placed with a Small Business Enterpr			
	I hereby certify that my position is	and	I I am the duly autho	rized representative of
	(Company Name)			
which m	I do further certify that I have submitted a state of I ha	ich reflects the percentage a act. That dollar value is \$ _	nd dollar value of SI	BE/MBE participation,
best of n	To support this Request for Waiver, I incluny knowledge, information and belief:	de the following information	on as attachments, wh	nich I certify to be true to the
1.	A detailed statement of the efforts made to order to increase the likelihood of achieving		of the work to be pe	erformed by subcontracts in
2.	A detailed statement of the efforts made to firms;	solicit small business enter	prise and/or certified	minority business enterprise
3.	A detailed statement of the efforts to make	personal contact with SBE	MBE firms identifie	d for item (2) above;
4.	A record of the name, address, telephone mabove;	umber, and dates contacted	for each SBE/MBE	firm for items (2) and (3)
5.	A description of the information provided t time schedule for portions of the work to be		g the plans, specifica	ations, and the anticipated
6.	A detailed statement of reasons for the reje potential award bidder considers not be acc		uotation from the SE	BE/MBE firm which the
7.	A list of SBE/MBE subcontractors found to Enterprise/Certified Minority Business Ent SBE/MBE firm and the potential award bid	erprise Subcontractor Unav		
Signatur	e	Date		-
Sworn a	nd subscribed before me this	day of	in the year	
Notary F	Public			
Reviewe	d and approved by the Baltimore County Bo	ard of Education MBE Liai	son	
Signatur	e	Date		_

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS SMALL BUSINESS AND CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE SUBCONTRACTOR UNAVAILABILITY CERTIFICATE

	It is hereby certified that the firm of				
	(Name of SBE/MBE firm)				
Section I	Located at was offered an (Complete Mailing Address)				
	opportunity to bid on the school project in Baltimore County by (Name of School)				
	located at (Name of Bidder) (Complete Mailing Address and Telephone Number)				
Section II	The is either unavailable for the work/service, is unable (Name of SBE/MBE Firm) to prepare a bid for this project or did not respond to a request for a price proposal for the following reason(s): (Certifying Agency & Number) (Signature) (Telephone Number) (Title and Date)				
Section III	To be completed by the potential award bidder if Section II of this form is not completed by the small Business or certified minority business enterprise. To the best of my knowledge, information and belief said Small or Minority Business Enterprise is either Unavailable for the work/service for this contract, is unable to prepare a bid, or did not respond to a request For a price proposal and has not completed the above portion of this submittal. (Signature) (Title and Date)				

BALTIMORE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS STANDARD MONTHLY CONTRACTOR'S REQUISITION FOR PAYMENT SMALL BUSINESS AND/OR CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION CONSTRUCTION ONLY

	TLE:			O NO: Q NO:	
ORGNL./ ADDTL	NAME OF SBE/MBE (Indicate SBE or MBE next to firm name)	TOTAL SBE/MBE CONTRACT	AMOUNT TO BE PAID THIS REQUISITION	PAID JULY 1, 20 TO JUN 30, 20	TOTAL PAID TO DATE
1	2	3	4	5	6
	TOTAL				
ayments have	ne figures and information pre to been and will be, made to su in accordance with our contra	appliers and subcon			
Name of Contr	rootor Firm		Authorized	Signature/Date	

MBU-506-18

EXHIBIT A: BCPS SITES

### SPANNERS SYSTEMS	SCHOOL OR LOCATION	Phone Number	Address	Area	Notation
Manus Medic S87-1402 S97-590	SCHOOL ON LOCATION	Thore runner		74100	Notation
State Concest Elementary 88 7700 7828 Saint Particlas Lane, Bustinove MD, 21222 Sc.	Arbutus Middle	887-1402	T	SW	
State Monamer Elementary	Baltimore Highlands Elementary	887-0919	4200 Annapolis Rd 21227	SW	
Secretariate Secr	Battle Grove Elementary		7828 Saint Patricia Lane, Baltimore MD, 21222	-	
Selector Elementary 887-1202 7407 Demand Drive, Ballmore MD, 21204 NV Campital Early Childhood Centre Special 887-0784 685 Aller Stocker, Ballmore MD, 21207 NW Campital Early Childhood Centre Special 887-0784 685 Aller Stocker, Ballmore MD, 21207 NW Carrior Marco RS 887-5228 351 Earl Joseph Rood Callmore MD, 21204 NE Carrior Marco RS 887-5274 4434 Carriol Marco Mod. 20101 OX Pre Pump - Diesel / Dry System on Site Carrior Marco RS 887-5289 4434 Carriol Marco Mod. 20101 OX Pre Pump - Diesel / Dry System on Site Calcinoville El Long Long Long Long Long Long Long Long	,			_	Special Needs - Restricted Testing Times
Seriable Desiration	,				
Correption Early Chief Doc Carrier Special 887-076 8954 Apr Steek, Batteriore MD, 21207 NW	,				
Carriny Enterentary	•			-	
Carcol Marco ES				_	
Calconomie S Al Center Mad & 15				-	Fire Pump - Diesel / Dry System on Site
Cacheroville E 887-8800				_	The Full Dieself Bry System on Site
Calensviel High					
Ockstammer Elementary 887-1300 17 Nicodemus Road, Resisterstown MD, 21136 NW Chapel Hill Elementary 887-3109 10 18 Winder Road, Ballmore MD, 21126 Nr Chapel Hill Elementary 887-5159 5200 Jopas Road, Perry Hall MD, 21128 Nr Chales Elementary 887-5159 7300 West Collingham Drive, Baltmore MD, 21222 SE Chales Elementary 887-5409 1770 Eastern Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21220 SF Dry System on Site Chalescord Elementary 887-5001 1801 Tilling Proint Road, Ballmore MD, 21221 SE Dry System on Site Chrisospouler Terrato Elementary 887-7002 1801 Tilling Proint Road, Ballmore MD, 21201 NW Special Needs - Restricted Testing Times Chrisospouler Terrato Elementary 443-590-8321 121 Lodge Farm Mod, Ballmore MD, 21201 NW Cockeypwiller MDG 570-501 10 148 Read, Crederwiller, MD, 21200 NN No Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeypwiller MDG 587-7026 10 148 Read, Crederwiller, MD, 21209 NN No Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeypwiller Elementary 887-7011 10 148 Read, Crederwiller, MB, 16 Med 10 Long				SW	Fire Pump - Electric
Chadwick Elementary	Catonsville Middle	887-0803	2301 Edmondson Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21228	SW	
Chapel Hill Elementary	Cedarmere Elementary	887-1100	17 Nicodemus Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136	NW	
Charles Elementary 887-7004 280 West Colingham Dive. Batternor MD. 21222 SE	,	887-1300	1918 Winder Road, Baltimore MD, 21244		
Chase Elementary 87-9940 1170 Eastern Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21220 St. Dry System on Site Chalavorth School Elementary 87-1010 87-1010 1901 Turkey Point Road, Baltimore MD, 21210 St. Dry System on Site Chalavorth School Elementary 887-1020 1901 Turkey Point Road, Baltimore MD, 21210 St. Dry System on Site Chalavorth Lane Technology Elementary 887-7017 3820 Fernisde Road, Bandalstown MD, 21133 NW Cockeyswille But 43-809-3211 103 Wight Avenue, Cockeyswille MD, 21030 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeyswille MD (1900 CN. Dry System i					
Chalsworth School Elementary 887-1103 222 New Avenue, Relatestown MD, 21219 55	•				
Cheaspaske High Cheaspaske High Cheaspaske High Cheaspaske High Cheaspaske High Cheaspaske High Cheaspaske Prize Clementary 887-705 2112 Loge Frender Road, Battmore MD, 2121 55 Church Lane Technology Elementary 887-705 370 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 Cockeyswille Food Service Warehouse 448-809-785 103 Wight Nave, Cockeyswille MD, 21030 CN Cockeyswille Food Service Warehouse 448-809-785 104 Roser, Cockeyswille MD, 21030 CN Cockeyswille Food Service Warehouse 488-7763 104 Roser, Cockeyswille MD, 21030 CN Cockeyswille Food Service Warehouse 488-7763 104 Roser, Cockeyswille MD, 21030 CN Cortex-world Modele 887-7015 104 Roser, Cockeyswille MD, 21030 CN Cortex-world Modele 887-7012 105 Worldsone Road, Towaron MD, 21221 55 Deep Creek Modele 887-7012 100 Warlyn Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21221 55 Deep Creek Modele 887-7012 100 Warlyn Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21221 55 Deep Creek Modele 887-7012 100 Warlyn Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21211 56 Deep Creek Modele 887-7013 2715 Departmentary 887-7033 285 Pedonia Road, Tamonium MD, 21133 NW Deep Park Elementary 887-7033 285 Pedonia Road, Tamonium MD, 21244 50 Dundark Modele 887-7013 2717 Playfield Street, Baltmore MD, 21222 55 Dundark Modele 887-7013 2717 Playfield Street, Baltmore MD, 21222 55 Dundark Modele 887-7013 2717 Playfield Street, Baltmore MD, 21222 55 Dundark Modele 887-8010 100 Mark Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21222 55 Dundark Modele 887-8010 100 Mark Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21221 51 Edigenera Elementary 887-8010 100 Mark Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21221 51 Edigenera Elementary 887-8010 100 Mark Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21221 51 Edigenera Elementary 887-8010 100 Mark Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21207 57 Emmodel Elementary 887-101 100 Mark Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21207 57 Endish Helder Lame Elementary 887-101 100 Mark Avenue, Baltmore MD, 21207 57 Endish H			, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
Chesapeate Terrace Elementary	•		,		special needs - Restricted Testing Times
Church Lain Entenhology Elementary				_	
Cockeysylle Bus Lot	' '			_	
Cockeywille Food Service Warehouse 44.3 809-7855 10 Air Road, Cookeywille, MD 21030 CN CN CN Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer Cockeywille Middle 887-7456 10401 Greeneide Drive, Cookeywille MD, 21020 CN CN Deep Creek Middle 887-0112 1000 Marby name, Battmore MD, 21221 St CN Deep Creek Middle 887-0112 1000 Marby name, Battmore MD, 21221 St CN Deep Creek Middle 887-0121 1000 Marby name, Battmore MD, 21221 St CN Deep Creek Middle 887-0715 9800 Vironands Road, Randallatown MD, 211133 NW NW Deep Creek Middle 887-0783 255 Daywood Road, Battmore MD, 21633 CN NW Dumbard North Middle 887-3176 3000 Dumbards Road, Randallatown MD, 21633 CN NW Dumbard North Middle 887-3176 3000 Dumbards Road, Battmore MD, 21222 St St Dumdak Middle 887-3176 3000 Dumbards Road, Battmore MD, 21222 St St Dundak Middle 887-3176 3700 Dumbards Road, Sattmore MD, 21222 St St Dundak Middle<					
Cockeyswille Middle 88.7-826 10401 Greenside Drive, Cockeyswille MD, 21030 CN Cromwell Valley Elementary 88.7-8188 825 Providence Road, Towns MD, 21286 CN Deep Creek Elementary 88.7-0112 100 Marky Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221 SE Deer Park Middle 88.7-0112 100 Marky Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221 SE Deer Park Middle 88.7-0223 9809 Lyons MIII Road, Owings MIII RND, 21117 NW Deer Park Middle 88.7-0226 9830 Winnach Stoad, Enandatistows MD, 21133 NW Dogwood Elementary 88.7-6008 7215 Dogwood Road, Baltimore MD, 21144 SW Dumbard Niddle 887-7633 255 Padonis Road, Timorium MD, 21050 CN Dundak Clementary 887-7633 275 Padonis Road, Baltimore MD, 21122 CN Dundak Middle 887-7333 2771 Palleyfeld Street, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dundak Stelers MHS 887-7003 1901 Delete Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Eastern Technical High 887-7018 1901 Delete Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Edinomach Lementary 887-7017 7201 Naminore MD, 21207 NE			<u> </u>		CN Dry System in Sub-Zero Freezer
Commel Valley Elementary	,			-	
Deep Creek Middle 887-0112 1000 Marlyn Avenue, Ballimore MD, 21221 SE Deer Park Elementary 887-0723 9808 Lyons Mill Road, Owings Mills MD, 21117 NW Deer Park Middle 887-0723 9808 Uyanada Road, Randalistown MD, 21133 NW Dogwood Elementary 887-6808 7215 Dogwood Road, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Dumbarton Middle 887-7833 255 Padonia Road, Timonium MD, 21093 CN Dumbarton Middle 887-7313 300 Dumbarton Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dundalk Sollers MHS 887-77032 2171 Psyled OS Street, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dundalk Middle 887-7013 7400 Dumnarway, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Eastern Echnical High 887-7013 11901 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Eastern Echnical High 887-7017 7201 North Point Road, Baltimore MD, 21221 NE Edimende Sona Heights Elementary 887-7532 510 Dale Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW Einwood Elementary 887-1322 51 Dale Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 NE Essex Elementary 887-1312 100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW<		887-4888	825 Providence Road, Towson MD, 21286	CN	
Deer Park Elementary	Deep Creek Elementary	887-0110	1101 East Homberg Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221	SE	
Deer Park Middle	Deep Creek Middle	887-0112	1000 Marlyn Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221	SE	
Dopwood Elementary 887-6808 7215 Dogwood Road. Beltimore MD, 21244 SW Dumbart High 887-7633 255 Padonia Road, Timonium MD, 21212 CN Dumbarton Middle 887-3176 300 Dumbarton Road, Baltimore MD, 21212 CN Dumdalk Middle 887-7018 7400 Dumnamawy, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dundalk Middle 887-7018 7400 Dumnamawy, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dundalk Kollers MHS 887-7019 1100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Eastern Technical High 887-9019 1100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221 NE Edgemere Elementary 887-9019 1100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW Edgemere Elementary 887-9018 1600 Langford Road, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW Elmondson Heights Elementary 887-5232 531 Dale Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21206 NE Essex Elementary 887-5126 730 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW Featherbed Lane Elementary 887-1226 3725 Mount Carmel Road, Uppero MD, 21107 SW Frind Carrison Elementary 887-1120 3310 Woodvalley Drive, Baltimore MD, 21208 NW </td <td>Deer Park Elementary</td> <td>887-0723</td> <td>9809 Lyons Mill Road, Owings Mills MD, 21117</td> <td>NW</td> <td></td>	Deer Park Elementary	887-0723	9809 Lyons Mill Road, Owings Mills MD, 21117	NW	
Dulaney High	Deer Park Middle		, ,		
Dumbarion Middle	Dogwood Elementary			-	
Dundalk Middle	, ,			_	
Dundalk Middle					
Dundaik Soliers M/HS				-	
Eastern Technical High 887-0190 1100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21212 NE Edgmere Elementary 887-7507 7201 North Point Road, Baltimore MD, 21219 SE Edmondson Heighis Elementary 887-6318 1600 Langford Road, Baltimore MD, 21206 NE Elmwood Elementary 887-5232 531 Dake Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21206 NE Essex Elementary 887-1107 100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW Featherbed Lane Elementary 887-1102 6700 Richardson Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW Fort Garrison Elementary 887-1203 3310 Woodvalley Drive, Baltimore MD, 21208 NW Franklin Elementary 887-1203 3310 Woodvalley Drive, Baltimore MD, 21108 NW Franklin Elementary 887-1111 33 Cockeys Mill Road, Resisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1111 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Resisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1114 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Resisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1134 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Resisterstown MD, 21236 NE George Washington Carver Center 887-7334 4400 Fulle					
Edgemere Elementary 887-557 7201 North Point Road, Baltimore MD, 21219 SE Edmondson Heights Elementary 887-0818 1600 Langford Road, Baltimore MD, 21206 NE Elssex Elementary 887-5232 531 Dale Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21201 NE Essex Elementary 887-117 100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW Fifth District Elementary 887-1203 3725 Mount Carmel Road, Upperco MD, 21155 CN Fire Pump - Diesel / Dry System on Site Fort Garrison Elementary 887-1203 331 Oukoodvalley Drive, Baltimore MD, 21208 NW Fort Garrison Elementary 887-1119 331 Cookeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1119 12000 Reisterstown Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1111 10 Cookeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1111 10 Cookeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1119 12000 Reisterstown Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW General John Stricker Middle 887-5234 4400 Fullerton Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE George Washington					
Edmondson Heights Elementary 887-0818 1600 Langford Road, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW	Edgemere Elementary		, ,		
Essex Elementary 887-0117 100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221 NE	Edmondson Heights Elementary	887-0818	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_	
Featherbed Lane Elementary 887-1302 6700 Richardson Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207 SW Fifth District Elementary 887-1266 3725 Mount Carmel Road, Upperco MD, 21155 CN Fire Pump - Diesel / Dry System on Site Fort Garrison Elementary 887-1213 3310 Woodwalley Drive, Baltimore MD, 21208 NW Franklin Elementary 887-1111 33 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1119 12000 Reisterstown Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1114 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1114 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1114 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1274 4400 Fullerton Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21226 NE General John Stricker Middle 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE General John Stricker Middle 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 NE Glenmar Elementary 887-1127 9700 Community Drive, Baltimore MD, 21220 NE Glyndon Elementary 887-1130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Golden Ring Middle 887-7033 6700 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21227 NE Grange Elementary 887-7043 2000 Church Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dry System on Site Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - C 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - D 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3404 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3404 Holiday Ma	Elmwood Elementary	887-5232		NE	
Fifth District Elementary 887-126 3725 Mount Carmel Road, Upperco MD, 21155 CN Fire Pump - Diesel / Dry System on Site Fort Garrison Elementary 887-1203 3310 Woodvalley Drive, Baltimore MD, 21208 NW Franklin Elementary 887-1119 12000 Reisterstown Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1119 12000 Reisterstown Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin Middle 887-1114 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin Middle 887-1134 4400 Fullerton Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21208 NE General John Stricker Middle 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE George Washington Carver Center 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Glenmar Elementary 887-1130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21204 CN Glyndon Elementary 887-1130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21237 NE Grange Elementary 887-0130 6700 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21237 NE Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - B	Essex Elementary	887-0117	100 Mace Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221	NE	
Fort Garrison Elementary	Featherbed Lane Elementary		6700 Richardson Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21207	SW	
Franklin Elementary 887-1111 33 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin High 887-1119 12000 Reisterstown Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin Middle 887-1114 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Fullerton Elementary 887-5234 4400 Fullerton Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE General John Stricker Middle 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE George Washington Carver Center 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 CN Glemmar Elementary 887-0127 9700 Community Drive, Baltimore MD, 21220 NE Glyndon Elementary 887-1130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Golden Ring Middle 887-0130 6700 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21237 NE Grange Elementary 887-043 2000 Church Road, Baltimore MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - C 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204	Fifth District Elementary			-	Fire Pump - Diesel / Dry System on Site
Franklin High 887-1119 12000 Reisterstown Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin Middle 887-1114 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Franklin Middle 887-5234 4400 Fullerton Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE General John Stricker Middle 887-5234 4400 Fullerton Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE George Washington Carver Center 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 NE Glenmar Elementary 887-0127 9700 Community Drive, Baltimore MD, 21204 CN Glyndon Elementary 887-0130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21200 NE Glyndon Elementary 887-1130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21200 NE Gorden Ring Middle 887-0130 6700 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21237 NE Grange Elementary 887-7043 2000 Church Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dry System on Site Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Greenwood - B 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Greenwood - B 8	Fort Garrison Elementary			_	
Franklin Middle 887-1114 10 Cockeys Mill Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Fullerton Elementary 887-5234 4400 Fullerton Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE General John Stricker Middle 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE George Washington Carver Center 887-2775 938 North York Road, Baltimore MD, 21204 CN Glenmar Elementary 887-0127 9700 Community Drive, Baltimore MD, 21220 NE Glyndon Elementary 887-1130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21220 NW Golden Ring Middle 887-0130 6700 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21237 NE Grange Elementary 887-7043 2000 Church Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dry System on Site Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Greenwood - C 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Gunpowder Elementary 887-5121 9540 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE NE	•				
Fullerton Elementary 887-5234 4400 Fullerton Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE General John Stricker Middle 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE George Washington Carver Center 887-2775 938 North York Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 NE Glenmar Elementary 887-0127 9700 Community Drive, Baltimore MD, 21220 NE Glyndon Elementary 887-1130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Golden Ring Middle 887-0130 6700 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21237 NE Grange Elementary 887-7043 2000 Church Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - C 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - D 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21234 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21234 NE Greenwood - E 887-305 7111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Greenwood - E 87-305 7111 Charles Street, Towso	<u> </u>				
General John Stricker Middle 887-7038 7855 Trappe Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE George Washington Carver Center 887-2775 938 North York Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 CN Glenmar Elementary 887-0127 9700 Community Drive, Baltimore MD, 21220 NE Glyndon Elementary 887-1130 445 Glyndon Drive, Reisterstown MD, 21136 NW Golden Ring Middle 887-0130 6700 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21237 NE Grange Elementary 887-0130 2000 Church Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dry System on Site Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Greenwood - D 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN CN Gunpowder Elementary 887-3120 9540 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE Halalethorpe Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>					
Series	General John Stricker Middle				
Separate					
Section Sect					
Golden Ring Middle 887-0130 6700 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21237 NE Grange Elementary 887-7043 2000 Church Road, Baltimore MD, 21222 SE Dry System on Site Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - C 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - D 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Gunpowder Elementary 887-5121 9540 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE Halethorpe Elementary 887-1406 4300 Maple Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21227 SW Halstead Academy Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-008 3335 Washington Avenue, Balt	Glyndon Elementary			_	
Greenwood - A 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - C 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - D 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Gunpowder Elementary 887-5121 9540 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE Halethorpe Elementary 887-1406 4300 Maple Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21227 SW Halstead Academy Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-008 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank				NE	
Greenwood - C 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - D 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Gunpowder Elementary 887-5121 9540 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE Halethorpe Elementary 887-1406 4300 Maple Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21227 SW Halstead Academy Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank	Grange Elementary	887-7043	2000 Church Road, Baltimore MD, 21222	SE	Dry System on Site
Greenwood - D 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Gunpowder Elementary 887-5121 9540 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE Halethorpe Elementary 887-1406 4300 Maple Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21227 SW Halstead Academy Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank					
Greenwood - E 887-3359 6901 Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204 CN Gunpowder Elementary 887-5121 9540 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE Halethorpe Elementary 887-1406 4300 Maple Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21227 SW Halstead Academy Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank					
Gunpowder Elementary 887-5121 9540 Holiday Manor Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 NE Halethorpe Elementary 887-1406 4300 Maple Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21227 SW Halstead Academy Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank					
Halethorpe Elementary 887-1406 4300 Maple Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21227 SW Halstead Academy Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank					
Halstead Academy Elementary 887-3210 1111 Halstead Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 CN Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank				_	
Hampton Elementary 887-3205 1115 Charmuth Road, Lutherville MD, 21093 CN Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank			•		
Harford Hills Elementary 887-5236 8902 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234 NE Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank				-	
Hawthorne Elementary 887-0138 125 Kingston Road, Baltimore MD, 21220 SE Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Hebbville Elementary 887-0708 3335 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244 SW Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank	Hawthorne Elementary				
Hereford High 887-1905 17301 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank* Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank	Hebbville Elementary			_	
Hereford Middle 887-7902 712 Corbett Road, Monkton MD, 21111 CN Pneumatic Holding Tank	Hereford High			-	Pneumatic Holding Tank*
Hernwood Elementary 887-0732 9919 Marriottsville Road, Randallstown MD, 21133 NW	Hereford Middle				
	Hernwood Elementary	887-0732	9919 Marriottsville Road, Randallstown MD, 21133	NW	

8/24/2017

SCHOOL OR LOCATION	Phone Number	Address	Area	Notation
Hillcrest Elementary	887-0820	1500 Frederick Road, Baltimore MD, 21228	SW	Notation
Holabird Middle	887-7049	1701 Delvale Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222	SE	
Jacksonville Elementary	887-7880	3400 Hillendale Heights Road, Phoenix MD, 21131	CN	
Johnnycake Elementary	887-0823	5910 Craigmont Road, Baltimore MD, 21228	SW	
Joppa View Elementary	887-5065	8727 Honeygo Boulevard, Baltimore MD, 21128	NE	
Kenwood Administration Building	887-0823	600 Stemmers Run Road, Baltimore MD, 21221	NE	
Kenwood High	887-0153	501 Stemmers Run Road, Baltimore MD, 21221	NE	
Lansdowne Elementary	887-1408	2301 Alma Road, Baltimore MD, 21227	SW	
Lansdowne High	887-1415	3800 Hollins Ferry Road, Baltimore MD, 21227	SW	
Lansdowne Middle	887-1411	2400 Lansdowne Road, Baltimore MD, 21227	SW	
Loch Raven Academy	887-3518	8101 La Salle Road, Baltimore MD, 21286	CN	
Loch Raven High	887-3525	1212 Cowpens Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21286	CN	
Logan Elementary	887-7052	7601 Dunmanway , Baltimore MD, 21222	SE	
Lutherville Laboratory Elementary	887-7800	1700 North York Road, Lutherville MD, 21093	CN	
Lyons Mills El	887-1719	9435 Lyons Mill Road , Owings Mills MD, 21117	NW	
Maiden Choice School Special	887-1431	4901 Shelbourne Road, Baltimore MD, 21227	SW	Special Needs - Restricted Testing Times
Mars Estates Elementary	887-0154	1500 East Homberg Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221	SE	
Martin Boulevard Elementary	887-0158	210 Riverton Road, Baltimore MD, 21220	NE	
Mays Chapel Elementary	443-809-4134	12250 Roundwood Road, Timonium MD, 21093	CN	
McCormick Elementary	887-0500	5101 Hazelwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21206	NE	
Middle River Middle	887-0165	800 Middle River Road, Baltimore MD, 21220	NE	
Middleborough Elementary	887-0166	313 West Road, Baltimore MD, 21221	SE	
Middlesex Elementary	887-0170	142 Bennett Road, Baltimore MD, 21221	NE	
Milbrook Elementary	887-1225	4300 Crest Hghts Road, Baltimore MD, 21215	NW	
Milford Mill Academy High	887-0660	3800 Washington Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21244	NW	
New Town Elementary	887-1541	4924 New Town Blvd, Owings Mills MD, 21117	NW	
New Town High	887-1614	4931 New Town Boulevard, Owings Mills MD, 21117	NW	
North Point Bus Lot	443-809-4321	4242 North Point Road, Dundalk, MD 21222	NE	
Northwest Academy of Health	887-0742	4627 Old Court Road, Baltimore MD, 21208	NW	
Norwood Elementary	887-7055	1700 Delvale Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222	SE	
Oliver Beach Elementary	887-5943	12912 Cuninghill Cove Road, Baltimore MD, 21220	NE	
Orems Elementary	887-0172	711 Highvilla Road, Baltimore MD, 21221	NE	
Overlea High	887-5241	5401 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21206	NE	
Owings Mills Elementary	887-1710	10824 Reisterstown Road, Owings Mills MD, 21117	NW	
Owings Mills High	887-1700	124 Tollgate Road, Owings Mills MD, 21117	NW	
Padonia International Elementary	887-7646	9834 Greenside Drive, Cockeysville MD, 21030	CN	6. 10. 6
Parkville High Parkville Middle	887-5257	2600 Putty Hill Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21234	NE	Stand Pipe System
Patapsco High	887-5250	8711 Avondale Road, Baltimore MD, 21234	NE SE	
Perry Hall Elementary	887-7060 887-5105	8100 Wise Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222	NE	
Perry Hall High	887-5105 887-5108	9021 Belair Road, Baltimore MD, 21236 4601 Ebenezer Road, Baltimore MD, 21236	NE	
Perry Hall Middle	887-5100	4300 Ebenezer Road, Baltimore MD, 21236	NE	
Pikesville High	887-1217	7621 Labyrinth Road, Baltimore MD, 21208	NW	
Pikesville Middle	887-1217	7701 Seven Mile Lane, Baltimore MD, 21208	NW	
Pine Grove Elementary	887-5267	2701 Summit Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21234	NE	
Pine Grove Middle	887-5270	9200 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD, 21234	NE	
Pinewood Elementary	887-7663	200 Rickswood Road, Timonium MD, 21093	CN	
Pleasant Plains Elementary	887-3549	8300 Pleasant Plains Road, Baltimore MD, 21286	CN	
Pot Spring Elementary	887-7648	2410 Springlake Drive, Timonium MD, 21093	CN	
Powhatan Elementary	887-1330	3300 Kelox Road, Baltimore MD, 21207	SW	
Prettyboy Elementary	887-1900	19810 Middletown Road, Freeland MD, 21053	CN	Fire Pump - Diesel / Dry System on Site
Randallstown Elementary	887-1227	9013 Liberty Road, Randallstown MD, 21133	NW	
Randallstown High	887-0748	4000 Offutt Road, Randallstown MD, 21133	NW	
Red House Run Elementary	887-0506	1717 Weyburn Road, Baltimore MD, 21237	NE	
Reisterstown Elementary	887-1133	223 Walgrove Road, Reisterstown MD, 21136	NW	
Relay Elementary	887-1426	5885 Selford Road, Baltimore MD, 21227	SW	
Riderwood Elementary	887-3568	1711 Landrake Road, Baltimore MD, 21204	CN	
Ridge Ruxton School - Special	887-3594	6916 Charles Street, Baltimore MD, 21204	CN	Special Needs - Restricted Testing Times
Ridgely Middle	887-7650	121 Ridgely Road , Lutherville MD, 21093	CN	-
Riverview Elementary	887-1428	3298 Kessler Road, Baltimore MD, 21227	SW	
Rodgers Forge Elementary	887-3582	250 Dumbarton Road, Baltimore MD, 21212	CN	
Sandalwood Elementary	887-0174	900 South Marlyn Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21221	SE	
Sandy Plains Elementary	887-7070	8330 Kavanagh Road, Baltimore MD, 21222	SE	
Scotts Branch Elementary	887-0761	8220 Tawnmoore Road, Baltimore MD, 21244	NW	
Seneca Elementary	887-5945	545 Carrollwood Road, Baltimore MD, 21220	SE	
Seven Oaks Elementary	887-6257	9220 Seven Courts Road, Baltimore MD, 21236	NE	
Seventh District Elementary	887-1902	20300 York Road, Parkton MD, 21120	CN	Fire Pump - Diesel
Shady Spring Elementary	887-0509	8868 Goldenwood Road, Baltimore MD, 21237	NE	
7 1 9				
Southwest Academy Middle	887-0825	6200 Johnnycake Road, Baltimore MD, 21207	SW	
7 1 9	887-0825 887-7900 887-7524	6200 Johnnycake Road, Baltimore MD, 21207 601 Belfast Road, Sparks MD, 21152 7400 North Point Road, Baltimore MD, 21219	SW CN SE	Pneumatic Holding Tank

Page 2 of 3 8/24/2017

SCHOOL OR LOCATION	Phone Number	Address	Area	Notation		
Stemmers Run Middle	887-0177	7400 North Point Road, Baltimore MD, 21219	NE			
Stoneleigh Elementary	887-3600	201 Stemmers Run Road, Baltimore MD, 21221	CN			
Sudbrook Magnet Middle	887-6720	900 Pemberton Road, Baltimore MD, 21212	NW	NW		
Summit Park Elementary	887-1210	4300 Bedford Road, Baltimore MD, 21208	NW			
Sussex Elementary	887-0182	6920 Diana Road, Baltimore MD, 21209	SE			
Timber Grove Elementary	887-1714	515 South Woodward Drive, Baltimore MD, 21221	NW			
Timonium Elementary	887-7661	2001 Eastridge Road, Timonium MD, 21093	CN			
Towson High	887-3608	69 Cedar Avenue, Towson MD, 21286	CN	Fire Pump - Electric		
Victory Villa ES	887-0184	8200 Old Philadelphia Road, Baltimore, MD, 21237	NE			
Villa Cresta Elementary	887-5275	2600 Rader Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21234	CN			
Vincent Farm Elementary	887-2983	6019 Ebenezer Road, White Marsh MD, 21162	NE			
Warren Elementary	887-7665	900 Bosley Road, Cockeysville MD, 21030	CN			
Wellwood International Elementary	887-1212	2901 Smith Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21208	NW			
West Towson Elementary	887-3893	6914 North Charles Street, Towson MD, 21204	CN			
Westchester Elementary	887-1088	2300 Old Frederick Road, Baltimore MD, 21228	SW			
Western School of Technology High	887-0840	100 Kenwood Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21228	SW			
Westowne Elementary	887-0854	401 Harlem Lane, Catonsville MD, 21228	SW			
White Oak School - Special	887-5378	8401 Leefield Road, Baltimore MD, 21234	CN	Special Needs - Restricted Testing Times		
Winand Elementary	887-0763	8301 Scotts Level Road, Baltimore MD, 21208	NW	-		
Windsor Mill Middle School	887-0618	8300 Windsor Mill Road, Baltimore Md, 21244	SW			
Winfield Elementary	887-0766	8300 Carlson Lane, Baltimore MD, 21244	SW			
Woodbridge Elementary	887-0857	1410 Pleasant Valley Drive, Baltimore MD, 21228	SW			
Woodholme Elementary	887-6700	300 Mt. Wilson , Baltimore MD, 21208	NW			
Woodlawn High	887-1309	1801 Woodlawn Drive, Baltimore MD, 21207	SW			
Woodlawn Middle	887-1304	3033 Saint Lukes Lane, Baltimore MD, 21207	SW			
Woodmoor Elementary	887-1318	3200 Elba Drive, Baltimore, MD 21207	SW			
		Weekly Pump Churn Test				
Carroll Manor El - diesel	887-5947	4434 Carroll Manor Road, Baldwin MD, 21013	CN	Diesel		
Towson HS - electric	887-3608	69 Cedar Avenue, Towson MD, 21286	CN	Electric		
Dundalk / Sollers HS - electric	887-7023	1901 Delvale Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21222	SE	Electric		
Prettyboy El - diesel	887-1900	19810 Middletown Road, Freeland MD, 21053	CN	Diesel		
Fifth District EI - diesel	887-1726	3725 Mount Carmel Road, Upperco MD, 21155	CN	Diesel		
Seventh District EI - diesel	887-1902	3725 Mount Carmel Road, Upperco MD, 21155		Diesel		
Catonsville HS - electric		421 Bloomsbury Avenue, Baltimore MD, 21228		Electric		

8/24/2017

MBU-506-18

EXHIBIT B:BCPS TEST FORMS

MBU-506-18 Exhibit B: BCPS Test Forms Fire Pump Weekly Inspection Form - Electrical

Name of Property:	Date of Inspection:	
Address:	Inspector (please print):	
	School ID# Phone Number:	

Note: Once onsite before inspection test begins: Inform School Office Personnel of planed test. Sign in at School Office. Contact Office of Building Security 443-809-6488 to call system out for test. Please check for confirmation of above:

Pump System Conditions

Yes	No	N/A	
1.			Is suction, discharge, and bypass valves open?
2.			Is piping/ hose free of leak?
3.			Are packing guards properly adjusted?
4.			Is suction pressure gauge reading normal?
			Specify: PSI:
5.			Is discharge pressure gauge reading normal?
			Specify: PSI:
6.			Is suction reservoir full?
7.			Are wet pit suction screens unobstructed and in place?

Electrical system conditions

Yes	No	N/A	
8.			Is controller pilot light (power on) Illuminated?
9.			Is transfer switch normal power light illuminated?
10.			Is isolating switch for standby power closed?
11.			Is reverse- phase alarm light not illuminated?
12.			Is normal phase rotation light illuminated?

Note: On completion of inspection test: Inform School Office Personnel test is complete. Contact Office of Building Security 443-809-6488 to place system back on line. Sign out at School Office. Please check for confirmation:

Note: List	any unsatisf	actory items a	and recommended	l corrective	actions
INDIE. LIST	anv unsausi	actory items a	illa recommenaei	i con ective	acions.

<u> </u>		

All no answers must be reported to BCPS at 443-809-6488. E-mail pjenkins@bcps.org within 24 hours.

MBU-506-18 Exhibit B: BCPS Test Forms Fire Pump Weekly Inspection Form - Diesel

Name of Prot	Name of Property:		Date of inspection:				
Address:			Inspector (please print):				
riddiess.			School ID # Phone Number:				
Note: Once onsi	ita baf	oro inen	ection test begins, inform School Office Personnel of planed test. Sign in at				
	of Building Safety 443-809-6488 to call system out for test. Please check for						
confirmation of			of Building Saicty 443-609-6466 to can system out for test. I lease check for				
	Pump House Conditions						
	No	N/A					
1.		П	Is heat in pump room 40 degrees F or higher?				
2.	Ħ		Is heat in pump room 70 degrees F for diesel without engine heater?				
3.	ĦΤ	Ī	Do ventilation louvers appear operational?				
Pump System (Condi	tions	11 1				
Yes	No	N/A					
4.			Is suction, discharge, and bypass valves open?				
5.			Is piping / hose free of leaks?				
6.			Are packing guards properly adjusted?				
7.			Is suction pressure gauge reading normal?				
			Specify: psi				
8.			Is discharge pressure gauge reading normal?				
			Specify: psi				
9.			Is suction reservoir full?				
10.			Are wet pit suction screens unobstructed and in place?				
Electrical Syste		nditions	3				
Yes	No	N/A					
11.			Is controller pilot light (power on) illuminated?				
12.			Is transfer switch normal power light illuminated?				
13.			Is isolating switch for standby power closed?				
14.			Is reverse-phase alarm light not illuminated?				
15.			Is normal phase rotation light illuminated?				
Diesel Engine S			tions				
	Yes No N/A						
16.	Щ		Is oil level in vertical motor sight glass normal?				
17.	Щ	<u> </u>	Is diesel fuel tank at least 2/3 full?				
18.	Щ		Is controller selector switch in the "auto" position?				
19.	Щ	<u> </u>	Are voltage readings for batteries normal? (Min of 2 batteries required)				
20.	Щ	<u> </u>	Are charging current readings normal for batteries?				
21.	Ш	$ \sqcup $	Are pilot lights for batteries on or battery failure pilot lights off? Record				
		 	engine running time from meter:				
22.	Н.	 	Is oil level normal in right angel gear- drive pumps?				
23.	Н.	Н_	Is crankcase oil level normal?				
24.	Щ.	 	Is cooling water level normal?				
25.	Н.	Н_	Is electrolyte level in batteries normal?				
26.	Н.	 	Are battery terminals free of corrosion?				
27. L	<u> </u>		Is water-jacket heater operational?				
Notes: List any	unsatı	stactory	items and recommended corrective actions.				
All no answers i	All no answers must be reported to BCPS at 443-809-6488. E-mail pjenkins@bcps.org within 24 hours. On						
completion of inspection test: Inform School Office Personnel test is complete. Contact Office of Building							
•	Security 443-809-6488 to place system back on line. Sign out at School Office. Please check for						
confirmation of			•				

MBU-506-18 Exhibit B: BCPS Test Form(s) Fire Pump Weekly Operating Tests – Diesel Engine – Driven Pump

Name of Property:			Date of inspection:		
Address:			Inspector (please print):		
			School ID # Phone Number:		
	office. rmatio	Conta n 🔲	Fore operating test begins, inform School Office Personnel of planed test. Sign in at ct Office of Building Security 443-809-6488 to call system out for test. Please check		
Yes	No	N/A	итипр		
1.			Pump started correctly?		
2.	Н	Ħ	Record starting pressure: psi		
3.	Ħ	Ħ	Run pump for thirty minutes		
4.	Ħ	Ħ	Record suction pressure: psi		
5.	П	Ħ	Record discharge pressure: psi		
6.	Ħ	Ħ	Check/adjust packing guards		
7.	Ħ	Ħ	Any unusual noise or vibrations?		
8.	Ħ	Ħ	Packing boxes, bearings, and pump casing free from overheating?		
9.	П	П	Record time for engine to crank:		
10.			Record time for engine to reach full speed:		
11.			Record engine oil pressure: psi		
12.			Record engine speed: rpm		
13.			Record engine water temperature: degrees f.		
14.			Record engine oil temperature: degrees f.		
15.			Verify cooling water flow from heat exchanger?		
Note: Lis	st any	unsatis	sfactory items and recommended corrective actions:		
Note: On completion of operating test: Inform School Office Personnel test is complete. Contact Office of Building Security 443-809-6488 to place system back on line. Sign out at School Office. Please check for confirmation of above Sign this completed form:					
S.B. and tompleton form					

All no answers must be reported to BCPS at 443-809-6488. E-mail pjenkins@bcps.org within 24 hours.

MBU-506-18 Exhibit B: BCPS Test Form(s) Fire Pump Weekly Operating Tests – Electrical Motor – Driven Pump

Name of Property:				Date of Inspection:			
Address:				Inspector (please print):			
				School ID# Phone Number:			
School (check fo	Office. or conf	Conta irmatio		l m School Office Personnel of planed test. Sign in at y 443-809-6488 to call system out for test. Please			
Yes	No	N/A					
1.			Pump started automatically?				
2.			Record starting pressure:	PSI			
3.			Run pump for ten minutes				
4.			Record suction pressure:	PSI			
5.			Record discharge pressure: PSI				
6.			Check/adjust packing guards				
7.			Any unusual noise or vibrations?				
8.			Packing boxes, bearings, and pump casing free from overheating?				
9.			Record time for motor to reach full speed: Sec				
10.			Record time for controller on first step (for reduced voltage or reduced current starting): Sec				
11.			Record pump running time (for	automatic stop controllers):			
List an	y unsa	ntisfact	ory items and recommended cor	rective actions:			
	Secui			I Office Personnel test is complete. Contact Office of con line. Sign out at School Office. Please check for			

All no answers must be reported to BCPS at 443-809-6488. E-mail pjenkins@bcps.org within 24 hours.

Sign this completed form: